2021

Annual Report

EH

Neway Group Holdings Limited
FESEEZERARLT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability 7 B RzEEMAILZ BRAE)
Stock Code B&{AX5H : 00055



CONTENTS 2
B #%

Neway Group Holdings Limited
FEEBZRARAT 6
Annual Report %8 2021
29
50
55
73

136

143

145
147
148
150
306

308

Corporate Information
NEER

Chairman’s Statement

EERS

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENmR DM

Corporate Governance Report
TEELARS

Biographical Details of Directors
EEVEE
Directors’ Report

EEERE

Envi_ror]mental, §ocia| and Governance Report
RE-HEREARSG

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBE RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
mEEmAEMEEIRARSE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MBI E

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERDEHR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRERE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M B mREMEE

Principal Properties

FTEYE

Five Years Financial Summary

LEMBRE

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R



Corporate Information

QAEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate director:

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (Alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)
(resigned on 31 January 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Units Nos. 1103 and 1105-1111, Level 11,
Tower 2, Grand Century Place,

193 Prince Edward Road West,

Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

EFY

HITES .

BRIt (ZE)

BB ESRE TTEAEE)

JEMITESE :

SEAEL

PR YA A4 o A

B E

BIIERITESE :

AL

KIETHESE

BEESE

RIRELRE (BREELZEHTESR)
(R —E - _—F—HF=+—HET)

rEME

R EHR/ R

RS AR

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BERARMSEEREEE M,

EENBEEA
KFEPE1939%
it Ac E 5280

1181103 F&21105-1111%E

Annual Report 2021 F g



Corporate Information

NEEH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS*

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited

+ names are in alphabetical order

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW

LCH Lawyers LLP

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.newaygroup.com.hk

STOCK CODE
00055

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

FEBERIRIT
REIERIT (B8) ARAH
RBIRIT (BH) BRAT
&8 LSERRTARAT

+ BBURXFBRFHS
BRER AR ZAEER
SEHRMITARERETER
1% BRE

%)« BAEMR D G 5TEMIT
SRR @ BB

FERMELKRIBRE

Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

BRZROBRETARE
SEWEBBERAT
&5

EEREER1835E
B 05418

NGIE: RS
http://www.newaygroup.com.hk
g 17 X%

00055

Annual Report 2021 F#§



Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

The year 2021 continues to be a year filled with different challenges.
The coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic has been
still heavily affecting our local operations and the global business
environment. The continued restructuring of the market landscape
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") also posted additional
challenges upon us.

In the Year, the Group adopted a conservative approach due to
the increase in global uncertainty from COVID-19. The Group will
continue adhering to the diversification strategy in the coming years,
and expect that the performance will be gradually reflected in all the
business segments of the Group.

This Year our manufacturing and sales of printing products business
continues to be our biggest revenue contributor and has achieved an
approximately of 21% increase in the segment revenue. Such increase
is mainly due to the increased demand from our customers led by
the change in our product mix. However, the transformation of our
product mix is still in the progress and we are still working towards
the optimal operating level hence we were not able to achieve our
desired margin.

The reshuffling in the global supply chain and the trend in
deglobalization has emerged at a faster pace during the Year. We
have taken up our pace in our investment in our trading segment in
order to capture and adapt to the changes in the global environment.
We have set up an oversea office this Year and we will continue to
invest in this segment in the coming year.

Our lending business is largely affected by the local property market
and the movement in interest rate. During the Year, we have taken
a more conservative approach in our loan approval in response to
the increased uncertainly from the local property market. To reduce
our exposure to and reliance on the local property market, we have
invested in new product development to expand our product offering
and invested in new operating platform to streamline our operation.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRS

The local entertainment market is still suffering heavily from the
COVID-19 policies adopted by the local government. This Year we
continued in tightening our expenses and prepared ourselves for
market recovery.

Our property business has reached a turning point in the Year. Our
development in Qingyuan City of the PRC has taken up pace. We
have completed the sale of our production facility in Hong Kong
in January 2022. In the coming year, we will pick up the pace and
continue to look for more investment and development opportunities
in Hong Kong, the PRC and other opportunities that arise in the
region.

The Group will continue to adopt a cautious manner to deal with
the increasing business and credit risks faced by different businesses,
and we will maintain a positive and enterprising attitude to expand
our business despite the increasing complexity in global business and
political environment.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincerest gratitude to all shareholders, investors, business
partners and staff for their continuous support and dedication to
the Group throughout the Year notwithstanding the unprecedented
challenges and difficulties we encountered.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE SRR

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the business activities of the Group were
continuously affected by the COVID-19 pandemic which still affect
the global economy to a certain extent. Along with the mass injection
of vaccine, more and more countries have started to relax the anti-
pandemic precaution measures, which boosts up the consumption
market all over the world during the Year. Although the restriction on
cross-border travel among countries and the international shipment
delay due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in certain major container
terminals were still persistent during the Year, the global economy
gradually resumed under the new normal environment. The turnover
of most of the business segments were improved. Meanwhile, the
Group commenced the development of the industrial park project in
Qingyuan City, the PRC during the Year and the phase Il construction
has been commenced. The sales and marketing activities of the
industrial park was kicked off within the Year and more marketing
resources were allocated to drive the sales in 2022.

The business and financial review of each business segment is detailed
below.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Total Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

During the Year, total revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$623.6 million (2020: approximately HK$532.7 million) and the
gross profit margin was approximately 17.4% (2020: 25.0%). The
contribution of each business segment to the revenue of the Group is
as follows:

Approximate %
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Approximate %

to total to total
2021 revenue 2020 revenue
R 6 Rl G
—EZ-F it SRl CECTHE BABENT

HK$ HK$

B BT
Lending Business BEEH 1,920,242 0.3% 6,756,759 1.3%
Manufacturing and Sales Business 3438 R 8 & 7% 579,682,944 93.0% 486,079,273 91.2%
Music and Entertainment Business 4 5 44 37 4,387,349 0.7% 4,071,062 0.8%
Property Business MEET 4,477,272 0.7% 4,880,323 0.9%
Trading Business EVES 33,108,915 5.3% 30,887,078 5.8%
Total revenue s 623,576,722 100% 532,674,495 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

Lending Business

The Lending Business included the financial leasing business in
Shanghai, the PRC and the money lending business in Hong Kong.

For the financial leasing business in Shanghai, no transaction was
made during the Year, and the Group is still identifying deals with
promising potential.

For the money lending business in Hong Kong, it is carried out by
Grand Prospects Finance International Limited GEREFEE R B EA
&), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and a licensed money lender under the
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Customers of this segment included both individuals and corporate
entities and most of the loans were either secured by properties
located in Hong Kong, pledges of shares or personal guarantees.

The Group has adopted a set of internal guidelines for its money
lending business. The guidelines provide references or specific
requirements for setting of interest rates of the loan, the tenure of the
loan and the credit assessment and approval process of each loan. The
guidelines also set out the procedures to be observed by the Group
for its money lending business. Monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The persistent spread of COVID-19 has worsened the economic
development in the territory and the keen market competition arising
therefrom in turn adversely affected the number and amount of new
loans granted by the Group. The total amount of new loans granted
during the Year was approximately HK$4.3 million and the average
loan interest rate of the Group’s loan portfolio was ranging from
13%-37%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE SRR

Though the Group was able to receive the majority of interest income
as scheduled, its loan portfolio decreased to approximately HK$9.1
million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: HK$29.6
million). During the Year, the interest income from loans decreased by
approximately 71.6% to approximately HK$1.9 million (2020: HK$6.8
million), mainly due to the decrease in the number of loan portfolios
during the Year. The segment gain of the Lending Business was
approximately HK$47,000 (2020: segment loss of HK$26.9 million)
and the improvement was mainly due to the absence of impairment
loss (2020: HK$30.6 million) during the Year. The segment gain is
relatively low for the Year because (i) interest income from loans
decreased significantly, making it just able to cover the expenses
incurred in the Lending Business; and (ii) operating expenses increased
during the Year for further enhancement of the online money lending
platform.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 80% (2020: 52%)
of the total loans receivable was due from three (2020: two)
independent third parties of total of approximately HK$7,320,000
(2020: HK$31,719,306).

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated loss rates of
loans receivable based on historical credit loss experience of the
debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by the
customers to the loans receivable. For those loans receivable secured
by properties located in Hong Kong with aggregate amount of
HK$9,115,671 (2020: HK$27,429,434), the directors of the Company
considered the loss given default is low in view of the fair value of
the collaterals are higher than the carrying amounts of the respective
loans receivable. The Group has not recognised a loss allowance for
the loans receivable as a result of these collaterals. Gross carrying
amount of loans receivable amounting to HK$22,612 (2020:
HK$6,312,852) is unsecured as at 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$27,760,367 as at 31 December 2020 is secured by the entire
issued share capital of immediate holding company of the borrower
and guaranteed by the son of the ultimate beneficial owner of
the borrower. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
counterparty of this loans receivable defaulted in repayment and no
settlement was made for the outstanding balances during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The management of the Group considered
that the credit risk on the loan to this loans receivable significantly
increased during the year ended 31 December 2020. In view of this,
the management started to assess the expected credit losses (ECL)
on this loans receivable changing from 12-month ECL to lifetime ECL
during the year ended 31 December 2020. In view of the probability
of the default and the recoverable amount of the pledges, which is
expected to be insignificant, an impairment losses of HK$26,549,287
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are counterparties
with gross carrying amount of HK$3,958,939 defaulted in repayment
and no settlement was made for the outstanding balances during
the year ended 31 December 2020. In view of the continuous non
repayment from the debtors, an impairment loss of HK$3,828,939
was recognised on these credit-impaired debtors during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Also, the Group has recognised net
reversal of impairment allowance of HK$183,063 (2020: net
impairment allowance of HK$176,015) on the remaining loans
receivable during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE SRR

Manufacturing and Sales Business

This segment represented: (a) the manufacturing and sales of
printing products, such as packaging boxes, labels, paper products
and paper shopping bags, with a worldwide customer base; and (b)
the manufacturing and sales of surgical masks, with a Hong Kong
customer base. The segment revenue increased by approximately
19.3% to HK$579.7 million (2020: approximately HK$486.1 million)
and the segment loss was approximately HK$16.5 million (2020:
approximately HK$10.2 million). The operations and financial
performance of each business division are detailed below.

(a) Manufacturing and sales of printing products

During the Year, the Manufacturing and Sales Business
continued to experience an extremely difficult and challenging
environment. The continuous spread of COVID-19 in different
countries hindered the recovery of global economy and
the governments were unable to ease the restrictions on
international travel and economic activities. Besides, the
outbreak of COVID-19 in certain container terminals in
the PRC resulted in temporary suspensions of international
cargo freights during the Year, which delayed the shipping
of products to overseas and pushed up the transportation
cost significantly. The suspension in shipment and shortage
of containers increased the operating costs of the Group and
also delayed the collection of receivables from overseas clients.
Even though the economic activities have not recovered during
the Year, the Group's revenue in the manufacturing and
sales of printing products still benefited from the increase in
the global demand of goods and services that was adversely
effected in 2020.

The segment revenue of the business increased by
approximately 20.6% to HK$578.4 million for the Year (2020:
approximately HK$479.8 million), mainly attributable to the
increase in sales orders of all types of printing products from
overseas and domestic clients.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEEmRO

Segment loss of approximately HK$10.6 million was recorded
for the Year (2020: approximately HK$13.2 million), mainly
attributable to the following factors:

(iii)

(iv)

The decrease of gross profit margin by 7.2 percentage
points to approximately 16.4% for the Year (2020:
approximately 23.6%), mainly due to the increase in
material prices and the increase of average material
consumption rate to approximately 5.7% during the
Year.

The absence of the anti-epidemic subsidies from the
government of Hong Kong and the PRC and the one-
off government subsidies for the trade war between
U.S. and the PRC totaling approximately HK$7.6 million
in the Year. The ratio of total staff costs and other
related expenses to sales remained stable as compared
with Year 2020.

Since certain machineries were no longer suitable for
the production activities of our factories, a loss of
approximately HK$2.2 million arising from the disposal
of machines was recorded.

The average exchange rate of Renminbi ("RMB")
against Hong Kong dollars appreciated by
approximately 7.1% as compared with 2020. The
fluctuation brought about a negative impact on
the segment result as most of the production and
operating expenses were denominated in RMB while
approximately 59.1% of the sales of this segment was
dominated in Hong Kong dollars or currencies other
than RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE SRR

(b) Manufacturing and sales of surgical masks

The Group established this sub-segment in 2020 operating
in the Fanling Building (as defined below). The revenue
of the business was approximately HK$1.3 million during
the Year (2020: approximately HK$6.3 million). The loss
for the Year was approximately HK$5.9 million (2020:
approximately HK$3.0 million) and the increase in loss was
mainly attributable to: (i) the impairment of finished goods of
approximately HK$1.4 million due to the lowered market price
of surgical masks; and (ii) the impairment loss of approximately
HK$1.9 million on the production facilities for masks. After
a thorough review of the financial performance and the
prevailing market demand and supply, the management
ceased the manufacturing of surgical masks during the Year.

Music and Entertainment Business

Revenue from the segment mainly consisted of income from concerts
and shows, artist management fee income, album distribution
income, promotion income and musical work licensing income.

The revenue of the segment increased by approximately 7.8%
to HK$4.4 million (2020: approximately HK$4.1 million) and the
segment loss for the Year was approximately HK$4.5 million (2020:
approximately HK$8.5 million). The increase in revenue was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of physical albums. Over 60% of
the segment revenue was derived from licensing income from online
music platforms. The decrease in segment loss was mainly attributable
to:

(i) The rental expenses decreased as the tenancy agreements
entered into for overseas talents show in 2019 has ended.

(ii) The capitalized costs of song production were fully amortized
during the Year.

During the Year, the business activities of the segment were
continuously affected by COVID-19 as the number of shows and
concerts, as well as outdoor activities in Hong Kong and elsewhere
in the Greater Bay Area were quite limited. The first show to be
launched and produced for contracted famous overseas talents show
will be further delayed to 2023.
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Property Business
Property Development Business

The Group had two property development projects as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: two). During the Year, one project involved
BEmPERMERZEARAR (unoffical English name: Qingyuan
Zhongqging Property Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhongging”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the other involved &
KENR C51=) BIRAF (unofficial English name: Zhongda Printing
(Qingyuan) Company Limited) (“Zhongda Qingyuan”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Zhongging

Zhongging held the land use right of two commercial land parcels
in Qingyuan, the PRC (“Qingyuan Land”). On 18 June 2014, #3Il
mHhERBREEEREAR/AT (unofficial English name: Shenzhen
Zhongxing Guosheng Investment Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhongxing
Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated
civil proceedings against Zhongging in the People’s Court of Baoan
District (the “Court”) for, among other matters, the repayment of
the shareholder’s loan contributed by Zhongxing Guosheng in an
amount of RMB23,479,330 (the “Litigation”). On 19 June 2014,
pursuant to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng for
freezing and preserving the assets of Zhongging with a total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the Court to freeze and
preserve the Qingyuan Land from 24 June 2014 to 23 June 2016
(the “Freeze Order”), aiming to ensure that Zhongging would have
sufficient assets for the repayment of the shareholder’s loan to the
Group.

Two hearing sessions of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014
and 25 September 2014 respectively. On 15 October 2014, the Group
received a civil mediation document dated 30 September 2014 (the
“Document”) from the Court, acknowledging that: (i) the Group and
Zhongging confirmed that Zhongqing was indebted to Zhongxing
Guosheng in a sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongqing agreed to
repay to Zhongxing Guosheng a sum of RMB23,479,330, together
with interests accrued from 18 June 2014 to the date of repayment
which was supposed to be within 15 days of the effective date of
the Document; and (iii) where Zhongging failed to repay the agreed
amount, Zhongxing Guosheng was entitled to request Zhongging to
pay default interests calculated at two times of the lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China over the same period.
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As advised by the Group's legal advisers in the PRC, the effective
date of the Document was 15 October 2014 and the deadline for
repayment by Zhongqing was 30 October 2014 accordingly. As at 30
October 2014, Zhongging did not repay the outstanding shareholder’s
loan and accrued interests to Zhongxing Guosheng.

On 27 May 2016, Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to
the Court for the extension of the term of the Freeze Order and the
application was accepted. The extended term of the Freeze Order
started on 13 June 2016 and ended on 12 June 2019. In May 2019,
Zhongxing Guosheng submitted an application to the Court again
for the further extension of the term of the Freeze Order and the
application was accepted accordingly. The further extended term of
the Freeze Order started on 13 May 2019, and will end on 12 May
2022.

During the Year, no further action was taken by the Group. The Board
has from time to time considered the possibility of and the suitable
timing for commencing the compulsory enforcement proceedings
against Zhongging to put the Qingyuan Land for sale in the auction
(the “"Compulsory Enforcement”) over these years. Recently, after
assessing the market condition, the government policies and recent
development projects in Qingyuan City as well as the professional
expertise and financial resources of the Group, the Board considers
that it is the time to commence the Compulsory Enforcement.
More details of the Compulsory Enforcement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated on 11 March 2022.

Zhongda Qingyuan

The Group, through Zhongda Qingyuan, owned a land parcel in
Qingyuan City, the PRC, with a total area of approximately 208,000
square metres (“sqgm”) and planned to build an industrial park with
an array of industrial buildings, commercial buildings, apartments
and dormitories. The buildings thereon were intended for lease or
sales. The plan was approved by the Guangdong Qingyuan High-Tech
Industrial Development Zone Management Office in March 2020 and
was highly supported by the Qingyuan government.
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Construction work of the first industrial building commenced in
July 2020 and its gross floor area was approximately 22,000 sgm,
representing around 5% of the planned gross floor area of the
land parcel. As at 31 December 2021, approximately 89.5% of the
construction work was completed according to the supervision report
prepared by the independent construction supervision company
engaged by Zhongda Qingyuan. Construction work of the first
industrial building is expected to be completed in 2022. The Group
submitted the second phase development plan with an expected
gross floor area of approximately 118,000 sqm to the relevant
governmental authority in July 2021, representing around 28% of
the planned gross floor area of the land parcel. The second phase
development will comprise 19 industrial buildings and certain ancillary
structures. The corresponding pre-sales and marketing activities
commenced since the forth quarter of the Year, and the Group has
appointed several property agents for the sales and lease of the
industrial buildings during the Year. No provisional sales and purchase
agreement has been entered as at 31 December 2021. More extensive
sales and marketing activities will be launched in the first half year of
2022.

Property Investment Business

During the Year, the Property Investment Business included: (i) the
Mini Storage Business operated by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (ii) the leasing of several commercial units in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

EF—EBIXERER_ZE-_ZF LA
T BEEBELA22,000F 5K (Hih
IR EEEBLOS% N _E_—F
+-A=1+—HB > REFRFREEN
BURREENTRUNEERSE B
SERAI89. 5% MERE TR - F—1ET
AENERIEEANR_S__Fi%
T-AEREHKR _E_—FtHAIEMH
BT RIIR RS A BT TR
HEFEL 118,000 F 5 K » (hth 1R 3R
BEEmEMBL28% cF _HAREREE
19MET EABERE THBREEY - EE
MNEERTBHEIHEAFEES
ZEHE MAERERNEAEERETE
TYEREBHERBEEIEAE R
- F+"A=1+—8B AEEIE
SV IHEREE R Z AEEBN
T FIF¥FHEEEZNHEER
EIEH o

MEREE

Fﬁﬁf’%%%ﬁ%?aﬁ:mmﬁ

RE—REBEMBARKE ZHRIRE
%?,&wfé%&$!ﬁﬁ+$%¥
Bl

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE SRR

Mini Storage Business

The ground floor, 1st floor, 2nd floor and half of the floor area of
the 4th floor of a self-owned industrial building in Fanling, Hong
Kong (the “Fanling Building”) were used for the operation of the
Mini Storage Business. The management considered that the overall
business environment in Hong Kong is experiencing increasing
challenges, causing uncertainties and pressure to the Group’s property
development and investment businesses in the near term. Therefore,
on 21 October 2021, the Group entered into a provisional sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to sell
the entire issued share capital of Profit Link Investment Limited, the
holding company of the Fanling Building, at an initial purchase price
of HK$231 million. The disposal allows the Group to reallocate its
resources more efficiently and enhances its operations and financial
prospects in the long term. In view of the disposal, the management
decided to cease the Mini Storage Business which was carried out in
the Fanling Building. As at 31 December 2021, all lease agreements
of the Mini Storage Business have been terminated. Approximately
35.4% of revenue of the Property Business was derived from the Mini
Storage Business during the Year.

Property Leasing and Investment

The Property Leasing Business involved two properties. The first one
was a commercial property in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (the “Yuen
Long Property”) which was leased to an independent third party as
at 31 December 2021. During the Year, due to the adverse economic
impact arising from the persistent spread of COVID-19, the Group
provided the tenant with a rental concession totalling HK$2.1 million.
Approximately 55.1% of revenue of the Property Business was derived
from the Yuen Long Property.

The second one was a commercial property in Beijing, the PRC (the
"Beijing Property”) which was leased to an independent third party
during the Year, and the annual rental income was approximately
HK$427,000.
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According to the Group’s accounting standards, the Fanling Building,
the Yuen Long Property and the Beijing Property were classified as
investment properties of the Group and were carried at market value.
A fair value gain of approximately HK$46.8 million was recorded
in “other gains and losses” of the Group during the Year (2020:
fair value loss of HK$9.9 million). The fair value gain of the Fanling
Building, the Yuen Long Property and the Beijing Property were
HK$39.7 million, HK$5.9 million and HK$1.2 million respectively.
The increase in fair value of the Fanling Building was attributable to
the initial purchase price as per the provisional sales and purchase
agreement signed on 21 October 2021. The increase in fair value of
the Yuen Long Property and the Beijing Property was mainly due to
the higher rental yield of adjacent locations.

Trading Business

Revenue from the Trading Business increased to approximately
HK$33.1 million (2020: approximately HK$30.9 million) while a
segment loss of approximately HK$3.1 million was recorded during
the Year (2020: segment profit of approximately HK$1.7 million).
The segment loss was mainly attributable to: (i) the decrease in gross
profit margin by 1.8%; (ii) the higher technical and operating costs
incurred in the development of the new online trading platform which
aimed at providing one-stop sourcing and logistic services to overseas
customers; and (iii) more overseas sales consultants and agents were
engaged to develop the sales network of the new online trading
platform business.
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Securities Trading and Equity Investments Business

The Group's equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL") as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$47.3 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$40.9 million). During the Year, the Group recorded a fair value
loss in investments of securities listed in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$2.7 million (2020: approximately HK$32.5 million), a realized
loss of approximately HK$27,000 (2020: approximately HK$5.7
million) and a dividend income of approximately HK$970,000 (2020:
approximately HK$529,000).

The Group's investments as at 31 December 2021 included securities
of 11 listed companies on the Main Board or GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) and
investment in an offshore investment fund and a Hong Kong private
company. The carrying amount of each of the Group's investments
accounted for less than 5% of the Group's audited total assets as
at 31 December 2021. The largest investment was the investment in
an offshore investment fund named Zhong Wei Capital L.P. (“Zhong
Wei"), which represented 1.33% of the total share capital of Zhong
Wei. Zhong Wei has invested in more than 30 entities including public
and private entities incorporated in Hong Kong and the overseas.
These entities principally engaged in, including but not limited to
educational sectors, entertainment and recreational sectors, financial
technological sectors, healthcare sectors and telecommunication
sectors. Its fair value as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$17.5 million, representing approximately 1.5% of
the Group’s audited total assets as at 31 December 2021. The top
five largest investments amounted to approximately HK$40.1 million,
representing approximately 3.5% of the Group's audited total assets
as at 31 December 2021.

The Group will carefully study the market and the information related
to prospective investees before purchasing any securities, and will
closely monitor the performance of investments after the acquisition
as well as revise the investment strategy in a cautious manner when
necessary to minimize the impact of market volatility.
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hith = K518
Other gains and losses for the Year mainly comprised the following KEEEMKEZEEBEEFTEGIEUT
items: I5H
2021 2020
—=-—f —moEf
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Change in fair value of financial assets B ATEIRS
at FVTPL (Note a) THMEBEEZ AT EEE
(Hizta) (2,722,561) (32,529,639)
Change in fair value of investment properties & E#) 2 A FEEF)

(Note b) (Hiztb) 46,763,317 (9,917,231)
Net foreign exchange loss SMEESIEFER (4,697,543) (8,151,710)
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME -BERREZ

plant and equipment (E518) W /F 258 (2,183,026) 322,912
Impairment loss on property, ME-BERREZ

plant and equipment (Note c) BEEE (Matc) (1,934,349) -
Total “ast 35,225,838 (50,275,668)
Notes: oz
(a) The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL consisted of (a) FRBHEATEIINRZEREEZA

the fair value loss of securities traded in the Stock Exchange of T ESHOERBESE Z2H552A
approximately HK$2.7 million (2020: approximately HK$32.5 million). F(EE518492,700,0008 0 (CE-BF .

#932,500,0005 7T) ©

(b) The fair value gain of investment properties was mainly related to (b) REVEANFERGFTERNENES
the Fanling Building. For the reason of such gain, please refer to the - BRAZWmENRE 528 L%
business and financial review of the Property Business above. RS T BA RSO EE o

(o) The impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was made for () WE - -BMERREZREBEMEER
the manufacturing and trading of the Surgical Mask Business which BEIIMNMIOSEBEIEL  ZEZHENEE
was ceased during the Year. E#iko
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LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

%@Jﬁ% BEFrHERRERE

FTERBIAEEAR B - —F+ -5
=+—AR-B-SE+_A=+—
BHRBILE EMILER AR L

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
RZEZ—F N TEF
Notes +=—H=+—H +ZB=+—H
Mzt % %
Current ratio mEBEE = (a) 2.3 2.6
Quick ratio RIEER (b) 1.5 1.9
Gearing ratio BEAMGELX (c) 17.1 18.1
Notes: HiaE -
(a) Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total (a) MR IRBEE FELGRNER
current liabilities as at the end of respective year. BERBRBIEETE-
(b) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories (b) RHEXRDIEEREEKRKERFNERSE
and properties under development for sale by total current liabilities as BEBRGEERTEEEDY ERUER
at the end of respective year. FaETE.

(0) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity
as at the end of respective year and then multiplying it by 100%. Total
borrowings include: (i) the amount due to a related company, (i) bank
borrowings, (iii) the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary; and (iv) lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$149.0 million
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$228.9 million) and total
borrowings of approximately HK$142.2 million (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$150.2 million).
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Total borrowings included: (i) the amount due to a related company;
(ii) bank borrowings; (iii) the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary; and (iv) lease liabilities. The amount due
to a related company was unsecured, payable after five years and
carried interests at fixed-interest rates at 18% per annum. Secured
bank borrowings were payable within one year and carried interest
at the Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 1.25% to 2.5%
per annum. The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
Lease liabilities carried incremental borrowing rates ranging from
2.2% to 5.4% per annum.

All borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and RMB and
the majority of cash and cash equivalents was denominated in RMB,
Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars.

The current ratio and quick ratio indicated an ample cash flow and a
stable liquidity position as at 31 December 2021. The gearing ratio of
the Group decreased from 18.1% to 17.1% as at 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the decrease in total borrowings of the Group. The
decrease in total borrowings of the Group was mainly attributable to
the repayment of term loans from the bank.

The Group generally finances its operation with cash flows generated
internally and bank facilities obtained in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Taking into account the amount of funds expected to be generated
internally and the available banking facilities, the Group will have
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and working
capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement a prudent
policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity level to capitalize any potential business opportunity.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2022, it is expected that the Group will be
challenged by all sorts of adversities as the global market continues
to be shadowed by economic and political uncertainties, including
the prolonged trade dispute between the U.S. and the PRC, the
political unrest among different countries, the expected increasing
unemployment rate in Hong Kong and the variation of COVID-19 that
will continue to cast uncertainty on the business sector of the world,
especially in the coming months in Hong Kong. However, as more
and more countries relaxed the epidemic prevention measures and the
restrictions on international flights, a positive impact on the recovery
of the global economy is reasonably expected. In order to cope with
the complicated and ever changing situations, the Group will carefully
revise the strategy for all its business segments, as well as diversify
and expand the businesses in a cautious way.

Lending Business

Given the deteriorating economic environment caused by the
continuous spread of COVID-19 and the keen market competition,
the Group will take calculated risks when expanding the loan portfolio
of the Lending Business. The Group will continue to use the online
money lending platform to attract more new customers and allocate
more financial resources to expand the business scale by enlarging the
loan portfolio in a prudent way.

Manufacturing and Sales Business and Trading Business

In 2022, the business of the Company will see all sorts of challenges
and opportunities, especially the Manufacturing and Sales Business
of printing products. As a growing number of countries will relax
the epidemic prevention measures and ease the restrictions on
international travel, these initiatives will stimulate the economic
activities within and across the countries and have a positive impact
on the global economy. However, the political and economic tensions
between the PRC and other countries and the war between Russia
and Ukraine may further intensify the uncertainty on the global
economy. All of these factors may negatively affect the demand for
and supply of China-made products. These impact will continue
affecting the financial performance of the Group, and is expected to
persist in 2022 and may have adverse impact on delivering the annual
budget target for 2022.
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All the above factors will affect both export and domestic sales of
the business to varying extents. As a result, the Group will carefully
revise its sales strategy in the expansion of these market segments
and spare sufficient cash flows to weather any sudden or prolonged
adverse situation beyond its expectation. The Group will engage more
overseas sales agents and participate in more overseas and domestic
trade fairs so as to reach more new customers in 2022. On the other
hand, the Group will also continue to acquire new printing machines
and ancillary equipment for the expanded production line to enhance
the production efficiency and lower the defect rate in production
activities. Besides, certain parts of factories will be renovated and the
automation of certain manufacturing processes will be enhanced to
boost the overall efficiency of factories.

Quality management and enhancement and credit control
on receivables will continue to be of the top priority of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business in 2022. Meanwhile, the Group will
keep sparing dedicated resources to expand the luxury packaging and
paper product segment which enjoys a higher profit margin. Although
the uncertainty of the global economy is expected to persist in 2022,
the Group will take this opportunity to diversify into the target market
sectors with tightened control on operating costs.

In addition, to cope with the challenges experienced by the printing
industry and to improve the profitability of the business, the Group
will continue to step up its efforts on the following aspects: (i)
efficiency and effectiveness enhancement by streamlining the
production process of its factories to reduce operation and production
wastage; (i) talent recruitment, provision of value-added services and
continuous upgrade of its technology infrastructure; (iii) procurement
of alternative materials, verification of their quality and negotiation
with vendors for more favourable terms; (iv) market expansion to
cover high value products and identification of long term cooperation
or joint venture opportunities with other industry players to expand
the production capacity of factories; and (v) allocation of more
resources to upgrade of facilities and recruitment of skilled labours
to meet varied requirements of clients. All the strategies adopted by
the Group will further equip it with strength and core competence to
tackle unknown challenges in the coming years.

For the Trading Business, the Group will continue to allocate more
resources to expand and develop the sales team in Hong Kong,
overseas and the PRC and utilize the online trading platform, so as to
broaden the clientele and optimize the product mix.
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Music and Entertainment Business

As mentioned in the business and financial review section of the
Music and Entertainment Business above, the Group and its partners
expect to resume the production of shows in the Greater Bay Area
and more promotional activities are expected to be launched in 2023.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to devote financial resources
to produce and release physical albums and, if appropriate, invest
in potential projects in the PRC and overseas and expand the music
licensing business by acquisition or via licensing of existing catalogues
from other song master owners.

Property Business

As disclosed in the announcement dated 11 March 2022 of the
Company, the Group intends to apply to the People’s Court for
the commencement of the Compulsory Enforcement to put the
commercial land parcels held by Zhongging in Qingyuan for sales
through land auction. The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC intends to
participate in the land auction and this transaction requires approval
from shareholders. If the shareholders’ approval is obtained and the
Group's subsidiary succeeds in the land auction, the Group plans to
develop two blocks of residential buildings with retail shops and car
parks. However, the land may also be bid by other parties and the
land parcels will be disposed of accordingly.

Meanwhile, the Group will engage the PRC lawyer to submit the
application to the Court to further extend the term of the Freeze
Order beyond 12 May 2022 so as to protect the interest of the Group.

As mentioned in the business and financial review section of the
Property Business above, the construction work of phase | of the
industry parks held by Zhongda Qingyuan is expected to be completed
within 2022 and the construction work of phase Il is in progress as
scheduled. Sales and marketing of the industry park is of the top
priority of the Property Business in 2022. The exhibition and sales
center will be established in March, which will be able to deliver a
better presentation of the overview of the industry park. Meanwhile,
the Group will engage more property agents to reach more potential
customers in and adjacent to the Qingyuan City. The Group has work
with local banks to offer mortgage plans to potential customers who
have expressed their interests in industrial buildings or floors therein.
More works are scheduled in the coming months in order to push up
the sales of the industrial buildings.
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Securities Trading Business

The Group expects that the fair value of equity securities listed in
Hong Kong may keep fluctuating in the foreseeable future due to the
volatile global economy. In light of this, the Group will closely monitor
the general market and market data related to prospective investees
before committing to any securities investment, and will pay attention
to the performance of the investments after purchasing as well as
make necessary adjustment to the investment strategy in a cautious
manner so as to alleviate the impact of extreme market swings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases were mainly denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. Except for RMB,
there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of Hong
Kong dollars and U.S. dollars during the Year. The management will
closely monitor the foreign exchange rate risk of RMB and identify
the significant adverse impact (if any) on the Group’s operations in
the PRC. The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging
purpose during the Year and it did not have any outstanding hedging
instrument as at 31 December 2021. The Group will consider using
appropriate hedging solutions when necessary.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property, plant
and equipment and properties under development for sales amounted
to approximately HK$24.7 million (Year 2020: approximately HK$48.3
million) and approximately HK$68.5 million (Year 2020: HK$4.6
million) respectively. The capital expenditure for the Year was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of machineries for production in the
PRC, the addition of right of use assets from the leased offices and
warehouses and the construction work conducted on the industrial
park in Qingyuan City, the PRC.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$269.1 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$2.5 million) which had been contracted for but had not
been provided for in the financial statements for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and construction work on the
industrial park in Qingyuan City, the PRC. The Group did not have
any capital commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment that had been authorised but not contracted for in
both reporting periods. The Group expects to finance the capital
commitments by internal resources.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged leasehold building
and investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$252.1 million (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$205.4 million) to secure the mortgage loan of certain investment
properties and general banking facilities granted to the Group. Save
as aforesaid, no other assets were pledged by the Group as at 31
December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the
Company during the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 1,320 full-
time employees (31 December 2020: approximately 1,400). Total
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the Year were
approximately HK$176.4 million (Year 2020: approximately HK$155.2
million).

The remuneration schemes of the Group are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees, and the reward packages, including discretionary bonus,
for staff members are generally reviewed on an annual basis according
to the performance of the Group and respective staff members. Apart
from salary payment and contributions to retirement benefit schemes,
other staff benefits include participation in share option scheme
and medical insurance for eligible employees. In-house and external
training programmes are also provided as and when required.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
DURING THE YEAR

Save as disclosed below, the Group had no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

Disposal of Profit Link Investment Limited (“Profit Link")

On 21 October 2021, Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited (“Chung
Tai Printing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, SP (BVI) 1
Limited (the "Purchaser”) and Supreme Cycle Inc. (the “Guarantor”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a provisional
agreement (the “Provisional Agreement”), pursuant to which
Chung Tai Printing conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire issued shares of Profit
Link at the initial purchase price of HK$231 million, subject to
adjustments (the “Disposal”). The principal asset of Profit Link is the
Fanling Building.

As at 31 December 2021, the Disposal has not been completed,
pending the fulfilment of the conditions precedent set out in the
Provisional Agreement.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 7 January
2022, the shareholders of the Company approved the Disposal and
completion of the Disposal took place in accordance with the terms of
the Provisional Agreement on 28 January 2022. Upon completion, the
Company has ceased to have any interest in Profit Link and Profit Link
has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

The Disposal constituted a very substantial disposal of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 October 2021 and 28
January 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 17 December
2021 for further details of the Disposal.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save for the completion of the Disposal as disclosed in the section
headed “Material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated
companies during the Year” in this report, the new construction
agreement and the Compulsory Enforecement as disclosed below,
there have been no significant events since the end of the Year and
up to the date of this report.

New construction agreement

On 27 October 2021, Zhongda Qingyuan entered into a construction
agreement (the “New Construction Agreement”) with ERZEIEE
HEMMAEMR AT (unofficial English translation being Guangdong
Weiheng Construction Group Company Limited) (“Guangdong
Weiheng”) pursuant to which Zhongda Qingyuan agreed to engage
Guangdong Weiheng for the provision of construction work to be
carried on the industrial park project in Qingyuan City at the contract
price of approximately RMB191.90 million. The New Construction
Agreement constituted a very substantial acquisition of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to approval of the
shareholders of the Company.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 7 January 2022,
the shareholders of the Company approved the New Construction
Agreement.

Compulsory Enforcement

The Group intends to apply to the People’s Court for the
commencement of the Compulsory Enforcement to put the Qingyuan
Land for sale in the auction. According to the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the auction will be conducted as a judicial auction
through an online auction platform as decided by the People’s Court.
The auction will be open to the public.

The Group may or may not participate in the auction. A special
general meeting will be convened for the purposes of, among other
matters, considering and, if thought fit, approving the Compulsory
Enforcement and the grant of the authorities to the Directors
in advance by the Shareholders to apply for the Compulsory
Enforcement. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 11 March 2022 for further details of the Compulsory
Enforcement.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

The Company acknowledges the important roles of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.
The Company is committed to enhancing and reviewing its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure that they align with
the latest development of the Group.

In the opinion of the Board, save for the deviations disclosed in
this Corporate Governance Report, the Company has applied the
principles of and complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules then in force (the "CG Code"”) throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to the shareholders
of the Company. Every Director carries out his duty in good faith in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations and
acts in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
at all times.

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight members during the Year and as at
the date of this Corporate Governance Report, which include
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for
independent decision-making.

Neway Group Holdings Limited® 2%
l?"“ﬁxﬁl@’&?* (TRRQE)  BmREEM
RTBITAER)) ES (FEEJ)
g (r§$ 1) MRAERRBEE
:—fﬁ—f-_ﬁ_—i— HIEFEE (FZIKE
Bl ZHERANEINARBEERRS

K@T%ﬂ,_\§$ﬁfﬁ'yzﬁ@ﬂ¥?1%
HEMNEE RG] URBREAR

EZ ZRE KRB EHI H E /,\E;t@
B EEERARF2EEERERY
FREERRERERIREEREREEEGELT
DEE TERMARPIES EHiRAY
(TEmMRA)) MR+ PUrrE b EE A
TRz FRIGRXIEFAEHB NG
FERTH - ARBEBINREAHEEE
ERBHR AR ELHES UEEFRE
EEeAEBZRHERE-

EFERR BEAEEERRSIRE
ZRBESN ARBNAFEERAER
EMH EHRAM SR ORAHEES
ié??PE'J(r/ﬁ%é/éﬁfﬁu)zﬁﬁujﬁ%?
HApr#z TRMEX

EEg
8ff

EFTAE A REZEREBEE &
EREREERAT UEERERE
EXRREFZUMBSEARTKRNZE
F-2BREFEREIRDMN I ALERS
FABRREEBEZ R FEME
HORE - BREFRBBRZERNRERZ
ZR RMUTHE > WRZLUEAF
RERRZ BB mITE

+

EEGAHR

BExg ﬁ\$fﬁf&ﬁ\$¢¥g/uiﬁm
BEHEEN\NGRE  BEmBNIT
%\E%#%ﬂﬁ%%&z%%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ
EX-EFENEMRRER K
Rzt FEFGRF/UFEBIR
mo
* EHREE

mE}

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Executive Directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky

Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)
(resigned on 31 January 2022)

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
the following members during the Year and up to the date of this
Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises the following members during the Year and
up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Sun Fat
Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky

On 30 December 2021, the Board established a nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) which
comprises the following members:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

The names of the Directors on the relevant dates are disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”), is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”). The detailed
relationships among members of the Board are disclosed under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 50 to 54.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to (i) the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise; and (ii) the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
existing independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all existing independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
different persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is
primarily responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.

The Chairman has encouraged all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the Company. Directors with different
views are encouraged to voice their concerns and they are allowed
sufficient time to discuss issues in meetings to ensure that Board
decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

During the Year, the Chairman has held meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the executive Directors
present. The Chairman has ensured that appropriate steps are
taken to provide effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole.

The Chairman has promoted a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive
and non-executive Directors.
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EEERERS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for
running the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing
the Group's strategic plans and business goals.

Despite that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman are uncle
and nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the existing non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed for a term of three
years from 5 April 2019 to 4 April 2022, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was
appointed for a term of three years from 19 April 2020 to 18 April
2023, and Mr. CHU Gun Pui was appointed for a term of three years
from 23 June 2020 to 22 June 2023. Save for the above, all other
non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of three years
from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022. The term of appointment of
each Director is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) and the
Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of their respective letters of
appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Bye-laws and the nomination policy
adopted by the Company. Please refer to the paragraph headed
“Nomination Committee” below for further details of the nomination
policy of the Company.
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EXRER/BE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
the legal and regulatory developments and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Briefings
and professional development trainings will be arranged for the
Directors whenever necessary.

Professional Training for Directors

Each of the Directors, namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr. SUEK Chai
Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr. WONG
Sun Fat, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky, Mr. CHU Gun
Pui and Mr. LAU Kam Cheong confirmed to the Company that he
had complied with provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the Year
by reading all materials provided by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and/or attending trainings on
the topics relating to the updates on the new requirements under the
Listing Rules launched by professional parties.

Company Secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan joined the Group as the Company Secretary
since 23 August 2010. Acting as the Company Secretary, Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan reports to the Board and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. She has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings were served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings during the Year. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices were given. All Directors
were given an opportunity to included matters in the agenda for
discussion.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Board practices and conduct of meetings (Continued)

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting during the Year to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest development and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also had separate and independent access to
the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. During the Year,
draft minutes containing significant details for any decision and
recommendation made during the meetings were normally circulated
to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version was open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Bye-laws contain provisions, with certain permitted exemptions,
requiring Director(s) to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Director(s) or any of their respective associates have a material
interest.
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ attendance records

During the Year, the Board held four meetings, two of which were
regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance of the Group. The Company did not
announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the holding
of quarterly meetings necessary.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, the Board committees and at the general meetings of the
Company for the Year is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the Year
REFEHERY,ERETRY

Annual
General
Meeting
held on
Audit Remuneration Nomination 11 June
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee* 2021
RZBZ—F
~A+—H
8172
BEHS 58 BHEAE  FWEET  ReZAL RBEFAE
Executive Directors HWITEE
~Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Emie —BEEmRYE 44 N/A N/A N/A 171
(Chairman) (F/) TER TEH TEH
~Mr. SUEK Chai Hong -BEELRE 44 N/A N/A N/A 17
(Chief Executive Officer) (fTEH#EH) TEH TER ~EH
Non-executive Directors FEHITES
- Dr. NG Wai Kwan -REHEELT 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1"
BB TEHA BB
- Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —BRIBMEE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N
TER TEA TEH
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat —EMEEE 44 22 11 N/A 17
TEH
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRITES
~ Mr. LEE Kwok Wan —FEERE 4/4 212 11 N/A 11
~EH
- Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky —RBHMLEE 44 212 11 N/A 11
R
- Mr. CHU Gun Pui —RIEMEE 4/4 N/A N/A N/A n
BB TEH BB
* The Nomination Committee was set up on 30 December 2021, * RHEEZEEER _Z-_—F+°"8=+H
therefore, the Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during PRI AR B EZEENAFEL EARM
the Year. ER g
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EERERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
was noted by the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve a conflict of interests), appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the designated officers. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board before the designated officers enter into any
significant transactions and they have the Board’s full support in the
discharge of their responsibilities.
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EERERRS

DELEGATION (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the investment management committee (the “Investment
Management Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees are established with defined
written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Corporate Governance Report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAl Sai Wo,
Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of which was independent non-executive Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding such Director’s remuneration.
Remuneration of each Director is determined by reference to the
Group’s operating results, the duties and responsibilities of the
Director within the Company, the performance of the Director
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer in relation to its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the executive Directors and shall have access to
professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
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EEERERS

DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the remuneration of the existing Directors and made
recommendation to the Board in relation thereto.

The Company did not have other member of senior management
other than the Directors during the Year.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are
available to shareholders upon request.

Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of the
investment matters of the Company, and in order to cope with
the Company's business development in the future, a committee
of the Board known as the Investment Management Committee
was established in March 2014 for identifying, assessing and
analysing all investment opportunities for the Group and to make
recommendations on acquisition and/or disposal of the Group to the
Board from time to time.

The Investment Management Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, and Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan throughout
the Year and up to the date of this Corporate Governance Report,
all of whom possess experience and familiarity with financial and
investment analysis.

During the Year, the Investment Management Committee held two
meetings and all members of the Investment Management Committee
attended such meetings.
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EERERRS

DELEGATION (Continued)

Nomination Committee

On 30 December 2021, the Board established, the Nomination
Committee comprising an executive Director, namely Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie (Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan and Mr. CHU Gun Pui. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the appointment of new Directors from
time to time, so as to ensure that it has a balanced composition of
candidates appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board. Before the establishment of the Nomination
Committee, these functions were carried out by the full Board as
the Company at that time did not consider it necessary to have a
nomination committee.

The written terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are
published on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are
available to shareholders upon request.

Since December 2018, the Company has adopted a nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) for the nomination of directors so as to
ensure the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of the Company'’s business strategy and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and making recommendations to shareholders of the Company for
election as Directors at general meetings or appoint Directors to
fill casual vacancies, and in carrying out this responsibility, will give
adequate consideration to the Nomination Policy.

According to the Nomination Policy, Board appointments will
be made on merit and candidates will be considered against an
objective criteria. In assessing the suitability of a proposed Director,
the Nomination Committee will consider the candidate’s academic
background and qualifications; experience in the industry; character
and integrity; willingness and capacity to devote adequate time in
the discharge of a director’s duties; and will also consider whether
the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.
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EERERRS

DELEGATION (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee may nominate or invite a candidate
for appointment as a Director for consideration. The Nomination
Committee shall evaluate the personal profile of each of the
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.
The Nomination Committee shall also undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of each candidate and make recommendation for
the Board's consideration and approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and developing and reviewing and monitoring the codes
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors. During the Year,
the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). In assessing the Board composition, the Board would
consider various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
knowledge, professional experience and skills. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board. Despite the Board does not consist
of any female members as at the date of this Corporate Governance
Report, the Board considers that an appropriate balance of diversity
in terms of experience and knowledge of the Board has been
maintained.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management has provided all Directors with monthly updates
containing such explanation and information to the Board so as to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information put to the Board for approval and the financial position of
the Company.

Further explanation as to how the Company generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
Company's objectives is set out under “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 28 of this report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Group complied with Provision C.2 of the CG
Code by maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the Company is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system while the Board oversees the management in performing its
duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on
an on-going basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the Year, no
significant risk was identified.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the “COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

o Control environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

o Risk assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

o Control activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks for the achievement of objectives are carried out;

o Information and communication: Internal and external
communications to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of the internal control system is
present and functioning.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Internal Control System (Continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable
measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of disclosure requirement in
relation to the Group, which include:

o the access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations; and

o the executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the Year, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually, covering a period of each financial year
and the results are reported to the Board via the Audit Committee
afterwards.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have
been considered during the Board'’s review, which include but are not
limited to (i) changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since
the last annual review and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment; and (ii) the scope and
quality of management’s on-going monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems.

The Board has engaged an external professional internal control
consultant firm, Roma Risk Advisory Limited (“Roma”) to conduct
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and to give recommendations to make any
enhancement during the Year. Such review covered material controls
on corporate level control and revenue and three receivables and
did not reveal any significant defects. Roma has reported major
findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. Relevant
recommendations made by Roma have been properly followed up by
the Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control
review report issued by Roma on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 December
2021 and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this Corporate Governance
Report, the Audit Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (chairman) and Mr. LAI
Sai Wo, Ricky, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. WONG Sun
Fat, the majority of which was independent non-executive Directors
(including at least one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee was a former partner of the Company's existing
external auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee are published
on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively and are available
to shareholders upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function and external auditors before submission to
the Board;

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management systems via the IA function and their associated
procedures; and

o to review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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EERERRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
reviewed the Group’s final results and annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021. The Audit Committee also reviewed with the
management the Group’s accounting policies, the risk management
and internal control systems via the IA function and the effectiveness
of the Company's IA function. It also discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters of the Group, reported to
the Board on material issues, if any, and made recommendations to
the Board. It reviewed the work performed and fees charged by the
external auditors and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the Year have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditors and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 136 to 142.

For the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to HK$1.85 million and HK$1.0 million respectively. The
non-audit services charged by the external auditors of the Company
for the Year included (i) interim review of the financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021; (ii) filling of
tax return of the Company and its subsidiaries; and (iii) professional
services rendered on notifiable transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules conducted during the Year.
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EERERRS

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communications with the
shareholders are essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information to enable shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated officers maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly to the
Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
enquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and
for the shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals. External auditors, the Chairman as well as the chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings of the Company to answer questions from the shareholders.

During the Year, the Company had arranged for the notice to its
shareholders to be sent for its annual general meeting at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and at least 10 clear business
days for all other general meetings.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may
do so in accordance with Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The written requisition
must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the
relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business.
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EERERRS

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting;
or (i) not less than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written
requisition stating the resolution which is intended to be moved
at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on
their shareholdings and related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Director.

All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be uploaded on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively after the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 43, was appointed as the Chairman
since August 2009. He has been an executive Director since July 2004
and the chief executive officer of the Company from November 2007
to 31 August 2009. He is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie obtained an EMBA degree and
a Master degree in marketing from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He had two years of experience
in investment banking and subsequently moved to commercial sector
and acted as a director of a private company for two years. Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie possesses sophisticated and professional management
experience and is familiar with investment analysis. He is responsible
for monitoring the Group's business development and to search
for business opportunities in the PRC market and overseas. Mr.
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is entitled
to receive a remuneration of HK$2,310,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the nephew of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. NG Wai
Kwan, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, is a director of CNA Company Limited and
Longoing Limited, which has an interest in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and Divisions 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 60, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer since August 2009 and has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1992. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. SUEK Chai Hong obtained a Bachelor degree
of Business Administration in Finance from the York University,
Canada. He has more than 30 years of experience in marketing and
is responsible for running the Company’s businesses and developing
and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong has not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there is no designated length of service but his
appointment is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is entitled to
receive a remuneration of HK$1,386,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an
executive Director and the Chairman.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 72, was appointed as an non-executive
Director in March 2007. Dr. NG Wai Kwan holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom. Dr. NG Wai Kwan has over 40 years' experience in global
supply chain management, logistics planning, innovation and
executive and leadership development.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
Wai Kwan and the Group, Dr. NG Wai Kwan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2019 until 31
March 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Dr. NG Wai Kwan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Dr. NG Wai Kwan is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive
Director and the Chairman.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2002 and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director in November 2007. He
is a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. CHAN Kwing
Choi, Warren is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (UK) and a fellow member of the Institute
of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered Global
Management Accountant.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren has over 40 years of experience
in financial management, corporate administration and corporate
finance in several multinational corporations and listed public
companies.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren and the Group, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren has been appointed for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April 2019 until 31 March 2022 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated
in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions
of his letter of appointment. As at the date of this report,
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren is entitled to receive a remuneration of
HK$169,992 per annum.
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Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director from December 1994 to August 2009 and
re-designated as a non-executive Director in August 2009. He is
currently a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. WONG Sun Fat holds a Bachelor degree of Arts from
The University of Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in
electronic products business and vast experience in manufacturing
operations.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG Sun Fat and the Group, Mr. WONG Sun Fat has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2019
until 31 March 2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election and other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of
appointment. As at the date of this report, Mr. WONG Sun Fat is
entitled to receive a remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2013. He is currently a member
of the Nomination Committee, and the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
holds a MBA degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor
degree in Commerce and Accountancy and is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
CPA Australia, and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has more than 25 years of accounting and
management experience. He is the chief financial officer of a sizable
company in Hong Kong engaging in the manufacturing of watches.
He was once appointed as the company secretary of the Company
from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan and the Group, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 5 April 2019 until 4 April
2022 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other
related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules
and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As at
the date of this report, Mr. LEE Kwok Wan is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2017. He is currently a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds
a Master degree of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor degree of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAl Sai
Wo, Ricky is a practising accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky has more than 20 years of accounting and
management experience. He is currently the financial controller and
the company secretary of Jolimark Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2028), whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky was once appointed as the company
secretary of the Company from August 2006 to March 2007.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
LAl Sai Wo, Ricky and the Group, Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky has been
appointed for a term of three years commenced from 19 April 2020
to 18 April 2023 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. LAl Sai Wo, Ricky is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.

Mr. CHU Gun Pui, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2017. He is currently a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. CHU Gun Pui holds a Bachelor degree of
Commerce majoring in marketing and a Bachelor degree of Science
majoring in computer science from The University of Auckland. Mr.
CHU Gun Pui has over 15 years of experience in sales and marketing
field in entertainment industry.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
CHU Gun Pui and the Group, Mr. CHU Gun Pui has been appointed
for a term of three years commenced from 23 June 2020 until 22
June 2023 subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and
other related provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules and the terms and conditions of his letter of appointment. As
at the date of this report, Mr. CHU Gun Pui is entitled to receive a
remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum.
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As at the date of this report, each of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Mr.
SUEK Chai Hong, Dr. NG Wai Kwan and Mr. WONG Sun Fat has an
interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and/
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong
Kong). For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
of the Directors’ Report of this annual report. There is no change in
such Directors’ interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and/or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO from 31 December 2021 up to the date of this
report.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 59, was appointed as the alternate
Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director, in July 2008.
He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU Kam Cheong
joined the Group in 2001. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration and a Master degree in Professional Accounting from
The Open University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom and has over 30 years of
experience in management, sales and marketing.

On 31 January 2022, Mr. LAU Kam Cheong has been resigned as
alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, a non-executive Director.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) present its annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year”). All cross-references mentioned in
this Directors’ Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the Year,
the principal activities of the Group include (i) money lending; (ii)
manufacturing and sales of printing and other products; (iii) artistes
management, production and distribution of music albums and
movies; (iv) property development and investment; (v) securities
trading; and (vi) trading of printing and other products. The
principal activities and other details of the principal subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
143 to 144.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (Year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year 2020"): Nil).
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (Continued)

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate
the shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board has adopted
a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). According to the Dividend Policy,
when determining whether to declare any dividend in the future and
the amount of dividend to be declared, the Company shall consider a
number of factors, including but not limited to:

the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans;

o the Company’s liquidity position;

o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

imposed by the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable
from time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion. The Board will
review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s businesses with analysis using key
performance indicators and the likely future development of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 28.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an aggregate
cost of approximately HK$24.7 million (Year 2020: approximately
HK$48.3 million) during the Year in order to increase its production
capacity. Details of such acquisitions and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no change in the share capital and capital structure of the

Company during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not issue any shares or debentures.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to its shareholders were approximately HK$633.5 million
(Year 2020: approximately HK$637.6 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 308.
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DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
Mr. LAI Sai Wo, Ricky
Mr. CHU Gun Pui

Alternate Director:

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate Director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)
(resigned on 31 January 2022)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws (the
"Bye-laws"), Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, and Mr. LEE
Kwok Wan will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “2022 AGM") of the Company. Being eligible, each of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Dr. NG Wai Kwan, and Mr. LEE Kwok Wan will offer
himself for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

()

(i)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (the “Shares”) (Continued)

Notes:

1. These Shares are beneficially owned by CNA which is in
turn beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek, the beneficiaries
of which include a family member of Mr. Ernie Suek and a
charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.

2. These Shares are beneficially owned by Longoing Limited,
which is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ernie Suek. Mr. Ernie
Suek is the director of Longoing Limited.

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2021, CNA beneficially owned deferred
non-voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the
Company:

Name of subsidiary
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New Box Mini Storage Limited
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Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
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Chung Tai Printing Company Limited
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The Greatime Offset Printing Company Limited
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The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(ii)

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations (Continued)

CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek and the
beneficiaries of which include a family member of Mr. Ernie
Suek and a charitable institution set up in Hong Kong. Mr.
Ernie Suek is deemed to be interested in all the deferred non-
voting shares owned by CNA in the above subsidiaries of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including the interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
ES5EHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of SFO:

Long Positions

FERRER

N _E T —F+_A=+—H '#MEF
FTEl U FALT (RRBZEETHERS
TN BRRIN) 5RRRAD R A8 BA AR (D &
BERBESRBERAIEXVEFE2KRE
3R BOR R RBRFAINE
RERIURBUT -

=)
Approximate

percentage of
the issued share

capital of
the Company
Number of o /NS
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares held BEITREZ
RERETE 819 FriFRe {5 8B =R g
CNA’ Beneficial owner 39,872,000 15.72%
BEm#EAA
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited’ Trustee 39,872,0007 15.72%
SEEA
Alpadis Group Holding AG’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.72%
RIEFLEE 2 #m
Alain Esseiva’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,0007 15.72%
RIEEGEAE 2 #m
Dominik Philipp Heer’ Interest of controlled corporation 39,872,000° 15.72%
RIEEFEEZ #m
Krinya Heer? Interest of spouse 39,872,000 15.72%
BB s
Longoing Limited? Beneficial owner 16,730,0007 6.60%
Bm#EAA
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ES5EHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long Positions(Continued)

Notes:

1. CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Ernie Suek, the beneficiaries of which include a
family member of Mr. Ernie Suek and a charitable institution set up
in Hong Kong. Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Alpadis Group Holding AG, is the trustee of Preserve Capital Trust.
Alpadis Group Holding AG is owned as to 56.78% by Alain Esseiva
and 43.22% by Dominik Philipp Heer.

2. These 39,872,000 Shares duplicate with those held by CNA.

3. Spouse of Dominik Philipp Heer.

4, Longoing Limited is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ernie Suek. These

16,730,000 Shares duplicate with 16,730,000 Shares which Mr. Ernie
Suek is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the Directors, as
at 31 December 2021, there was no other person, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.

FERR (@)

TE (@
braE
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2BHA) APreserve Capital Trustz =
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Esseiva’&Dominik Philipp Heer? Bl A
56.78% 5243.22 % #E 55 ©
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ES5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commenced on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants to take up the options:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(0) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(9) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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Directors’ Report
ES5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the offer may
be made to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the aggregate number of issued Shares at the day on which the
Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 10,193,545 Shares
(restated to reflect the share consolidation effected on 5 April 2016),
representing approximately 4.02% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this Directors’ Report. The maximum number of Shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of aggregate
number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.
Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is a grantee of the options).
Where any grant of options would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associate in excess of 0.1% of the
aggregate number of issued Shares and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of grant, in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant, such further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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ES5EHRS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the
date of the offer for grant of the option.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target
and no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in
relation to an option that has not been exercised.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme. There was no outstanding
share option under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2021
and 31 December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either any directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report
ES5EHRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
none of the Directors or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and which was
subsisting as at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors confirmed that the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is determined
by the management of the Group with reference to the market
conditions and qualifications of the employees. The reward packages
for the staff are generally reviewed on an annual basis, depending on
the staff's and the Group's performance.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual duties and
responsibilities and performance and market practice and conditions.
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ES5EHRS

EMOLUMENT POLICY (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme as set out on pages 64 to 66 above was
also adopted by the Company as a long-term incentive or rewards for
the staff's contribution.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the Year, the Company applied the principles of and
complied with all the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save for certain
deviations. Details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
during the Year are set out in Corporate Governance Report on pages
29 to 49.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this Directors’ Report, an
indemnity provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the date of this Directors’ Report, at least 25% of the issued
Shares were held by the public throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made donations for charitable or other purposes of
approximately HK$132,000 for the Year (Year 2020: HK$476,000)
and has donated a total of 1,250 boxes, each containing 50 surgical
masks to the charitable institutions in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Report
ES5EHRS

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it engages. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to identify
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 73 to 135 for further
information on the work done and efforts made by the Company on
environmental protection and other aspects for sustainable growth
and development of the business of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial performance, operating results, business operation
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out
below. However, there may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below, which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could become material in the future.
The management of the Company meets periodically to discuss these
risks, and where appropriate, will monitor these risks closely and adopt
any necessary risk mitigation measures. In respect of the details of the
risk management system and internal audit function of the Company,
please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” on pages 42 to 45.

Business Risk

The Group currently has six operating segments in various industries
and each operating segment has its specific business risks. For the
Manufacturing and Sales Business and the Trading Business, the
Group is subject to intense competition in terms of product prices and
production costs, and is also affected by seasonal factors prevailing
in the countries of targeted and existing customers. For the Lending
Business, the collectability of outstanding loans and the customer
network of the Group are both affecting the financial performance of
the segment. The Music and Entertainment Business may be affected
by the economic environment of Hong Kong and the PRC as it will
have impact on the consumption behaviors of both individual and
corporate customers. Besides, the demand of the industrial buildings
in and adjacent to Qingyuan City and the economic environment
of the PRC may also affect the sales of industrial buildings of
the Group. To maintain the competitiveness of the Group, the
management of the Company will meet regularly with the head of the
respective business units to keep itself up-to-date with the business
environment.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

Environmental Risk

The Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged to comply
with a variety of environment protection laws and regulations on the
discharge and disposal of waste materials, water and gas imposed by
relevant governmental bodies in the PRC. These law and regulations
govern the disposal of these wastes and impose fines and penalties
for serious violation of environmental requirements, and any non-
compliance may jeopardise the operating licences of the Group's
subsidiaries engaged in the Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Moreover, environmental laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are subject to change from time to time. It may be impracticable
for the Group to continuously quantify the costs of complying with
such laws and regulations, and any further change may also lead
to a substantial increase in the operating costs of the Group. In this
regard, the management of the Company regularly reviews adherence
to relevant environmental laws and regulations with the head of the
Manufacturing and Sales Business.

Market Price Risk

The Group’s Securities Trading Business is exposed to the risk of
decreasing fair values of equity securities as a result of the volatile
market changes. The management of the Company together with
the Investment Management Committee of the Board monitor
the changes of respective securities’ prices and may change the
investment portfolio held and investment strategy whenever
necessary.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out both in Hong Kong and the
PRC and are regulated by their laws and regulations accordingly. In
particular, the Group’s Manufacturing and Sales Business is obliged
to comply with a variety of environmental protection laws and
regulations on the discharge of waste, water and pollutants and the
labour law in the PRC. While any non-compliance may attract fines
and penalties and jeopardise the operating licenses of the Group,
the imposition of more stringent regulations may also increase the
operating costs of the business segment.

During the Year and up to date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 73 to
135.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the 5
largest suppliers combined was less than 30%. The percentage of
revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to
the 5 largest customers combined was also less than 30%.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to maintain a strong relationship with its suppliers,
customers, employees and other stakeholders to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. Please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 73 to 135 for further information.
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EFEHRS

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2022 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at
the 2022 AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") report
of Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the "“Group”), presenting the Group’s performance in
addressing environmental and social impacts of its business activities
during the Year.

Reporting Principles

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX"), focusing on environmental
and social performance of the Group’s printing products
manufacturing and sales business, being the largest business segment
of the Group in terms of contribution to the revenue for the Year. This
report fulfils the “Comply or Explain” stipulation and is centred on the
reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance”, and
“Consistency”.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

Materiality: Material ESG issues of the Group are + Quantitative: Measurements for data are
identified through engaging with stakeholders on adequately described and can be replicated with
similar results. The report indicates which data have
. been estimated, and the underlying assumptions, or

an ongoing basis.
BEM AEENEARE HEREAMET
BARFHENESEMBE -

.
.
.
.

©00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Consistency: Consistency of data, including
comparability with data for previous periods, is
maintained to facilitate meaningful comparison over
time.
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¢ where that information can be found.
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Balance: The Company strives to report its positive
as well as negative impacts along with steps it is
taking to improve its ESG performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Boundary

The boundary of this ESG Report is unchanged from the previous
year, encompassing the ESG performance of (1) Chung Tai Printing
(International) Company Limited; (2) its wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely 12 R KEDRI CRYIN BBRAE (unofficial English translation
being Neway Chung Tai Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited)
(“Neway Chung Tai Printing”); and (3) $REEIR] CRII) BERAF
(unofficial English translation being Kam Hon Printing (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) (“Kam Hon Printing”). These are the three principal
subsidiaries of the Group’s printing products manufacturing and
sales business. For governance section, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 29 to 49 of this Annual Report.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Board assumes the overall responsibility for overseeing the
Group's material ESG issues and their corresponding risks. Supporting
the Board, management representatives and five Executive
Committees are responsible for incorporating ESG risks into the
Group's risk management procedures and ensuring the effective
implementation of sustainability management systems including
SA8000 Social Responsibility Management System, ISO 9001 Quality
Management System, ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
and I1SO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System.
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FRFE - ERELABRSHRES A
EFEALET RS g ()R KRR
(B BRQB ;QEZENB ARG
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - g hELSKRS

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued) EETER A

Management Representatives
BEEEARAR

Labour Executive
Committee

B ITHTEE/VE

¢ Remuneration and
benefits

i Ko AB A

e Discrimination
Erevennon

3 L B4R

¢ Child/forced labour
Erevention

BhIEEERET /5k
ST

. Freidom of association

(o)
=]

Health and Safety
Executive Committee

REZE2NTEE/NAE

¢ Occupational health
and safety

%¥E@&#%

e Emergency
preparedness

i
6N TN

o Work injury
1%

* Machinery
maintenance

e EE

¢ Health and safety
communication

BEEARZ2ER

Environmental Executive

*Committee
IRIERITZE /A

Pollution prevention
JIREES

Resources conservation

BRER

Waste and effluent

EEMI KI5 7K

Raw materials

Gbvipe,

Haggrdous materials
BENE

Air and GHG emission
control _ y
TR MR EREHEN
oL

Extreme weather

events
BRAREE

Ethics Executive
Com_mittee
BEHTEZE/NE

o Busin\es/s ethics
[EESEE

o Informa‘uon disclosure
B Dﬂ?ﬁﬂ%

o Intellectual property
ghts protection
Rk A3 E 1

* Privac ﬁ)rotectlon
[

=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)

It is our belief that sustainability management can bring positive
impacts to the Group including higher operational efficiency and
reduced cost. To identify material ESG issues and risks related
to the Group, stakeholders’ views, and information of other
relevant domestic or international companies have been taken
into consideration. Measures to address such risks are formulated
accordingly and risk management measures of the Group are
reviewed as and when necessary to ensure their effectiveness.

The Group’s core business is manufacturing and sales of printing
products. To monitor ESG performance and ensure that sustainable
practices are incorporated into our operations, a range of quantitative
targets, spanning across all ESG topics, are developed. Our progress
towards the ESG targets is continuously reviewed and targets are
updated if necessary.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of this report. To the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report
addresses all relevant material issues and fairly presents the ESG
performance of the Group. The Board of Directors confirms that it has
reviewed and approved this ESG Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)
Neway's Materiality

To understand the concerns of its stakeholders and identify
material ESG risks and opportunities, the Group engages with its
internal and external stakeholders including customers, employees,
suppliers, investors, the government and the community through
annual reports, surveys, meetings, etc. Topics that have a significant
impact on our stakeholders’ decision making and, on the economy,
environment and society are identified and denoted in bold below:

EFEEHGE
MEMNBTEY

FEEBBEFR HAE - FRFREHA
WERFSNER D E (BEER - EE - f#t
BE -REE B RLR) #ME LT
BEMENRL L EANIERE
HERELRRMNKET - &ZER M
WFEDERRUREEE R RHEE
EEEATE T TEAEERT:

Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Issues of Concern
FrpE&EEE BRRE RESRE

Customers Company website

&R AN B 48
Feedback by phone
BEREER

Formal process for handling

Customer satisfaction

ERRERE

Data privacy

R

complaints

RIEKFNERER
Employees Staff meetings Training and development
] BETEH Bl E R

Annual appraisals Occupational Health and Safety

FEME BERRRZZ
Suppliers Website for prospective suppliers Third party risk management
g BT R AL B=HRAKRERE

Supplier assessment

AR ST

Supplier conference

HEm SR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)

Neway’s Materiality (Continued)

Stakeholder Groups

Communication Channels

EFXTER G
hENELM (B

Issues of Concern

FRE A

Investors

REE

Government

EFF

Community

HE

BERE

Annual reports and interim reports

FRKIPHRE

Corporate communications and
press releases

EERRIEE

Compliance with applicable laws
and regulations
BTBERERRIER

Compliance with applicable laws
and regulations
BTHERERRER

Support charitable institutions
SHAESAS

B EIE
Corporate governance
TtEER
Business operations

EELF

Information disclosure

Bl E

Legitimacy of service and business
ethics

RIS A REEERE

Tax compliance

MBER

Environmental protection
RIB(RE

Contribution to the community
HtE@r S
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group remains committed to mitigating the environmental
impacts of its operations by strengthening its environmental
management approach and keeping its environmental targets on
track.

Environmental Management

The Group has appointed an Environmental Executive Committee and
made it responsible for identifying potential impacts of its operations
through site inspections and reviewing documents. The management
of the Group has the overall responsibility of assuring the
environmental management is effectively incorporated into business
processes, approving the environmental targets, and ensuring efficient
allocation of resources and compliance with the related laws and
regulations. To strengthen environmental management, the Group has
established the environmental management system (“EMS") to ensure
stringent control of environmental factors. The EMS of the Group’s
two subsidiaries, Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing has
been certified with the ISO 14001:2015 standard.

The Group’s subsidiaries have established an Environmental
Management Team led by the EHS management representative
to ensure efficient management in factories. The team handles
environmental issues and takes the responsibility for planning and
execution of environmental practices including hazardous chemicals
control and environmental indicators monitoring. The team manages
these issues according to a series of management procedures ranging
from the management of waste to chemicals and dangerous goods,
energy and resources.

Environmental Performance Tracking

To better manage the material environmental issues and understand
the environmental performance of the Group, both subsidiaries,
Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing have set targets
on eight environmental aspects including air emissions, effluent
discharge, hazardous waste management, resource consumption,
noise pollution and so on. The subsidiaries keep track of the data and
monitor the target progress, aiming to achieve the target in all facets.
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RIGERE
FEBEED—EIRIEATEE /A
THEHEEEBRRGRERBEEXH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Management (Continued)
Environmental Performance Tracking (Continued)

The table below shows the Group’s progress towards the
environmental targets set for the Year. Please refer to the
corresponding sections of this report for details of each target.

IRIZ A€ (@)
RIZEE (8
IRIEXRIIEH (#7)

TRETFERERAFEREER
MERBR - FLEARESHNERSE
81> U T MEEAERNFE

Environmental Aspects Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing Corresponding Section
IRIGEEER £ K ENR ERERENR RS

Energy Consumption >90% achieved
& EEME >90% & 1%
Water Consumption >90% achieved

®

KEIRHFE >90%E1E

Paper Consumption

MLSRHEAE

A\
v

AN

Stationary Source Emissions
EERRIBEHN

S

Mobile Source Emissions

BEREN 100% achieved
100% Z1Z

A

Effluent Discharge
75 KHER

Q

/p Hazardous Waste Management
BEEERYER

‘ Noise Emissions
IR E PR

Partially achieved Energy
BoER AEIR

Water
KER

Paper Usage and Packaging
HREAKREE

Air Emissions

, Ze R
100% achieved

100%3E4Z

Effluent and Waste
Management

BIKKREENER

Noise Management
IREER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Environmental Management (Continued)
Promoting Green Products

In order to promote healthier and more ecologically friendly products
among customers, the Group strives to reduce the environmental
impacts of its products. The Group has established a management
system for procurement of the FSC-certified raw materials in order
to minimize the environmental impacts of its products. We strictly
monitor the usage of wood products in the manufacturing process,
and FSC-certified paper is used in our printing business.

During the Year, the Group strictly complied with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations'. The Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, discharges into water or land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

L Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for environment-
related laws and regulations

IRIBE(RE (8)
IZIEEIE (48)
B EE R

R/TAEPDHEEERR BIRENE
e AEBS DRV HERHIRIEHR
E-AEECREURBEFSCRENER
MENEERG UBER LV ERHIR
EHNEE AFRREEEEBRERK
RmByER  EEDRI B P BEEFSC
SR AYARIR ©

REFE AEEBRRETIAERR
BERRER c AEE LA KB
BREBZREREZEFEERRER
BERERR - BKKREtEsURE
EREEBRRYNELS UREHEE
ERENERTENER

' FB2RERRER & UWTRBERIRER
B EREER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation
Paper Usage and Packaging

Paper is the major material used in our printing production process.
The Group understands its responsibility to minimise its paper usage
during production. To ensure the paper used is produced from well
managed forests, the Group procures only FSC-certified paper.

RIZRE (D)

EAER

REAREE

MRARMENM EEBRPERNE
TR A EERARR EEBRRR
&R MR B R BY BT o A R (R FA (57
MRREBZ I RFEENHM &%
B (IR A IS CER B MR -

Packaging Materials Consumption (Tonne)

BEMBEE ()

0.80

Paper 45K
15,684.81

Other than production, the Group also spares no efforts on saving
paper in its offices and implements green office practices. To utilise
the resources efficiently, employees are advised to adopt double-
side printing and photocopying. Paper consumption is tracked and
managed on a monthly basis to prevent wastage.

During the Year, the Group consumed 15,684.81 tonnes of paper,
784.02 tonnes of plastics and 0.80 tonnes of metals for packaging.
We encourage our customers to return carton boxes for reuse in order
to minimize packaging waste.

784.02

BREEIN > REBIRAER M H
REMORM > L E B AIE -
HERANRER RMEZETXAE
ESIENREEN - 8 AHAKRER B RE
TIBHMRERE  UBFIERE -

MNAFEE > KEEHFE15,684.8 1M 4K
3R~ 784.02MF 2B 5l 570,808 & B (E B 8
ZHR-BMEREAROBEEUFE
B URERIVEERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Resources Conservation (Continued)

Paper Usage and Packaging (Continued)

Paper Consumption Targets

HIRHEBR

IRIRRE ()
EME IR ()
HRERAREE ()

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R EfKENR

Consuming <4.4 pieces of paper per thousand
press pile boards of production units

BTEHR & EBEMAMFERS A BIEL.45R
100% achieved

100%:z#

Kam Hon Printing

ERENENRI

Average monthly consumption of <48,000
pieces of paper

5 A FHFER S B 1#48,0005R

100% achieved
100%:zi=

Water

The Group consumed a total of 160,833.00 tonnes of water during
the Year, with water intensity of 0.26 tonnes per thousand Hong
Kong Dollars revenue. During the Year, the Group did not have any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

Water Consumption and Intensity

HKERRE
170,000 035
0.31 0.30
160,000
§ 0.26 0.25
£ 150,000 0.20
s
‘g 140,000 163,506.00 160,833.00 015
2 0.10
o
O g 130,000
X 0.05
O
= 0 0.00
2020 2021

BT ZEC-F

RNAEAEE REBNEEKES
160,833.00M8 c 3K BEEHN AT T BT
W z20.26MF c M AFE » REBERRF
BRACR A @I E AR

‘ Water consumption
FKE

O-O Water intensity
FKRBE

/FAAE)

& (0§

Intensity (tonnes/ ‘000 HKD revenue)
E\

&
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Resources Conservation (Continued)
Water (Continued)

The Group is dedicated to saving water resources using various
practices including regular monitoring of water consumption, site
inspection and maintenance of water facilities to identify abnormal
consumption of water and prevent leakage. The Group also works on
recycling wastewater and reducing water usage for enhancing water
consumption efficiency. Neway Chung Tai Printing recycles wastewater
by reusing the boiler water and treated water for toilet flushing
while Kam Hon Printing reuses treated industrial wastewater in its
operations.

IRIGRE ()

EAER (4)

KER (4E)
FEBRNDRABIBYEHIKE
R BREEREARAKE -RERER
Mok LGB R E BKE KR
LR 7K o B2 B TR B I 5L [BI U BE 7K s iRt
DRAKE LIESHAKEEKR - RERK
R ZEBEEERBEKKREEEN
7RG R U IR A A3 g 7K > T & R B
RESERRREBHN T XREKER
o

Water Consumption Targets
RkBE

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

Consuming <0.3 tonnes of water per thousand
press pile boards of production units

ST ENR| £ EBAIRVFEKENBIE0.3M

51% achieved

51%&E

Kam Hon Printing

ERENENRI

Monthly water consumption <2,500 m?

& B B/KAiEB482,5001L ;5K

100% achieved
100%:z1=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control
Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions includes emissions from stationary sources
of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) during operations and
emissions from company vehicles. During the Year, the Group's
vehicles emitted a total of 0.48 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx), 77.81 kg
of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and 6.85 kg of particulate matter (PM).

Vehicle Emissions (kg)

BHEWEER (AFT)
100 7.95
6.85
50 89.71
77.81
o 0.51 0.48
2020 2021
—E-EF —EB--HF

To mitigate air emissions, the Group engages in regular maintenance
of all related equipment and has installed treatment facilities for
outgoing air. Neway Chung Tai Printing carried out a Gas Boiler
Revamping Project to reduce NOx emissions. In addition, the Group’s
production involves the emission of VOCs produced from the usage of
printing ink. An exhaust gas treatment facility removes VOC produced
during production. The Group monitors and tests the exhaust
emissions regularly to ensure compliance with the Printing Industry
VOC Emission Standard (DB44/815-2010) and Guangdong Province
Standards for Air Pollution Emission Limit Value (DB44/27-2001).

IRIG (RaE (&)
HE R
ERHEY

AEBNTEREBYEIEEEBREF
E MBS EEREEY R AT
EHNBIHER - RAEE > XERW
EEHEEL043ATRELY~77.81
NTREICYIK%6.85A Fr & 7 Bkl

‘ SOx
iE=Rlg)

NOx

Es=Kia)

PM
RRT R

BB ERER > AEBHTAEARR
HETTHME THHEMN TR
BR IR 5% B o b 2 b oK EN R B A VA R EE
EBFEE LU LR -
SN > AREBBYE E D KR AE R EIRIH S
FREEMESEAERLEEYEER-
BN —EARERERERSMAELREE
BREMEENEREERLEEY K&
B E B AR R S E R R T
BEHRTEESEERICEYHRIZEE
(DB44/815-2010) RREBHR & KR 5%
BER FR{EAZ 2 (DB44/27-2001) ©
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - g hESKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IS5 {(R:E (ﬁ%)
Emissions Control (Continued) BERIZ S (48)
Air Emissions (Continued) EmBEHY (48)

Gas Boiler Revamping Project

MR SRERHIER

By installing low NOx burners in natural gas boilers, Neway Chung Tai Printing has lowered NOx emissions.
Less NOx is produced during combustion when the peak flame temperature in the boiler is reduced. The
Group has replaced the present gas boiler with steam generators, in addition to installing low NOx burners,
to improve steam generation efficiency and minimize NOx emissions.

BBRRARBEZEERRER > PERKRERIZET RECYRVBER - $BIE AN B NIE IR ERERE > iHRER
BEREENGAICYERD  BRZERANIES I REBTELGOIRRINARAENRIE ETRAZRAESE
ME R ARER LRI

, Exhaust Gas Treatment Facility

ﬂ,:l- BE R BRI R It

Ink is one of the most important materials of printing, and VOCs are unavoidably produced during our
manufacturing operations. The Group has established an exhaust gas treatment facility to remove VOCs
before the gas is discharged. VOCs are removed from the exhaust gas using a spray column and activated
carbon adsorption towers, allowing regulation and reduction of VOC emissions. The restoration of the
facility can reduce VOC emissions by 48% approximately.

HERMRAESREENME Z — ERMANEELSSBER R eELBEUERIEEY AEBELRL—E
BERERIER I RN AT SREE MBS - FIAEME BB M RIRMIERIEZE LB RICEMRERTE
B> T P ASA B R D B B M B A S MBI - B 1B %52 i T LURI/L A48 % MIE 8 M B E S HE K ©

To reduce air emissions from motor vehicles, the Group is switching AR OB EN TR AEBEBERT
to high energy-efficiency fuel in vehicles to enhance engine 25 B = BE AT LUIR FHE | R M BE o 1B 9h > 7S
performance. In addition, the Group performs annual maintenance ERSEHERBRERMETHE D
of exhaust treatment systems and examines vehicles’ exhaust gas to BERNER URREREIENE-

ensure exhaust treatment efficiency.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Emissions Control (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

Air Emission Targets

ERFBRER

IRIG (R (&)
HER IS (4
ERmBHY ()

R E R KENRI B R EN R

. Conduct annual test for vehicle exhaust gas
to ensure compliance with the Shenzhen
Motor Vehicle Emission Standard
BFEETEWNEREBCAE > UERTT
BRI B E R RBEMIRE

Effluent and Waste Management

The Group's operations generate both industrial and domestic
wastewater. The Group discharged 8,179 tonnes of effluents in the
Year, representing a drop of 40% year-on-year. The significant decline
is due to the recycling of industrial wastewater in Kam Hon Printing
where industrial wastewater is now being reused in operation after
treatment. The Group strictly complies with the Discharge Limits
of Water Pollutants in Guangdong Province for the discharge of
wastewater. Domestic wastewater is routed to the municipal pipeline
network for treatment, while industrial wastewater is treated and
recycled in the sewage recycling system. Regular third-party testing on
water quality indicators such as pH, chemical oxygen demand (COD),
biological oxygen demand (BOD5), and suspended particles (SS) are
conducted to track the quality of effluents emitted.

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing

2. Monitor the VOC level and other

parameters for stationary exhaust gas

to ensure compliance with the Printing
Industry VOC Emission Standard DB44/815-
2010 and Guangdong Province Standards
for Air Pollution Emission Limit Value
DB44/27-2001
BEEEEUARECESMKEREEERN
HAth & 80 FE{RRF 5DB44/815-2010ENRIAT
EEE M B RACSYBERZE KDB44/27-
2001 ERE KRS B R ERE

BIKRERYER

AEBNESEESY TEREEREK K
FE > REBBEKS, 1798855 7K > [BEETF
[£40% o K1ig TFET R ER e ENRI8Y T
EEEKBEIEER TEEKCEREEE
MAREE AEBBRKRET(ERE
KSR HE R IRE ) FUFR E BEAUEE K o
EEBEKETHERRIE LK
RERIBRESKLOIMAGFEIRF A -
EHHKEEEETHE=FEA Wk
MENCEBEES(COD)-EYEES
(BODS) K ¥ FEHU(SS) > LB ME PR BE IR
SIKBIIKE o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Effluent and Waste Management (Continued)

In terms of waste management, the Group strictly observes and
complies with related laws and regulations which include but are
not limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. To categorize and handle
each type of waste created in the manufacturing process, the
Group has established a systematic waste management approach.
The approach standardizes the waste management process, which
includes waste separation, collection, storage, and control. The
responsibility of monitoring lies with the quality management
department.

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 62.90 tonnes
of hazardous waste and 192 tonnes of non-hazardous waste.
The increase in hazardous waste is due to the reduction in waste
recycling amount and the change in waste classification restriction.
All hazardous waste were transferred to an authorised third-party
collector for handling while the non-hazardous are handled or
recycled by the waste collector.

Hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity
(Kg/ '000 HKD revenue)
EEEREYELE (W) REE (AF/ THITKRE)

80
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0.1
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0.08

250
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0.04 0.04 100
20 2291 62.90
0.02 50
0 0.00 0
2020 2021
—E-TF —E--F

Hazardous waste

BERERY

O-O Hazardous waste intensity
BEBEENEE

IRIGRE (1)
BKKRERMER (8)

EEREVEENE AEBBRETI
BITHERERER SFEEBARIR (T
Bl E RS Y S RIRIGERAE) c R TH
TEBREREENSEEREYETD
BkEE AEEERI—ERFAEN
BYEETT A D ARBTBEYERE
Bz HREEREY B WE -#F7F
RIEZER -EBANEEHEEEEMPIK
%0

RAFEE KREBGHELE62.90MF
EREYRINEEEFREY) - AERE
EZEYRIE N REYIRIWE B FT T %
DR BEM DB RNEE -FTE R EEE
EYEREERENS =T RERE
Bo-MmEEEEYHEY W ERIEE
TREIB T [E] Uy o

Non-hazardous Waste Generation (tonnes) and Intensity

(Kg/ '000 HKD revenue)

BEBERYPELE (W) REE (AF/FEalR)
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0.34 O\O 031
0.2
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIS(F:E (48)
Effluent and Waste Management (Continued) BIKREEYER (8)

Waste Emission Targets
B HERR B 12

Neway Chung Tai Printing and Kam Hon Printing

LA RRRAERIR BB

e 1. Monitor various parameters related to 2. 100% transfer of hazardous waste
effluents to ensure compliance with the 100% BB EEEEY
Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants in
Guangdong Province DB44/26-2001
BERSKEESHMURRTS
DB44/26-2001 (B3R & 7K 5 R BEK

FRE)
100% achieved 100% achieved
100% =4z 100%:z1=
Noise Management REEE
The Group is aware of the noise generated by its operations. A NEENEBEEERELENIRS o NE
noise level target is set to minimize the impact on the surroundings. BT —EARSZ/KFEEEZ  UERSH D
The target is set to be below the noise limits during the daytime HEBERENEZE ZEHEWRIZTES
and at night. In addition, the Group employs external professionals EHRERRBEEENR RS RS o th4h
to monitor and assess the noise level around the facilities in which REBEFEINEEZE A SR KT
it is certified to comply with the Emission Standard for Industrial HEmBEMNREKFE WEBRENS
Enterprises Noise at Boundary. (CTETLERFAREHREE)NE
K o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) IRIB(RE (4B)
Noise Management (Continued) IS EE (B)

Noise Management Targets
IREEEBRRE

Neway Chung Tai Printing Kam Hon Printing
R E R KENR SRENEN R
)INSYA(

Not exceeding 60 decibel (dB) during daytime Not exceeding 65 decibel (dB) during daytime

and 50 dB at night and 55 dB at night

HESEAEEBBE0D ERBEREE BHEZEFEEBB67BRMETSE

#E5077 B #8557 8B

100% achieved 100% achieved
100%:z1 100% =1z

Climate Change RAREE
The Group is aware that climate change may entail operational risks NEEZHFRIEBL O EERKE
such as extreme weather events and sea-level rise. In light of this, the B i XaEE LK EFE EFH-o
Group has established a climate policy in the Year that outlines the BERIIE AEERAEEST—IER
steps and procedures to be followed for to eliminate the risks caused @E&% a7 A H SR RS EE
by climate change. In addition, Kam Hon Printing includes climate- P mEBEN T B RIERFE o Ibih - &7
related risks in its regular risk management system. It continuously Eijl] RlEHGIEERNRMMMNAES
assesses the risks brought by climate change and implements RNEREERK HIFETERES
potential emergency risk assessments and post-disaster reconstruction {EF R R B BTN R 2R BT
and recovery plan to ensure the operations can be resumed in the EURSNBERERMESTE LUEERE
shortest period of time. RENEBEARESE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)
Energy

The Group’s energy consumption comprises of petrol for mobile
vehicles, diesel, natural gas for boilers and purchased electricity. The
major consumption is of purchased electricity. During the Year, the
Group consumed a total of 68,864.50 GJ energy, with an energy
intensity of 0.11 GJ per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

Energy Composition

BETRAR A
70,000
389.56

e 492;%5 [ 847867

50,000 7,263.43 1,088.24
S 1,107.14 0.1
8§85
%—ﬁmi 30,000
S g 20000 54388 6) 58,908.04

ST
?@ 10,000
58
2020 2021
—EoEF ZE--F

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group generates direct greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions (Scope
1) from the combustion of fuel oil used by its vehicles and indirect
emission (Scope 2) from purchased electricity. During the Year, the
Group’s total GHG emissions were 13,717.85 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCO2ze), with a GHG emission intensity of 0.02
tCO:ze per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue.

0.15

GHG Emissions (tCOze) and Intensity

(tCO2e/'000 HKD revenue)

IRIZ(REE (48)

RIEREME (8B)

BETR
AEBNERHECERHETMI S
HNSR BERARKRINBEE o E
EHEAINBEN NAEAEE » KEH
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BRREAETETWGEO I TIKEH
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BREEASTETWZR0.02M — =1L
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O-O  Emission intensity
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)

A major part of GHG emissions is attributable to purchased electricity.
For improving energy efficiency and minimizing consumption, the
Group has implemented several energy-saving measures. A non-
invasive electromagnetic scale control system in boilers is installed to
enhance the energy efficiency, reducing natural gas usage. Besides
opting for energy-efficient equipment, the Group continues to
enhance interior ventilation and regulate the indoor temperature to
reduce air conditioning energy usage. The Group also monitors and
analyzes energy usage data regularly to identify any abnormal energy
usage at its operations.

To enhance awareness about the need for energy conservation, the
Group offers training on resource management to designated staff
from each department. Employees who operate energy consuming
facilities are required to complete the training before starting their
duties.

Phased out the
use of diesel

Adopted non-invasive
electromagnetic scale
control system since 2017
BIZ—tFERAEHRA
NEBHIRKIEBRARR

Initiatives

B BEF& it

Reduce operations
duration of energyintensive
machinery
B S FERE I RY
EITRE

Regular maintenance of
machinery to ensure
operational efficiency
E HR 4 S 1 A L
BARETHE

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERERAT o

B EARBNER

Energy-saving

Improve air ventilation

IRIGRE ()
RIZEME ()

BEREBHFBN—EEEZHLIEKRERN
SNBE ] c RIS IR TR R H
¥ AEBEEME TR KB
W8 R B IR ER A TV B LR KRB R R AR
LR BERME B FEARAR b
TIERENERE AEEEENRERN
708 JEL R 5 BN 2R LURLD ZE 58 BE TR BY 162
Ao nEE T E R R R DT EERFER
g U HEERNEREEER
*ER °

HIERSHBHOERNEBH  ~EELE
BEFFIRvIEE ABIRHEREEE -
RIFERHFARMNE L AR
TERTFER IR

Switch off idle

electronic appliances
FAFAME B 28

Provided energy-saving
training to employees

{8 & 12 {4 B AE 15 3

and regulate indoor
temperature
HMEERER

HAE =R
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R - EREGRS

IRIRRE ()
RIZEME ()

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)

Energy Consumption Targets

RETRUHFER R

Kam Hon Printing

SRENENRI

Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

Consuming <36 kWh of electricity per 1. Electricity consumption <400 kWh/'0,000

thousand press pile boards of production units
STOR4EEEMNAEENBBEI6TRR

93 % achieved

93 %tz

Environmental Emergency Management

The Group places a high priority on preventing environmental
accidents and emergency events such as fires, chemical leakages, and
other natural disasters that can impact the environment seriously.
To prevent emergency situations and guarantee a prompt reaction,
an emergency preparedness and response procedure has been
developed. It specifies emergency management responsibilities as well
as preparation and prevention procedures.

When an emergency situation happens, an emergency response team
is formed and is responsible to handle the accident. In addition, to
ensure that employees are prepared to handle emergency situations
effectively and quickly, fire drills and chemicals spill prevention
exercises are held on a regular basis. During the Year, the Group
conducted a total of 2 fire drills and 2 chemicals spill prevention drills.

RMB stock-in quantity
BARBE T ABENEEETBIR400
T RE
100% achieved
100% &1z

. Energy consumption target for office: June

to September: <20,000 kWh, and October
to May: <15,000 kWh
MAENERBEEBEZ . XBEHLLA :
<20,000FEF > R+BZEAA :<15,000F
FUBs

67 % achieved

67 %z

RIS ER

FEESEERAHRIEZTHNESR
EHEE AR EERRRERE
A EBRERERENBEAKEZ B
IE S IB T AT S A T R AR AR R R 0 3R
FERIER=ERRERBEZRF - H5HR
REEREGNEEUKRELRERF -

EERRBRNBLER R —E-E=/N
H-BERESWo UL BEEET
MFEE AR RREMBEERRE
o HPIERBRITAERERICERR
RIA R B AFE AEBEKETT
2RKNEREBR2REBm R &
o
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE

Employees’ rights, health, and safety are our top priorities. We strive
to foster a fair and equitable work environment in which everyone
is rewarded for his/her contribution and is provided the opportunity
to realise his or her full potential. We care about the well-being and
development of each employee, and we listen to their concerns in
order to improve our management.

Employee Profile

The Group had approximately 1,320 full-time employees as at 31
December 2021, with over 92% of employees based in mainland
China. Male to female ratio is around 13:12. Approximately 81% of
our employees are aged 31 to 50. In terms of educational attainment,
approximately 17% of our employees have tertiary qualifications.
Our team comprised of 25% of managerial staff and 75% of general
staff.

8T

ETREF BERZZEHMEEZL
JEBYFEIE - BAT5 S EE — L FARIE
BT (FIREE - @ AN ZBFE TR E BT
BRI WERE T T ERAE

F IR0 &8 S THI B ALK /e > IR
BREFHIEL)  LUANZZ IR E HE

BEEE

N _E T —F+_A=+—H &&EE
BHEN1,32062BE8 T > HPHI2%
HNE TR BZEHA&13:12
EAXS1I%NE THEH N F31E506%
Z2HE-AHBERESFE  HMN17%H
ETHBAEAEZE HMWERKAH25%
HNEIBABRIS%IEEE TR -
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R - EREGRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued) 8T (&)
Employee Profile (Continued) EEHE (@)
Employee Profile Employee Profile
by Gender by Age
bieqie el gii: DN ST RERDHIESRE
9% 10%

48%

52%
81%
Male Female 30 or below 31-50 Over 50
‘ Bi - oy ‘ 30BR AT - 31 E505% R 505 Mk
Employee Profile Employee Profile
by Education by Function
BHEBE S HHIESHE HERE D R E S B E
i 25%
83% 75%
‘ Undergraduate degree or above (] Below tertiary education ‘ Managerial staff (] General staff
AREHMUE KEMNT BIEAB —RET
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Employee Profile (Continued)

Throughout the Year, the overall turnover rate was 65%, while the
new hire rate was 58%. The graphs below illustrate the employee

turnover and new hires by age and gender.

2021 Turnover and New Hire Rates

by Age Group

T2 —FEREFRAN D ERA LR R EELER

ZEy 220%

zily 175%

60%

46% 49%

<30 31-50 >50
30BEHMU T  31EEESRE 505 E

6%

Turnover Rate . New Hire Rate

KL MERELER

The Group's success is contingent upon a committed and satisfied
workforce. To accomplish this, competitive compensation and benefit
packages are offered to attract and retain talent. Additionally, we
compensate employees fully for overtime hours worked and offer
a variety of paid leave options, including maternity, marriage, and

bereavement leave.

Ny

BT (@
BEME (&)

REEA > BERMKED 65%  MHE
BEEERR 58% TEIFIREFE S
RIEIDHE TRARKMERBR -

2021 Turnover and New Hire Rates
by Gender

TR -FRMNDEIRK LR R EE LR

80

0

62% 62%

68%
II I |

Male Female

B oy

Turnover Rate _ New Hire Rate
TSR HRmLLE

FEBNRNEERN —XZEHBE <
ANmBENETIRM HBERZER &K
PRHEGE DRI EFFE > U
RS BIEANT IS FIHETH
MR EGT2REE TRESES
HINRES ARER BREERR-
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Diversity and Equal Opportunity

We are committed to building a diverse workplace that values dignity
and respect. Therefore, we have zero tolerance for any form of
discrimination or harassment on the basis of age, gender, marital
status, race, religion, or disability. To protect the staff's fundamental
human rights, fair and ethical labor practices are enforced. We
encourage employees to report any form of discrimination to
the human resources department. All cases are dealt with fairly,
anonymously, and in the strictest confidence in accordance with the
Group's anti-discrimination management procedures.

Employee Communication

Employee input and feedback are highly valued by the Group. The
Management Systems Executive Committee has established multiple
channels of communication, including a public WeChat account, to
effectively collect employee feedback and grievances. Additionally,
employees are encouraged to join unions in order to voice their
concerns about labor issues.

Employee Activities

Throughout the Year, we organized various activities to bring
employees closer to the Company, including a grand celebration
of the New Year festival and regular team-building activities. These
activities are designed to strengthen the employees’ connection and
to foster a dynamic work culture.

8T (%)

ZRtRhTFEHRSE
BARIRTE—BERSEBNEE
M2 TTIET/EHFT - At > HFIBFLE
8%~ MER S IEIROR  RER  REERIE
MEAEANERIEEREITET 5
REETHWERAE ZFARNTAFR
BFEBHNFHER - ZMAZBETD
ADERBFIR S E R RIAR < Fr
EEEHNERRAEENRIKFEEE
BF ULERNANETRERE I
BRARIRE, o

BEEE

BIRRARBERIFTEERNSESE
R-BEEBRRATEE/NEBERIZE
BRERE BRERMEARKRT UAXN
WEB TR REERFE UL > I
BETITMATE URERSHSHMH
RERYRE L ©

8TZ%

RAFEE > BRPEBSETENUNFTE
THARANBNER  SFEBANHEE
R R EHN B ER T - ZEE
FEEMEET 2 EMNKME  wiZEs—
EEmE I ITEXXE e
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

We have a stringent policy that details procedures for preventing child
and forced labor, as well as corrective measures in the event of any
instance of underage or forced employment. The Human resources
and Administration Departments supervise compliance with our policy,
while the responsible department safeguards the rights, health, and
safety of the minor worker, if discovered.

The Group respects employees’ freedoms, including their right to
work, resign, work overtime, and move. We prohibit forced labor and
management has established channels for employee complaints, for
example, through employee representatives and suggestion boxes, to
allow employees to express their opinions and feelings at work.

The Human Resources and Administration Department strictly verify
the identity card and other documents during the recruitment process,
and the age and other data are confirmed before filling in the
Employee Induction Information Registration Form for recruitment.
If any juvenile worker is found, the company takes the following
measures.

BT (@
BiIEE T Raatis T

HPIRA —BERBER  sFEEEND
IEE T Roahl s THER  MREEE
ERRMEHBBMESFRERIAE
Bt o NN EIRBIFIRITEERFIEE B 3L
FIBRIETIE R MABEMFIRER
BRETA (MR NEN BERE

2o

AEESESTHNEH GFEMMIT
B~ BHE - MR MBAVER] - RFAIEE
ke85 EEERIBTIRAE
BoHMBREEIARKRERME #EB
THIFHREBCHERRRR

ANERRITHEEREBEREDER
ZESMEREMEN ER(EIA
BiE BERR)ETHER LR Fi
REMBR - HERBARRFEFEL A
B R A A T B T ©
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour (Continued)

For Worker under 16 years old

Bt 16 RUTHIA

BT (8)
BhLE & T Reag 85 T (48)

For Worker between 16 - 18 years old

Hit16 E18 BT A

e Immediately stop the worker's work and settle all
his/her salary.
VEMEIEZ T AMI E U4 EHEE TE -

e Check worker identity details and find out the
reasons for the fake entry into the factory. Report
to the local public security authority if found to be
forced.

BETANEMEE LXEEREALKRNE
o 2 IREEIRIB > B M E M A LR S o

e Arrange health checks at the local Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention and notify the
local labour security authorities.
REMERZERBHPOZHRERS  LHENE
S B IRFEERPT o

e Provide sufficient financial assistance to the child
in a low-income family to finish compulsory
education until 16 years old.

RIBWARENTZ FIRMEEMNFTFEEE  FH
TREFHEEE 16 % e

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations? that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

g Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Labour-related g

laws and regulations

Strictly comply with the Regulations on Special
Protection for Juvenile Workers.

BBASET CRAIVF TR AR IRERE )

Prohibit harmful and risky work arrangement.

RiIE2HASEhBERRB T

No overtime or night shift shall be arranged.

NS LMK

Physical examination as required.
BREETRRE

Register with the labor administrative department.
ESEFEEIFIETER

Establish special files for juvenile workers and
regularly understands their work, physical and
living conditions to effectively protect the physical
and mental health of juvenile workers.
BUAMFIEERZ THITRETE -S558
REFEER EBRERNELS OEE-

RAEEE AEBTANEBEAER
BERARBERBERE BERE  LIFE
B FFERE 2 RSB
HthW G B KRB BAR RO AH A
ERGEHERTENSE

FB2HERRER 8 UTRESTH
RARYERRER
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour (Continued)

2021 Targets and Indicators

—E_-FHNERRER

000 The Group
TEE
1. Zero employees aged 16 or below
eRIUTHREEHERE

100% achieved

100%zZ

BT (&)
BrlEE T R 3EHI% T (&)

. 100% coverage of employee social

insurance
100% 8 T2 EEHT B REMRE

100% achieved
100 %z

Training and Development

Enhancing the competency and professionalism of our employees
is critical to ensure smooth and efficient business operations. We
organise various training programmes including pre-employment
training, on-the-job training and transferee training to develop
employees’ capabilities. While the HR department oversees and
monitors the overall training and development strategy, each
department is responsible for determining the actual training needs of
its members.

To ensure training quality, we assign individuals who possess relevant
teaching or professional qualifications such as ISO 9000, ISO 14000
and FSC to conduct training involving technical knowledge. A training
team regularly reviews the effectiveness of training by conducting
evaluations and investigations. In addition, employees are assessed
on their level of understanding through oral examination, written
examination and practical examination. Their attendance and
examination results are recorded for future use. Based on operational
needs, the Group encourages and subsidises employees to take part
in external courses also, when deemed desirable. During the Year,
the Group conducted training amounting to 21,099 hours. The main
training contents are outlined as follows.

1 EN B 3

RIHEEMEN R EEKFTHEFRM
BREVHNEFZEREEE - KIS
M2 IEEEE 8 B IERRT I ~ TR
Bl EEIEI UEREENE -
EANERBEEREEEREIIK
HRREHFER  EMPIEEFREHM

ERNEREIIRE-

BERBIEER XMZIKABERHE
HERHEER (HUMISO 9000150
1400052FSC) B9 A 3R L7 Se 352 7 R0 8%
EEH o BB ETHERAE  BIIE
BXE BRI st BE A B B Uk o b5 B B
BRSO -ZFEAREEESH  UFHE
MPIERREE -t HEEREEH
EREWERFHRAGR - RIESES
By AEETER RN AEBENBERLT
EREEZSHANIBIBIlc RAEE » K
EEETH21,099NEFREEc EEF
INRNBBEUWT
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R - EREGRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued) BT (&)
Training and Development (Continued) 1E R (48)

On-the-job training

Pre-employment

B A B ER

Company background, organisation e Operational procedures and e Qperations and responsibilities of
introduction standards the new position
REEREBENE EERFRRE B AIAEE RS
—) —)
e Industrial and fire safety e Maintenance and operation of

THERHBZR equipments
R RARE

e Environmental policies and targets

RIEBERERE e Sustainable and green procurement
BB R IR (R RS

e International standards
AR AE

e Labour safety management
FTL2EIE

J
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Training and Development (Continued)

The Group arranged sharing seminar and specialized skills training
this year offered by external trainers. These serve to enhance their
production knowledge and also enable employees to exchange values
regarding different perspectives, which enhance their capability for
handling respective crucial areas of business operations.

In addition to hard skills and technical knowledge related to daily
operations, the Group believes that EHS management is important
to sustain long-term development. For instance, we provide staff EHS
training and even winter fire drill training to employees. Through the
comprehensive training, we aim to strengthen employees’ mindsets
in respect of sustainability and safety and health development. These
programmes also help enhance performance when dealing with
various situations. During the Year, the overall employee training
percentage is approximately 94%. The detailed training hours and
percentage by gender and function is listed below.

8T (%)
Hall R 3 R (%)

REBRARFE LRI EBE I B2
HHODEMHNERBERERIN -ZF
BHNBBN RS E TAVEEMF > TR
BTREMUETENAREREBER 1t
MESREEAEXBEETSHEE
EBYEES]

R B % 8 = AE R B BE 5 A R BT Al
N AEERR/RR - REHEZEE
BEHNERRBEERIIFEEE -HIW
MRETRHERE BREZ2EI
EERBTRELFHEZHE 3K
PEEEBEZBEEZENEIIMBEET
ERBERRLEHREREERTE
WIEZ - ZFFEITANNESRES
BERRNRFE -NAFE ETHE
AE IR I LE B 49294 % o 2 M Bl A i e B
palS R bl S e d= D N vl ey
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued) 8T (&
Training and Development (Continued) il KkERE (8)
Average Percentage of
Training Hours Employees Trained
3 3935 2 B R EREIEEMNE DL
2021 2021
By Gender 1% Bl
Male B4 16 30 94% 96%
Female M 16 30 95% 98%
By Function B BE
Management EIEE 15 19 94% 97%
General Staff ZEET 16 34 95% 97%
Occupational Health and Safety BEERERLE
We place occupational health and safety of employees at the top of BEAEEINRBXEELZENETE
the priority list. In this regard, the Group is working nonstop to put BB At "REBIEFAEHES
in place a comprehensive set of rules and operational procedures to HE—E2EMIBEE RIRIERRFE » LU
avoid any OHS hazards. The Group’s manufacturing facilities continue CENBEREREREZENEE-KAER
to be certified to the 1SO45001 standard for Occupational Health and MWEESMNATSRERERLRSLSD
Safety Management Systems. When it comes to OHS issues, we follow EIERERISO450011F 2% o B K Bl B =
the following overarching safety principles. BERZE2EER  RMAEEUTEE

R 2RA-

Safety Principles
ZZRA

Prevention-oriented

A RE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System

Securing a work environment free from occupational health and
safety hazards entail collaboration. Representatives from various
departments work closely together in the Environmental, Health and
Safety (EHS) committee to take up their respective responsibilities for
addressing various safety-related concerns.

EHS management representative

R -RRAZEZNEEEAR

The management representative on the EHS committee oversees the
overall execution of the OHS management system and communicates
with relevant parties. Under its supervision, the occupational health
team is responsible for preventive measures against occupational
diseases as well as various health hazards including noise, dust
and virus infection. A safety officer assumes the role of managing
environmental hygiene and food safety issues. Moreover, a qualified
first aider is stationed at each department to perform first-aid in case
of injuries occur.

As a printing products manufacturer, when using machines OHS
becomes a major concern. We have therefore set up a designated
industrial and fire safety team within the EHS committee to ensure
that our machines and equipment are operated safely and properly
and are well-preserved to minimise the risk of accidents and injuries.
Within this team, a fire team head is also assigned for preventing fire
incidents.

BT (&)
BEERRER
BEBEREEEERT

METRRBERBERZELSHNIMF
RIERER T GE- ANRBFIVAKRE
RIF-REHEZE2ZE/VEARRES
B LABRSEEEREFNRARZEEH
FHNSE-

Occupational health team

el 2 {2 R I X

Industrial and fire safety team

TERHR 22 E B

Environmental management team

RIGEEEFK

BRI -BEALEZE/NVENEERER
ARERBERREALZE2EERFENE
RATREERAL BB THEER
T RBEREERESHERRATE
RELE (BERE BEKRSRD
BFERHE I - £ 2 TEREERIRIREH
EREBMEZEFEENBE LI 5
BRI ERE - REGERZHE IR
ZERETZR

ER—RBEREREER  EfEMAMKES
R BEBRRZEAAIPINEEM
oA BRFNEBRE -BREEALZE2S
ENEARILEEEIRERENZEE
B ERKZFANKERREDZER
ZEMBRFLRERY  LURBREIN
REERR - RILE BT REB RS
Ik—2 E R LA L8 &k K E A o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
OHS Management System (Continued)

To protect employees from safety hazards and occupational diseases,
all employees are equipped with personal protective equipment in
accordance with their respective work-related needs. For employees
who are engaged in toxic and harmful operations, we arrange health
check-ups before they report to duty, during the employment on an
annual basis and before they leave the post to identify and eliminate
occupation-related health issues in advance. During the Year, the
Group did not record any cases of occupational diseases.

Combating Potential Safety Hazards

To combat potential occupational risks, we use a prevention-oriented
approach in accordance with our safety-related principles. During
the year, we maintained a List of Hazard Identification Evaluation
and Control Measures to list sources of risk, potential hazards, risk
assessment of different work activities in different work zones. The list
also provides control measures to guide the employees on preventing
safety hazards.

Our fire safety management policy requires employees to get
authorization from appropriate departments before using fire inside
business facilities, such as manufacturing sites and offices, in order to
eliminate fire hazards. They should smoke only in approved areas and
should never place things in corridors or emergency exits to hinder
evacuation routes. Furthermore, the Group conducts a monthly fire
safety inspection to identify any deficiencies in fire-fighting equipment
and corrects them as soon as possible. We also hold fire drills at least
twice a year to improve our employees’ safety awareness as well
as their capacity to respond to crises. The drills are used to practice
evacuation protocols that should be followed in the event of an
emergency.

8T (%)
BERRRZZ (B
BERERZZEZRT ()
HRERERRZE2EBERBERR
FFEREREREZBNIEEREEZEY
BERAAREEB - MREAFRES
WEEZREEMS  HAGRMMET
BEN TEABSE -—RKBERATZ
HHERIRE - LIS ol Bl ROH BRI RS
HENRREE -NAFE  AEEL
BREEMUBERNEZ-

BriE 22 [EE

A THIEBEENRERRE  HFIRER
EHEARA KBUERBSENTG A
FR > BAFE 0 ERHER TG R E
HIFEHES B » LIS AR T F&E R F
TEARSR AR EECK BT
fhoZBRIREERIER IFEET
AheERE-

BPRHEZ2EEBRAEREREN
TEGARBARAESFEBRMEARKX
A1 RIS EI B RS FIRY R - LUBBR
KRR - M FIRERTEE & AR
&> AR EBRE=HOREYH+
FEEREBE I AEESRET
H B % 2R E L R H B & BV
ARG WRRFUAE - BRPITEEE
DEITMANE RS LIRS EINZ
EEHRUREHRBHNE EBAN
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R - EREGRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued) BT (&)

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued) BERRERZE (B

Combating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued) BrIt 22 [EE (1B)

To avoid serious injuries and accidents including fire and explosion, ABREBRESELEI (BIFENK KR
we have a hazardous chemical goods management policy in place to YE) BRI EEELEREEREL
regulate the purchase, storage and use of chemicals. EEtE2RNBEE HEMER-

Chemical
Storage
#EFE2m

Chemical
Use

fEA{E2m

Use non-hazardous goods instead of hazardous chemicals as much as possible
B EERAESEEAMIFEStEER
Purchase of hazardous chemicals requires MSDS (Material Safety Data Sheet)

BEREVHNZ2EEBERNESCER

Each department should keep a Chemicals Inventory List to ensure proper management
REFIABBRILERTFEIRUBERYEEE

Dangerous goods must be stored in indoor environment with sufficient ventilation
ey BREER RS RHRRNENIRIE

Chemicals should be labelled with MSDS and sealed properly to prevent leakage
E2RENBYHLZ2BBRRNRE L ZESH M UK LERE

Dispose spillage and leakage only in designated containers

EREEAREE AL KRR

Wear safety protection equipment including goggles, masks and gloves when handling chemicals
REBCERERBZ2REEE NEER - OSRFE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Combating Potential Safety Hazards (Continued)

In the event of fire or explosion, stringent emergency procedures are
followed to control the situation and minimise injuries and deaths.
The measures include notifying the rescue department at once,
initiating evacuation when safe and trying to put off the fire with
fire extinguishers under feasible conditions. When there is a leakage,
employees should cut off power and isolate the spreading of liquids, if
any.

During the Year, there were 19 work-related incidents and the
number of lost person-days due to work injuries was 348. There were
no work-related fatalities reported in the past 3 years. The Group was
not aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations?
that have a significant impact on the Group regarding the provision
of a safe working environment and protection of employees from
occupational hazards.

Safety Training

It is critical to foster a safe culture in the workplace. Varying types
of training programs are available to satisfy the various needs of
employees in this area. New employees and those who are transferred
to new positions are given training specific to the position’s safety
requirements. Similarly, individuals participating in special operations
or working in positions with higher hazards are given specialized
training to ensure that they have the necessary knowledge and
capability to satisfy operational requirements safely. Relevant training
programs are organized for managerial employees on a regular basis
in order to help them manage and supervise the implementation
of rules and regulations imposed by both the government and the
Group. We engage with suppliers and contractors to ensure they are
well-informed on the newest safety policies, in addition to caring for
the safety of our staff.

E Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Health and Safety-
related laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)
Safety Training (Continued)

2021 Targets and Indicators

—EC_-FEHRRER
00O

(g

The Group
TEE

Zero case of occupational disease

%*Hﬁﬁfﬂﬁ

2. Zero incident in relation to combustible substance explosion, fire
incidents induced by chemicals, smoking, open flame operation and

circuit

SRAMAIMYEIRIENZEHEURICEYE - RE BANEERE

E&SIRERY M K

3. 100% coverage in employee OHS check-up
100%E THESHERBERZEME

4. 100% coverage in employee EHS knowledge training

100% B TR ARMIRE - BREAZ 2N HIE

Combating COVID-19

Because of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group proactively took
measures to help its employees guard against infections. We
established a task force to plan and respond to the impacts of
COVID-19. The Group developed preventative measures and
published guidance documents on workspaces for cleaning
procedures, social distancing practices, etc. The Group also
implemented temperature screening at selected locations and
provided gloves, free surgical masks, and hand sanitisers to the
workforce continually.

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERERAT o

BT (&)
HERRERZZE (B)
L2115 (8)

100% achieved
100%:z1=
100% achieved
100%:z1=

100% achieved
100%:z1=
100% achieved
100%:z1=

#iicoviD-19

AR COVID-19&8 17 > A& B &M H EX
En BB HESMHSBRII c MM
— B 4% R /NAE LR B B FE 1 COVID-19
MR . REBBEH ETERSE > I3
HmEBIIESFNBEERRE X IR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OUR PEOPLE (Continued)
Community Involvement

Our community investments reflect our commitment to social
responsibility and care for those in need with a specific focus on
environmental, health and social projects. During the Year, the
Group made donations of approximately HK$132,000 in community
investment. The volunteer team has participated in community
services for a total of 3,982 hours. To contribute to pandemic
prevention, we have donated 1,250 boxes of surgical masks to
charitable institutions. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to
explore opportunities to give back to the society and build a more
connected and mutually respected society.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group upholds a high-quality standard for its products and
services through close communication with its customers and
suppliers.

Quality Management and Assurance

Overseen by the Chief Executive Officer, the ISO 9001:2015-certified
quality management system has been implemented. Requirements
and standards under this quality management system are listed
in the Quality Handbook. Clear responsibilities are assigned to
designated departments for the effective implementation of the
quality management system. We conduct internal and external audits
annually to ensure that quality management system complies with
regulatory and other requirements.

8T (%)
HtE2 A

EANHERIEARMRTRMAYHESE
ENEARERHEEENANBRE L
HEAFRE BEKRMTEEE NAFE
ErZEERTERASTENBRY
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EEEEARE

MITHERER AEEEKE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - HEKREGRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED) EEER (8)
Quality Management and Assurance (Continued) BEEEERE (@)

Working Environment T {FIRIE

e Provide a comfortable working environment to maintain productivity
RESENTIFRBEUEREES

e Eliminate both physical and psychological pressure that affect services
HERT ERFER B B8 R OIEEE )

Monitoring and Evaluation B %8 Jz 371

e Ensure the entire production process is in compliance with national and international standards
EREELERRFETERREFERE

Knowledge 138

e Embed knowledge obtained from both internal and external sources into operations
A P EB R S BR SRR 1S HO RN B R A 0

e Internal sources include previous experience while external souces come from customers and suppliers feedback
WEBORBIF BT AR MIMIRAISERE R RERENRE
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Quality Management and Assurance (Continued)

We follow a set of strict control procedures and operational standards
when managing product quality. During the quality assurance and
production process, we ensure that customers’ requirements are
identified and met. We monitor the quality standards of our suppliers
and sub-contractors by conducting assessments and testing on the
materials delivered. Products are protected from potential damage
through proper storage and transportation. We establish annual
quality targets on numerous aspects and conduct monthly reviews
and assessments on the achievement rate. We also set product safety
targets and follow up annually on our performance.

Customer Satisfaction

It is our belief that understanding the concerns and feedback of
customers is vital to enhancing the quality of our products and
services. Customer satisfaction surveys are conducted annually to
collect customers’ satisfaction ratings on our product quality, product
delivery, compliance with environmental requirements, service quality
and technical support. We also collect customers’ expectations and
advice for continuous improvement.

2021 Targets and Indicators

“ET-FERKIER

EERR @)
HEEIEHERE (@)
REEBEREER RMAEBE—EER
HEGIRER MIREEE - EFEERER
FEBEREF BMABERELHNEREE
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RHETFHE A BAREE RS E
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EFEEREUFEESEZE WwHEEZXK
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Z2EE UESFHHMNWKRITETIEE
;Eo

ERREE
HPBRETHEERPNBERRERRE
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PHEEHEETER MEERE MUK
EXRPHRMNEREE - ELXXM
REEMNEREER REEEREMX
BRmMEENE BT ERT P
EhEH LEFRENE

The Group
ER

000

i

. Customer satisfaction > 95%

BERMEE >95%
Neway Chung Tai Printing
R E R KENR

100% achieved

100% iz

Kam Hon Printing

SREREN R

99% achieved
99 % :zi=
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Customer Satisfaction (Continued)

To ensure that our products meet the requirements of our customers,
we follow a set of procedures when there is a situation warranting
product recall. Before the product process, the Production Department
ensures that the working procedures and use of materials are correct
and meet customers’ requirements. If any defects in materials
are identified, the product recall procedures are activated and
rectifications are made.

The Group maintains close communication with its customers when
dealing with unqualified product recall matters. When recall requests
are received, the Recall Team analyses the cause and suitability of
recalls and initiates the recall process within 48 hours. Corrective
actions and preventive measures are conducted to improve the
product quality. In 2021, there were 213 complaints received and all
were satisfactorily settled.

We continuously receive feedback from our customers which helps
enhance product and service quality. Once customer complaints are
received, we follow the complaint handling procedure stipulated in
our customer communication management procedure to settle and
resolve complaints.

Verify the issue Conduct
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g ﬁ ;‘ﬁ = r_ (n‘ﬁ)
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Responsible Advertising

The Group conducts advertising activities in a responsible way, as this
affects its own branding as well as the image of others. We ensure
that our advertising materials do not contain false or misleading
information about the product’s quality and properties. We safeguard
the reputation of our business partners by prohibiting advertising
practices that could damage the goodwill of competitors, infringing
their commercial secrets or engaging in illegal market dealings.
Practices leading to unfair competition of any kind are also strictly
forbidden.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations* that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress. No products sold or shipped are subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

Supply Chain Management

As a printing products manufacturer, the Group strives to ensure
safety and quality of inks and other materials. In this regard, the
Group actively engages with its suppliers and subcontractors, as their
performance directly affects its product and service quality.

To ensure that our suppliers are properly selected and managed,
we follow the Supplier Management Procedure which stipulates
the requirements of supplier selection, review and documentation.
We select suppliers according to a list of selection criteria, including
reputation, quality, safety and environmental permits, quality,
environmental performance and reasonable price. We prioritise
suppliers that actively protect the environment and human rights.
After initial selection, we conduct surveys, third party testing and
on-site audits to further assess their performance. Selected suppliers
are required to sign environmental commitment, quality assurance
agreement and CSR agreement.

= Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for product
responsibility-related laws and regulations
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Supply Chain Management (Continued)

To maintain the quality of products we receive from our suppliers, we
conduct monthly assessments of major raw materials suppliers. They
are rated and graded according to the material quality and technical
support. Environmental and compliance risks of suppliers are also
assessed. Corrective actions are required for non-confirming suppliers.
We conduct annual site visits to monitor the suppliers’ performance.

EERER (@
HAEEEIE (8

HERRMBEHERESNERESE
HPERYITERMHERETT
fhoREMBEERRME  HHE
THEMD R - HEFNRIEREHER
B 7R T LUST A o B R FESB RO Mg
BRI EER HFISFETEME
2 DI RIMHEmBIRIR-

Green Procurement

BE5E
European and US Standards
BN ZEE%E

Sony Standard

=R

Panasonic Standard
MTRE

Waste/rubbish classification
=LY Ve S

Emergency Plan

FE=EtEl

Supplier Selection
Criteria

HEBTREE

Manage chemical safety using
Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)
EAMBZ2HERER(LERE

During the Year, the Group had a total of 941 approved suppliers and
sub-contractors, of which 48 are located in Hong Kong, 887 are in
mainland China and 6 are in other regions.

Security Management
Zhh EE

Security management system
R ERRAS

Control of the process of storage and
transportation of goods
EEREVNRERERREF

Control of the personnel in and out of factory

BEEHATIRHAS

Quality Management
mEEE

Certification of 1SO 9001
ISO 9001:3%

Quality management measures

mEEEER

Prohibition of child labour, forced
labour and prison labour

FIEHET RS TREMET

Safety Management
ZEERE

RAEFEE > AEBHAIAIRV A HE
BaDEE HPI8RAUNEH > 887
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Sustainable Procurement

The Group is committed to adopting green and sustainable practices
across its entire supply chain. To protect the environmental and
human rights, we use only FSC certified paper and adhere to the
FSC Chain of Custody management manual when managing these
products. To ensure effective implementation of the FSC standard,
we keep documentation of procurement for at least 5 years to
ensure traceability and integrity of relevant records. We follow all
requirements and procedures for managing the quality of FSC-
certified products. To prevent mixing FSC-certified materials with non-
FSC certified materials, we ensure that the paper is properly labelled,
with quantity and weight precisely marked before storage.

To make our products more eco-friendly, we have in place the Green
Product Management Handbook, which guides the selection and
management of greener products. We follow environmentally friendly
procurement policies, prioritising environmentally friendly suppliers
and actively seek international environmental certifications. During the
procurement of paper, we maximise the use of renewable materials
and prevent purchase of materials from unauthorised sources. We
ensure environmental compliance for all materials through inspections
and testing.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects and safeguards intellectual property rights of
its own as well as those of others. Our major subsidiary follows the
Intellectual Property Rights Assessment and Protection, ensuring
compliance with relevant laws and regulations and protecting the
Group's copyrights. We make sure proper documentation and follow
prescribed procedures when applying for patents, ensuring there
is no infringement of copyrights by restricting the use of company
information and signing contracts with our partners. We have in place
a whistleblowing mechanism to report any potential infringement of
the Group's intellectual property rights. In 2021, the Group obtained
1 patent. During the Year, the Group was not involved in any litigation
relating to infringement of any intellectual property rights.
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Data Privacy Protection

The Group is committed to protecting data privacy and security of
its stakeholders and employees, ensuring strict compliance with the
Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
through close monitoring. Protective measures in force in offices
and production sites are listed in the Product Confidentially Control
Policy, safeguarding the data of suppliers, customers, consumers and
employees.

Suppliers and Clients {{tEERE A

HERR (@)
BIRIETL (R

FEBR NN FREFNEREENH
BRAKRZE BEZRUVEERRR
BET(FEARHEMNEREAESFRE
&) EmRBERBERPIEMERE
REEGMFRERER TR HEE
B THENABRREE

e Entering confidential production areas without being accompanied by staff is prohibited

BIEEWESTRRA T EARBEEES

e A confidentiality agreement is signed with clients for every order received

W EINEEITBERERRERBMZ

e An appointed person from each department oversees the entire production process

BHWPIEE—RAEEREELEERR

Employees fE&

e Strictly comply with the Employee Code of Ethics which forbids disclosing or publishing of any confidential

documents of the Group

BERETEIEERETI EPRIEREFBMEIERBTAEB T

e Training and inspection regarding data protection and privacy are provided annually

FEEEFRHEAMBERFRERMLENEINIREZ

e New comers are required to sign a confidentiality agreement

WMARE AR RE &
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Anti-corruption

The Group places the highest value on integrity and honesty in
its business dealings and ensures ethical behaviours on part of its
directors, officers, shareholders, and customers. As such, the Group
has set forth our Business Conduct Guidelines, which commit us
to the highest ethical and legal standards. The Group has a zero-
tolerance policy against any form of corruption including but not
limited to bribery, fraud, money laundering and conflict of interest.

The Group prohibits all forms of corruption and fraudulent acts.
We have developed a well-defined distribution of responsibilities
among our staff so as to formulate the guidelines for behaviors.
When necessary, a suspected case of corruption or fraudulent action
is reported to the concerned authority promptly. Staff from all
departments are required to complete anti-corruption and anti-fraud
training. During the Year, our staff and directors have received training
on anti-corruption laws and policies.

The Group has achieved the annual target of zero corruption activity
reported in 2021 and was not aware of any non-compliance with
laws and regulations® regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact on the Group.

. Please refer to the Laws and Regulations section for Anti-corruption-
related laws and regulations

SEER (@

R&EE
FEBREEBISPRAGERHAE
BREM TREAAEE -BHRES
REREFHNERTR AL 7&EH
HIE T RMEBETHEL > ERFIN
IRBTREBERNEZRRE - AEH
HEAEANE SRR TBER
BIEERIRIR R #IEF REB KT

S

FEBR IR ARNE S REIREET
e HPEB T ZREHIE T RENES
DB U RATRIES - B &5
RESHRFTANEGARFTREE
FER RMABRSMFIAETHNRE
U R ERERIE A - R AEE » I E
IREBFHERRBEOERKRBRE

=gl e

FEER_Z-_-—FEERTETE
RENFEER BAFNBERE
RERBERE PR MEFFROAREAE
BREREHAEEREERNEH

s FR2RERMER - UTHRESHE
BB AR RIER
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Bribery

R

Members of the Group
must not bribe for trading
opportunities or competitive
advantages
KFEBENENSETHER
MESEZKIAHRFEE
2

Bribery comes in the form
of accepting any financial
or other advantages such
as entertainment, gifts, job
offers and contracts
FRRR T U B RIS
HhFm (FlaniRee 12
M~ TEE R Ea/) B
AEH

Code of Conduct

2021 Targets and Indicators
BT -FEBRKER

000 The Group
TEE
. Zero corruption cases
ZREGHEZE

Neway Group Holdings Limited FE£EZERERAT o

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Employees should not
engage in fraudulent
acts including using false
identification or report false
operational information
EEFEETIEF TR
BEERERNS D HE
RERNEEEA

Stay highly alert for potential
fraudulent behaviour from
other companies, report any
suspicious case to supervisor
immediately
SEEHHEMASRNET
BT R IR mEEE
TS (EES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

=EEE E(.‘.ia)
3=

Conflict of interest

FZE &R

¥a
4}
4t
>m
=

100% achieved

100% &=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

OPERATING PRACTICES (CONTINUED)
Code of Conduct (Continued)
Whistleblowing

Staffs are encouraged to report any unethical behaviors, such as
violation of the Business Conduct Guidelines, or non-conformity
to the anti-corruption/fraud policy to the administrative and HR
department through channels that include email, messaging,
and direct line call anonymously or otherwise. The identity of the
whistleblower is kept highly confidential. All reported cases are
investigated thoroughly. If a criminal offence is involved, the case is
referred to relevant legal department while compensation is paid if
there is an economic loss.

SEER (@
TR (8)
B

&ﬁﬁ@EILL S F F hE&E
LERERSERERTHRAEANE

%WE%EHTLEH% WWL&%
EITAEI TR ERES MEH
RNTA - BRENBNHASERE -
FIERRERSEETEZEAE o M
MR EFRT EEFENBREIAE
FY» B R i 1B S B B H IR B o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS FERREER
The Group devotes unremitting efforts to ensure that its business ﬁ%.ﬁ%T’lﬁﬁfﬂEﬁﬁE%?””ﬁ
operations are in full compliance with all applicable laws and PETFAEBIE - T EREANFFERE
regulations in respect of ESG. The list of applicable laws and BiEEEEREBAERE L ERYIERW
regulations is as follows: B
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
R R RER =1 1]
Emissions ¢ Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Environmental Protection —
B REE A\ RENRIBEGREE Emission Control
e Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC IRIB (ReE —HE UL
HhEE A REMEIKSRBAT
¢ Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
EP%)\E#E*DjY?\./HWBH/D/%
¢ Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
hEE A RSB ERREY S RIREN AT
¢ Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution
I N\ RHEMERIERE SRAE
¢ The National Hazardous Waste List
B B s BEY) 44 Bk
e Integrated Air Pollutant Discharge Standard
ARG EHERE
¢ Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
EIKER AR E
e Boiler Air Pollutants Emission Standard
HANE R RS RIS
Use of Resources e Energy Conservation Law of the PRC Environmental Protection —
HRER hEE A REMBEESERE Resources Conservation
e Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC RIERE-FNER
PEARSMENEREEREE
Environmental and Natural e Forest Law of the PRC Environmental Protection
Resources RE N\ REMBEZME — Noise Management,
RERRAER e Regulations of Guangdong Province on Forest Protection Promoting Green Products,
Management Environmental Emergency
BEREFTMRESERE] Management
RIERE-RESEE\EE
BREER REESEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (CONTINUED) FERERER (&)
Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
BRERRER =1
Labour e Labour Law of the PRC Our People — Employee
T hEE N\ REMEISEA Communication, Employment
e Labour Contract Law of the PRC Practices
hEARANEZH SR ZE BET-EEBE - EEER

Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled Persons

EE A REMEIR R AREE

Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minorities
hEANREME D HREREL

Trade Union Law of the PRC

FEARANMBETEZ

Women's Right Protection Law of the PRC

HhEE A REMER 2w (RiEE

Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees
U T HERERIRE

The Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong

BEERRD
e The Employee's Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB EESMERM
e The Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
BB R AR A
¢ The Race Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
B R TE IR AR 5]
e The Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong
B BT R AR 645
Health and Safety e Production Safety Law of the PRC Our People —~Occupational
BREERZZ REARENEZ 24 EE Health and Safety
e Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC ET-BERERZS

REARENEFEREZEE

Fire Protection Law of the PRC

E AN RHEMBEAEPDE

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases

hE ANRAEMBEBERBR RS

The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong
EEBEL 2 RRERFEA
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

LAWS AND REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)

Labour Standards

HI#R

&

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BiEERER
Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
rhEE N\ REME RN E AN REL

Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

RIEGREIRE

ERBGER (1)

Section

B8

Our People — Employment
Practices

ET-REREER

Product Responsibility
EmERE

Product Quality Law of the PRC
hEARENEERES %

Production Safety Law of the PRC
PEARANEZ 24 EZE

Intellectual Property Laws of the PRC

R \ R HEMEBEIAHEREZE
Cybersecurity Law of the PRC
PEAREMEBEZEZE

Patent Law of the PRC
hEA\RENMBEZENE

Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC
hE \RAEMEIEANEEREZE

The Personal Data Ordinance in Hong Kong

BRBABERRH

Operating Practices — Quality
Management and Assurance,
Intellectual Property Rights,
Data Privacy Protection
EERR-E8EERRK
35 M ERE - BUREA R

"
5=

Anti-corruption

R&s

Criminal Law of the PRC

hE AR HEMERE

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
REAREMBERAEERFE

The Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong

BB LR EA

Operating Practices — Anti-
corruption
EERER-RES
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

RRBIEBE

2021 2020

B —F —ETHE
Total Energy Consumption GJ 68,864.50 63,252.48
RERHAEME FIEH
Energy consumption intensity GJHKD ('000) 0.11 0.12
REFERE FIEER B (P
Electricity kWh 16,363,344.00 15,107,950.00
BEH TE&
Natural gas m3 217,787.00 186,572.00
KRR A K
Petrol litres 34,144.14 34,737.35
pmbii NF
Diesel litres 10,880.00 13,777.00
Sl NF
Water Consumption tonnes 160,833.00 163,506.00
FEKE i
Water consumption intensity tonnes/HKD ('000) 0.26 0.31
FEXKBE Mg, 7t (F)

. Packaging Materials
Enw;;;\ﬁment w AR
Paper tonnes 15,684.81 14,634.00
R M
Plastic tonnes 784.02 485.60
Bk it
Metal tonnes 0 2.80
=8 Mg
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) Emissions®
RERBEHEKC
Scope 1: direct carbon emissions tCO2e 686.13 531.67
FE BB WStk EE
Scope 2: indirect carbon emissions tCO2e 13,031.72 12,028.25
FE: BB W—abikEE
Total GHG emissions tCO2e 13,717.85 12,559.92
RERBELNAESE W_sbREE
Total GHG emission intensity tCO2e/HKD ('000) 0.02 0.02
RERBHREZERES M-athREE
A7 (F)

BERBHRILESEEBHIFAN T
PEFRF - HEREARE —WER2 :
RIGRARARCERERISS Mt E > M
FRAETFSE _S—NFERHER
PEEEBEEEGINEATF - 2INEE
WEREE2ETBFAEAREZCENEZSR
BIPCORE A RTHRE ©

J Greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions are calculated with reference c
to HKEX's How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and the emission factors are
referenced from the 2019 Emission Reduction Project China Regional
Grid Baseline Emissions Factor. The global warming potential is
referenced to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued)

Environment
181

Workforce
Demographics
SEN
A&t

Air Pollutants
TREEY

RRBEME (B

2020
—E-EF

—_— T

SOx
maty

0.51

NOx
K81EY

77.81

89.71

PM
R F R

6.85

7.95

VOC
BERUARIEEY

tonnes
7]

2.79

0.03

Waste
EEEW

Hazardous waste

BEEREY

tonnes
i1

62.90

22.91

Hazardous waste intensity

BEBRRYTE

kg/HKD ('000)
RF /BT ()

0.1

0.04

Non-hazardous waste
mEBEEY

tonnes
WA

192.00

180.00

Non-hazardous waste intensity

kg/HKD ('000)
N/ BT ()

0.31

0.34

Effluent
35K

tonnes
WA

8,179.00

13,553.00

Effluent intensity
BIKEE

tonnes/HKD (‘000)
Mg AT (F)

0.01

0.03

Total Headcount
BT

1,327

1,460

By Geographical Distribution
Bit&E 2

PRC
i

1,227

1,317

Hong Kong
N

100

143

By Age
REL

30 or Below

305 AT

140

222

31-50
315 E505%

1,072

1,107

Above 50
505 =

115

131

By Gender
gkl

Male
B

685

738

Female

2t

642

722
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - EREGRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RFEME (8)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF

—_— T

?g Educational Background
ie =

==

Bachelor’s degree or above 225 226

B2t

Below bachelor’s degree 1,102 1,234

BHE8MUT

ng Pr(:fessional Profile
&

Management 330 353

EEAE

General staff 997 1,107

—REBT

Employee Turnover Rate

BEMmKLEE

Total 65% 59%
BB
By Age
EAN
30 or Below 220% 177%
30 BT
31-50 46% 35%
315 E508%
Above 50 60% 65%
505% A £
By Gender
Workforce 14 5
Demographics [INER 68% 59%
EEh B
AEgmst gr&ale 62% 60%
I}g Geographical Distribution
& 93
PRC 66% -

P
Hong Kong 53% =
BB

Employee New Hire Rate

/& 5 ¥ 1 1 EE ==

Total 58% 59%
4B
?g Age
Fhe
30 or Below 175% 69%
30 IIA T
31-50 48.6% 60%
315 E505%
Above 50 6% 35%
508 A £
By Gender
43
Male 62% 55%
B
Female 54% 62%
7%
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

Training and
Development

AR s R

Health and

Safety
BERZE

Community

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY (Continued) RIVEIEEE (48)
2021 2020

% ZEIEE
Percentage of employees trained 94% 97%
ZiIEREB DL
By Gender
2 gkl
Male 94% 96%
Bt
Female 95% 98%
ek
By Professional Profile
R RE
Management 94% 97%
EEAE
General staff 95% 97%
—fRBIL
Average training hours per person 16 30
FATYENSE
By Gender
2 gkl
Male hours 16 30
B /N
Female hours 16 30
g IINE
By Professional Profile
REAE
Management hours 15 19
BEAB IINEF
General staff hours 16 34
—mRET NS
Work-related incident cases 19 18
TEHERAEN R¥
Lost days due to work-related injury days 348 286
THEBERITIEEHH X
Work-related fatalities no. of employees 0 0
TEMERASET A& BB A&
Number of employees participating in safety | person-times 2,571 2,579
training AR
2HZ2EIEE AH
Total safety training hours hours 5,495 5,514
22| 4T 8L INBF
Donations HK$ 132,131 476,000
Ei=E T

Investment

HtERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE - HHERERKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX BMAZAIRIE - HEREAAND
5|

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RHIR SR 1E RAAIRIE - LB RERHREIES I EX =921

A. Environmental

A. IRIR

Aspect A1: General Disclosure Environmental

Emissions Information on: Protection

BHEA1 : (@) the policies; and IRIE(RE

HER 4 (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

— AR IR EE

BRRBIRERBHN MK kI MBS - AERESEEYH

EER:

(@ BER; R

(b) BFHETABEARXENHRBERRRONEK

KPI A1.1 Types of emissions and their respective emissions data. | Environmental
RBAEN | BRE R EHARBIM S - Protection — Emission
EEA1 Control

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, IR fR ot — HF AU

RATRAER where appropriate, intensity.
1BEA1.2  RERBEAHRE UUEEE) REE WER) °

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where |Environmental
RASRAER appropriate, intensity. Protection —
IBIBEA13  |FIEEEEEEYRSE QUEFHE) REE WHEA) o | Effluent and Waste
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Management
RASR4ERL | where appropriate, intensity. IR IRGE — 5K R s
ISIBALA  |FELESHEEYEE CUEE) REE B/ - |FNEE
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to | Environmental
RESR4E Y achieve them. Protection — Emission
I51EA15 HAMFTET LB E B R R A EDE LB ZFREE | Control;

FER o Environmental

Performance Tracking

RIS (REE —FFIUES)

IRIERITBHE
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Environmental
RASE4ERL | wastes are handled, and a description of reduction Protection —
}I51EA1.6 target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Effluent and Waste
HWMEIREEREBEEEYN G L RAFAEIILA | Management;
BEEE R R AEDEEEEMRIRN T B Environmental

Performance Tracking
E@m R 573‘7}03’2@
fﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ}&ﬁfé
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs
FARENIEIR
Aspect A2: Use of
Resources

[EEA2 :

BREA

5| (&)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

HRAAIRIE - LB RERREIES I EXR
General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

—RRINER

BRERER (AR KREMEREME) AIBER-

WSFRIBH B REARNE

Section
=/
Environmental

Protection
IRIZRE

KPI A2.1
R
1E1RA2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total (kWh in '000s) and intensity.
REVEDNERRFEEERHEEE UUTE
FREEHE) RBE.

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.

FSEEN |REKERBE-

151RA2.2

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
RASE4ERL | steps taken to achieve them.

$51EA2.3

PR ST I M AE R E R B R Rk B E B B E B R
FRENBIFBR -

Environmental
Protection — Resources
Conservation
RIBEGRE-SHNER

KPI A2.4
RASEAER
I512A2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

2 SR EE AR 7K R _E R B RIRRE » AR PRE] LAY A
K B IR R A s e B AR PRI ENY 2 §% o

Environmental
Protection — Resources
Conservation;
Environmental
Performance Tracking
IRIBRE—EHNER ;
IRIRRIFBHE

KPI A2.5
PR AR
151RA2.5

Total packaging materials used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

B mFT A EMENEE (WU & GI#ER)
FEBEA{ESEo

Environmental
Protection — Resources
Conservation

RIBRE-HNER
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

R AR ISR
Aspect A3: The
Environment and
Natural Resources
[EEAS3 :
RIERRARER

=5 (&)

BRFTIRE  H B REARS

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
BRRFIRIE -t B R ERREIEEIEXR =1-1]

General Disclosure Environmental
Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the Protection
environment and natural resources. IRIBfREE

— M=

BEZETAHIRERRAAERENE R ENBEEK-

KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the Environmental
RASRAER environment and natural resources and the actions Protection — Noise

$542A3.1  |taken to manage them.
HAUEBHIRIE R RRE RN E

BRRENTH-

FERERINER

Management,
Promoting Green
Products,
Environmental

Emergency
Management
RIRRE-IRSEE
EEGBER

RIFE=EE

N

Aspect A4: Climate
Change

[EHEA4 :

RIFE1E

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
— I E

AR EH BRI EEHETAEER ENERRIZABEREN

B o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
RASEEM | which have impacted, and those which may impact, the

F512A4.1 issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
HMER KA REEHBITAEEFENEARZER

EE REHTH-

Climate Change
RIZE1E
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

O

BRFIRE-HEREBAR
=3l (@)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section
RRRAR ISR BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR =1-1]

B. Social

B. &

Aspect B1: General Disclosure Our People
Employment Information on: 8T

2 ®EB1 : (@) the policies; and

E1E (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
—RIRE
ERBEEREE - BEREA TEFE - BA -TEHE 2T
RERUREMFBREHN
(@ HHE; &
(b) BTFHETABEAZENEREIERRFINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
RASEM | and geographical region.
$51%B1.1 R BEEAE FRERNRMEE DHESRBE -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
RASE4ERL | geographical region.
$51ZB1.2 MR FRRANRMERI D HEESMKRLEEX.

Our People — Employee
Profile
ET—EEHE
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB R SR

Aspect B2: Health
and Safety
[EEB2 :
REERZE

=5 (&)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

—RIRE

B Z2 THREREARREREERTHELTEM :

@ HR, &K

(b) BTFTHETABEAXENEREERRINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
RASEME | each of the past three years including the reporting year.

518821 | BEA=F BREERFE SFAITHHAZKE

o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injuries.
R E AITHEBELAITIEE&-
f51%B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
RATRER adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

1518B2.3 | HIMFTERMBVEI R RBRE L 2 DUSAERIITR

o A

BRFTIRE  H B REARS

Section

=420

Our People -
Occupational Health
and Safety
ET-BERRKRZ

ES
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB R SR

=5 (&)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRI FRIRIR - E R ERHRGIE5I1EX

BRFIRE-HEREBAR

.

Section

4211

Aspect B3: General Disclosure Our People — Training
Development and Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | and Development
Training duties at work. Description of training activities. BT - ElRER
JEEB3 : — AR IR EE
R RIEIN BRARAEERT TIER SRR R & AEBIBUER  # I EE) ©

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

BARE | employee category.

$51%B3.1 BRI REEEEDHNZINIEEB DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by

RASEEM | gender and employee category.

f51EB3.2 (IR RESERE D B8R ES TR TIEEINIE

8o
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Our People
Labour Standards Information on: 8T
B4 . (@) the policies; and
& T#A| (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

— AR IR EE

BRI EETR®RGEIZE T :

(@ BER; &

(b) BFHETABEARENHERBEIRRROAINEER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices | Our People —

RASEEM | to avoid child and forced labour. Employment Practices

$51%B4.1 iRt EE B R E L B o T 58 HIE T o ET—EEER

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

RASEER | when discovered.

aiRB4.2 | HIMTEHIRE RGN EH A RS AR EREL AT 2 BF o
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IRIR - HHERE

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB R SR

Aspect B5:
Supply Chain
Management
JEEBS :
AR EIE

AWE

=5 (&)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRI FRIRIR - E R ERHRGIE5I1EX

General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain

—RRINER

BIEMERNIRE R EREBER

BRFIRIE LB RER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
AN |RMESSNHERRE -

$51%B5.1

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
RA#E A number of suppliers where the practices are being

$51EB5.2

implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

MM AR A HREENIES > mERITERIEGH
e E > URBMMITREEER %

A ES

Section

=420

Operating Practices
— Supply Chain
Management
BERHR—HERE
b5

KPI B5.3
RASRAERN
}51EB5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

Huh A B R MR RS IR NIRIE Rt g RRAYIE
B> LU BRARAIT RER G %

Operating Practices
— Supply Chain
Management;
Sustainable
Procurement
EEBR—HERE
I ; PIEAEREE

KPI B5.4
PR AR
51%B5.4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HMERERBEREESRRRERRRBNIE
Bl U ABRA AT R EE R F A

Operating Practices
— Supply Chain
Management;
Sustainable
Procurement
EEBR—HERE
I ; PIEAEREE
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R - EREGRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued)

KPIs

BB R SR

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility
JEEB6 :
EmEE

=5 (&)

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

—RIRE

ERAFTREERNRBENEREZS B REEMWREEURK

R AR

BRFIRE-HEREBAR

.

Section

=

Operating Practices
EEER

(@ HE; &
(b) BTFHETABEAXENEREIERRFINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | Operating Practices

BB AR R
$51%B6.1

recalls for safety and health reasons.
BENBEXEREBFTEZE HEREEHMER WK
B

EEER

KPI B6.2
RASRAERN
51ZB6.2

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BREAMEMMKRBORFME UREHE S

Operating Practices —
Customer Satisfaction
EEERE-BERWE
=

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
RABE4ER | protecting intellectual property rights.
f51%¥B6.3 MBI S RIER A B REIER

Operating Practices —
Intellectual Property
Rights
EEE R A E R

KPI B6.4
RASRAERN
51ZB6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
Hin B 815 B2 KR EmEIWRER -

Operating Practices —
Quality Management
and Assurance
SEER-EE2EE
ERREE

KPI B6.5
RASEN
$51EB6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
B BEBRHRE R RER  URBERNITRE
gk

Operating Practices —
Data Privacy Protection
SEERE-FEREL
(GG
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IRIE - HHERERKRS

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continued) BMTAIRIE - HEREBARD
5| (&)

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section

RRRAR ISR BRFRIRIE - E R ERREIESIEXR =

Aspect B7: General Disclosure Operating Practices —

Anti-corruption Information on: Anti-corruption

JEEB7 : (@) the policies; and BERHR-KET

RES (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— M=

BRAMERE ~ 3R ~ ERFE R R 880 -

(@ BER; &

(b) BTFHETABEAXENEREIERRFANER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
RATRER practices brought against the issuer or its employees
$51EB7.1 during the reporting period and outcomes of the cases.

REBSHREETANHEESRE T ERBENESH
_/\7%1&1'5,]% E &DJ-/F_/-\IID% °

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
RASEM | procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
{518B7.2 | EIER R BRI URBRRNITRER G %
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
RASE4ERL | directors and staff.

f51%B7.3 (W REERETRMHHRESE-

Aspect B8: General Disclosure Our People —
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
Investment communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take | Involvement
JEEBS : into consideration the communities” interests. BT -HESH
HERE — AR IR EE

BREUHE2ERTHRETAEEMTINLERENRREERS
FEERtEMmmEEe

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

RRER |EIErMEE-

$51EB8.1

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
RABRE EEFHEMBAER
}51¥B8.2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 22 ETE

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 143 to 305, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 2 ETE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

How our audit addressed

Key audit matter the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the inherent
level of complex and subjective
judgement and estimates e
required in determining the fair
values.

Our procedures in relation to
the valuation of investment
properties included:

Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers and obtaining
an understanding of the
valuers’ scope of work and
their terms of engagement;

The Group’s investment
properties portfolio comprises
commercial and industrial
properties located in Hong Kong
and the People Republic of China
(the “PRC") and is stated at fair
value of HK$259,294,789 as at
31 December 2021 with a fair
value gain of HK$46,763,317
recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for
the year then ended.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT
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BB EMER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed

Key audit matter

the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

The Group's investment
properties are measured using
the fair value model based
on a valuation performed
by independent qualified
professional valuers. As disclosed
in notes 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements,
in determining the fair values
of the Group’s investment
properties, the valuers have
applied income capitalisation
approach or direct comparison
approach, as appropriate, for
respective properties, which
involve, inter-alia, certain
estimates, including appropriate
capitalisation rates, reversionary
income potential and market
transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

Evaluating the appropriateness
of the valuers’ valuation
approaches to assess if they
meet the requirements of the
HKFRSs and industry nomns;

Challenging the reasonableness
and appropriateness of
valuation models applied
based on available market
information and our knowledge
of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are
consistent with the bases used
in prior year; and

Assessing the reasonableness
of key inputs used in the
valuation, on a sample basis,
by checking to the publicly
available information on market
transactions of comparable
properties, comparing rental
income, terms of existing leases
to the existing lease summaries
of the Group and evaluating
whether capitalisation rates
adopted are comparable to the
market.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
i RVR 2 ETE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. CHAU Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raRm M EHMEEINARR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—% “E°FE
NOTES HK$ HK$
et BT BT
Total revenue U 623,576,722 532,674,495
Gross proceeds from sale of listed HEFHEZTIEZ
equity instruments FTi3 R IB 48 %8 1,249,500 27,965,562
624,826,222 560,640,057
Revenue g
Revenue from goods and services KRB & R&XRFE 2 W= 617,179,208 521,037,413
Rental income WA 4,477,272 4,880,323
Interest income from lending REMEXEHEZ
business FEUWA 1,920,242 6,756,759
Total revenue 4B 5 623,576,722 532,674,495
Cost of sales and services iHE K IRFS Al A (514,997,428) (399,625,483)
Gross profit EF 108,579,294 133,049,012
Other interest income HhF] S WA 11 834,716 1,237,216
Other income Ha A 11 7,905,461 12,618,577
Selling and distribution expenses THE RESHR X (31,713,579) (27,077,778)
Administrative expenses THREX (132,190,083) (119,751,255)
Other gains and losses Hiham & E518 7 35,225,838 (50,275,668)
Reversal of impairment losses THMEERGNEE 11
(impairment loss) under expected ~ FEEAE B K518
credit loss (“ECL") model on (MTEERE ER1E)) B
financial assets and contract THRE R 1B D]
assets, net CRfEE518) 358 3,189,253 (33,356,591)
Finance costs FAE A AN 8 (3,579,410) (4,878,062)
Share of results of joint ventures ELEEABZEE (3,750) (4,000)
Loss before taxation FRIGAIES 18 (11,752,260) (88,438,549)
Taxation credit RIBIK R 10 617,663 1,121,494
Loss for the year KEREIE 11 (11,134,597) (87,317,055)

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R

143



144

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

maEmkEMEEIARER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
s —%F ISR
NOTES HK$ HK$
gz BT BT
Other comprehensive income:  HMZMEUIA :
Item that may be reclassified HEGBEHDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmZIEH
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBFES
translation of foreign operations ZERERE 13,265,330 28,510,531
Item that will not be reclassified to  # T G EH FIEE
profit or loss: Bm2EHE
Fair value gain on equity FE@EMEERA
instruments at fair value through BRFEYER
other comprehensive income (FEEAEMEEI
("FVTOCI") AR RFE
FIAR)) ZRRATA
2R EWE - 2,515,681
13,265,330 31,026,212
Total comprehensive income AEZEBA FEX) 4258
(expense) for the year 2,130,733 (56,290,843)
Loss for the year attributable to: MTFATEHAFES !
Owners of the Company PIN/NETEZZ =N (10,706,159) (87,187,111)
Non-controlling interests JEFERG T (428,438) (129,944)
(11,134,597) (87,317,055)
Total comprehensive income UFNATEGAEEZE
(expense) for the year WA () 4855 -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KATEB A 2,512,214 (56,240,266)
Non-controlling interests IR (381,481) (50,577)
2,130,733 (56,290,843)
Loss per share BREBR
Basic (HK cents) B () 13 (4.22) (34.37)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra MBI RR

At 31 December 2021
AZ®-—#F+-A=+—8

2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
NOTES HKS$ HK$
iz BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BREREMHE 14 234,914,722 249,659,901
Investment properties KREYZE 15 259,294,789 212,020,086
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FBEMEERA 6
BATFETRZ
[tz =t 22,550,619 17,854,928
Club membership g 3,403,700 3,403,700
Prepayments and deposits SENEREY S 21 4,156,576 3,896,181
Interests in joint ventures RNEBRTZ R 18 396,732 400,482
Deposit paid for acquisition of ENEEYE BE
property, plant and equipment o 12,677,483 6,030,978
Deferred tax assets PRI IEE E 31 10,764,811 333,359
548,159,432 493,599,615
Current assets MBIEE
Inventories =78 19 20,533,613 35,537,489
Properties under development for ~ FE&E BRI 20
sale 198,365,480 124,759,125
Financial assets at fair value BiBEREATE 16
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") FER (BEAE =
BATFEYERY)
ZERMEE 24,716,500 23,059,714
Trade and other receivables, B 5 Kk HAh 21
prepayments and deposits FEWRRIE ~ TR
MBI &= 159,596,715 155,011,721
Contract assets BHNEE 17 46,446,817 35,240,798
Loans receivable e E R 22 9,137,831 29,599,832
Tax recoverable CIqEIE =] 362,668 1,054,007
Short-term bank deposits FERERIRTTERR 24 3,304,774 25,394,158
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEE 24 145,679,792 203,465,951
608,144,190 633,122,795
Current liabilities ViEIIR=N
Trade and other payables and 85 hkEMENRIE 25
accruals MR FE 5TRIA 153,493,421 123,508,626
Lease liabilities HE&E 26 13,922,336 8,949,086
Contract liabilities GHEE 27 8,576,969 10,464,703
Tax liabilities MIEEE 10,060,668 3,558,434
Amount due to a non-controlling ~ FE—ZKE AT 28
shareholder of a subsidiary — IR R RIB 18,359,853 16,810,490
Amount due to a related company FEff —KEIE A BFIE 29 61,800 48,402
Bank borrowings RITHER 30 62,609,035 79,786,671
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBIRR
At 31 December 2021
AZ®——#F+-A=+—8

2021 2020
—_E—%F —ECE
NOTES HK$ HK$
K&t BT BT
267,084,082 243,126,412

Net current assets MENEEFE 341,060,108 389,996,383
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERMEAE 889,219,540 883,595,998
Non-current liabilities ERBIEE

Lease liabilities HEa® 26 47,115,912 44,400,592

Amount due to a related company FEf —KEIE A B IE 29 178,945 223,361

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 37 9,866,407 9,044,502

57,161,264 53,668,455

Net assets BEFE 832,058,276 829,927,543
Capital and reserves B

Share capital &N 32 2,536,395 2,536,395

Reserves e 833,177,658 830,665,444
Total attributable to owners of the AT B A FE(L48%E

Company 835,714,053 833,201,839
Non-controlling interests IFIER (3.655,777) (3,274,296)
Total equity T AEEE 832,058,276 829,927,543

The consolidated financial statements on pages 143 to 305
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 25 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie B£E i

Chairman /& Director %

HNEI143E5EFE305B 2GR0
REREBREFEERN T _F=F8
TR BR#ERERETIE THNTE
EREREEZ

SUEK Chai Hong E¥iB[E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HeEDEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-_—F+"A=+—HIEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FABEBNES
Deemed
contribution Capital Properties  Investment Non-
Share Share from  redemption  Contributed valuation  revaluation  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium  a shareholder reserve surplus Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Sub-total interests Total
Bfi—%  EXERE MEEE  REER
BE  BROEE BRRZ4E 1 . (1] HE  EREE  REER Nt FERER st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B o B o B B B B B B
At 1 January 2020 RZE”Z%5-A-H 2,536,395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62,400 103,571,033 63,252,165 (25837,995)  (1,747,551) 189,699,574 889,442,105  (3,223,719) 886,218,386
Loss for the year KEFE = = = S S S S - (87,187,111) (87,187,111) (129,944)  (87,317,055)
Exchange differences arising on BREBNERMEL L
translation of foreign operations EREH S - - - - - - 28431164 - 28431164 79367 28,510,531
Fair value gain on equity FRAMREARABRATE
instruments at FVTOCI SR ZRATRZ
ATERE S S S S & & 2,515,681 & & 2,515,681 - 2,515,681
Other comprehensive income FEEMPERA
for the year - - - - - - 2,515,681 28,431,164 - 30,946,845 79,367 31,026,212
Total comprehensive income FEREBA () B8
(expense) for the year - - - - - - 2,515,681 28,431,164  (87,187,111)  (56,240,266) (50,577)  (56,290,843)
Disposal of investment inequity ~ HEFBEMZAKAR
instruments at FVTOCI ATEARZ
BAIERE - - - - - - 336,382 - (336382 - - -
At 31 December 2020 RITZEE
+ZA=+-8 2,536,395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62,400 103,571,033 63,252,165 (22,985,932) 26,683,613 102,176,081 833,201,839  (3,274,296) 829,927,543
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (10,706,159) (10,706,159) (428,438)  (11,134,597)
Exchange differences arisng o~ BN EBRELZ
translation of foreign operations ~ EREE = = - - - - - 13218373 - 13218373 46,957 13,265,330
Other comprehensive income FEEMEZARA
for the year - - - - - - - 13218373 - 13218373 46,957 13,265,330
Total comprehensive income FEZERA () B8
(expense) for the year - - - - - - - 13218373 (10,706,159) 2,512,214 (381,481) 2,130,733
At 31 December 2021 RZB_-F
+ZA=+-8 2,536,395 368,949,127 188,956,957 62,400 103,571,033 63,252,165 (22,985,932) 39,901,986 91,469,922 835,714,053  (3,655,777) 832,058,276
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
g5 —ETEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e E
Loss before taxation FRI2AIES 18 (11,752,260) (88,438,549)
Adjustments for: BIrEETSREE :
Write-down of inventories WomES 1,738,392 1,570,414
Depreciation on property, ME-BERZEBITE
plant and equipment 38,247,603 37,147,191
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEKEZEN
plant and equipment &8 (W) SR &8 2,183,026 (322,912)
Impairment losses recognised on BRBME -BREX
property, plant and equipment RERESE 1,934,349 =
Change in fair value of investment KREMENRFEE
properties (46,763,317) 9,917,231
(Reversal of impairment losses) B EWEIEY
impairment losses on trade CRE RSB RE
receivables, net 518358 (2,291,599) 710,090
(Reversal of impairment losses) ENEEZ (REREERD)
impairment losses on BERIEFEE
contract assets, net (714,591) 855,504
(Reversal of impairment losses) FEWEZHZ CREBEREE)
impairment losses on BEEIRFEE
loans receivable, net (183,063) 30,554,241
Impairment losses on amounts due FEW R E A BIIEZ
from related companies AERE - 1,236,756
Share of results of joint ventures BEEERBIZEE 3,750 4,000
Dividend income & 2 WA (1,214,590) (528,550)
Finance costs R E A 3,579,410 4,878,062
Interest income FEUWA (834,716) (1,237,216)
Operating cash flows before movements K&t EE S EFHAT>
in working capital KIS RS (16,067,606) (3,653,738)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FE /D G2 13,759,615 (11,407,121)
Increase in properties under FEZERERPYEIEM
development for sale (68,490,278) (4,629,121)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other & 5 K Efth e W IE ~ Fa (T
receivables, prepayments and deposits MIEL KT8 () mb (609,659) 8,173,371
Increase in contract assets HHEEEM (9,289,560) (14,970,788)
Decrease in amounts due from FEURREE A BRI R D
related companies - 66,646
(Increase) decrease in BREDEATEYRZ
financial assets at FVTPL EREE (8m mo (1,656,786) 41,773,986
Decrease in loans receivable B E TR 20,645,064 7,431,740
Increase in trade and B 5 R EMEARIE R
other payables and accruals FESTFUIEE N 25,384,292 18,761,371
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilites &#&& G5/ &M (1,887,734) 5,829,101
Cash (used in) from operations K& (Frie) Frisz iR (38,212,652) 47,375,447
Dividend income % E U A 1,214,590 528,550
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) BRI (BE13) FAEFESIRFEE 85,671 (3,652,543)
Overseas tax paid BEINRIA (2,360,043) (1,989,302)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING  #&S%%#3%5 (FriE) FR8IR &35
ACTIVITIES (39,272,434) 42,262,152
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maRERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E—F TECFE
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEES
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BIEEYE -BEK
plant and equipment REZEE (12,601,528) (5,419,454)
Placement of short-term bank deposits ~ ZFHUEEAIRTTER (3,526,824) (320,556)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits IR EXAE HBER 1777 7K 26,427,279 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B A¥) % i = K 2 1 (895,569) (32,250,420)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYME - BERREZ
plant and equipment FriS IR 1,083,663 2,615,112
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BEAZBEMEEURAILATF
BIERZRBATH (4,695,691) =
Proceeds for disposal of HEZBEMEEmBAZ AT
equity instruments at FVTOC| BIRZEATAREZ
Frig=r1a - 2,515,681
Interest received BUWFHIE 754,500 1,153,875
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) LB (FTfE) IR P58
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 6,545,830 (31,705,762)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (57,607,636) (122,111,678)
New bank borrowings raised MIZIRTTEE 40,430,000 109,729,871
Payments of lease liabilities HEaBEUR (7,609,325) (9,482,001)
Repayment to a related company B—XKEABATZEMR (31,018) (163,254)
Interest paid BAFE (3,579,410) (4,878,062)
NET CASH USED IN ME BB PTERE R
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (28,397,389) (26,905,124)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RENRIRESFERL FEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (61,123,993) (16,348,734)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FMZREXIBEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 203,465,951 208,721,286
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE bE s nr &
CHANGES 3,337,834 11,093,399
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZIBSRBLEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 145,679,792 203,465,951
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF REMREEBLERZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DT
Bank balances and cash IRITHE R RIRE 145,679,792 203,465,951
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e M BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

1.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neway Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and other details of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 42.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”)
of the International Accounting Standards Board issued
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as "estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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—F+ZA=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.1

Impacts on application of the agenda
decision of the Committee — Cost necessary
to sell inventories (HKAS 2 Inventories)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the
sale” when determining the net realisable value
of inventories. In particular, whether such costs
should be limited to those that are incremental
to the sale. The Committee concluded that the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale should
not be limited to those that are incremental but
should also include costs that an entity must incur
to sell its inventories including those that are not
incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the
Committee’s agenda decision was to determine
the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration incremental costs only. Upon
application of the Committee’s agenda decision,
the Group changed its accounting policy to
determine the net realisable value of inventories
taking into consideration both incremental costs
and other cost necessary to sell inventories (i.e.
sales commission, transportation costs and sales-
related taxes). The new accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda
decision has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm o A R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021"

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendment to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April

2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the

Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant
assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to relevant assets and liabilities are assessed on a
net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to HK$59,583,093 and HK$61,038,248
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing
the full impact of the application of the amendments.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements,
a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

3. REMBHRROEREE

REEZGETER
3.1 %‘ié,ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬂ%ﬁﬁg

ROV BRERDLDERBRES
S AE R ZEEY
BREZEARR -FARER
HMEMBERERMS HWA
HEHNGERBETEE
E2EAEFLIRE Y
ERENBER/ER I
IR EMBRERESD
BMERXBFAAERATE
F EHRAAREB(RTRF
PIVFREEZBRKES
Igo

PR RS M Bl aRE
RAABDEFRERBAE
EARHERNAITERR
RBEKLE AL REFE
mMUTEMBRRRKES

RAFEEE g EE-

mMEMBRERTDRESL M
AEERR EHNO T
PRE g ST BRI AL > 10
BERARBERAFESEZ

RENERETEMIA
BRIN o

B SE M A — R LUB R
SRBHETZREZA
TFEAER-

Annual Report 2021 F#§

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e M BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ME-F

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 "Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
("HKAS 36").

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs are
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of the subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. When the Group’s share
of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may
be impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of investment (include
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct
from other promised goods or services, control is
transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from
other promised goods or services, the nature of
the Group’s promise in granting a licence is a
promise to provide a right to access the Group’s
intellectual property if all of the following criteria
are met:

. the contract requires, or the customer
reasonably expects, that the Group will
undertake activities that significantly affect
the intellectual property to which the
customer has rights;

. the rights granted by the licence directly
expose the customer to any positive or
negative effects of the Group’s activities;
and

o those activities do not result in the transfer
of a good or a service to the customer as
those activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group
accounts for the promise to grant a licence as
a performance obligation satisfied over time.
Otherwise, the Group considers the grant of
licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group’s intellectual property and the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time at which the licence is granted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group'’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”). In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales
commissions) as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised
is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have been
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of office premises
and office equipment that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term, upon exercising purchase options, the cost
of the relevant right-of-use assets and the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss are
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property or
inventory in “property, plant and equipment”, the
same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of inventory are presented within
"properties under development for sale”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable and the exercise price
of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use assets) whenever the lease term has
changed, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

3.

= A,
e

MBHRRIEREE

REEZGTER (B

3.2

FEGBUR (8)
A5 (&)
KEFEZAEN (B)
HEEXN

WERATER ~EH
RIAEEIERBIEE
N

. BB M AER
—HERULEBRE
EZEMNEBEXREE
#BE ;&

. EEREILM > B0
ZEEAE R EE
BAHEZEBE
kA RREES
WMZERBRMHE
ZEBERETZ
ERBEERE -

MAREREBHEEARZ
HEERME  ~EBE%
EBRERERNEMBHRZ
BT RE IR R AL IRAEE T
HEMNRZEENREEZ
HAEMtEEEER-

75 55 B 5B 48 ¥ 78 RE {58 AR A
EEETHERE HE
EaBENENEETE
ARE-BEENBNEDN
& M E 4/ E0 o A0 — 18
NLEEHMBESRIERE
HRI DR AEBSR
BHREHERITDNAEEE
SN BR K IEEE 4D
RSB I BR B IE B
BTN RESEESHE
FEHEMRID

Annual Report 2021 F#§

169



170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e M BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

ME-F

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business (i.e. Property
Business as defined in note 6) are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
("HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid
or accrued operating lease income. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than properties construction in
progress as described below, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the
extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is
presented as “property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position
except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress less their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which
are intended to be sold upon completion of
development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-
of-use assets, properties under development
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Cost necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties for sale upon
completion.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties under development for sale
(Continued)

Transtfer from property, plant and equipment to
properties under development for sale

If property, plant and equipment becomes
properties under development for sale because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, the carrying amount at the
date of transfer is recognised as properties under
development for sale.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of assets other than
financial assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss
before taxation because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

3.

= A
e

MBHRRIEREE

REEGTER (&)

3.2

FEGFER (B
Vil

PRSI B EAIR
TR ARIERRTE 2 #B A

RFENREBELEAERN
Wéuﬁﬁ s M 5T E o FERER

A BRI AIEIE AR
Emﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬂfﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
AR 2 WA R &
WRARREMNR BB
ReoAEBZEERES
BB REHEREE
EUHEREEENZR
KitHo

IEIETRIE TS B4R & B 75 3R
TNEEKRBEREEA
ST E FESR IR % T P A A FE
ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁaﬁzﬁunﬁ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
moLLﬁE%EL%
ﬁﬁo\ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁéﬁﬁ?g
£ B B S F A BT 40 7% B B
EREEHEERR A&
FLPR A& B 40 70 B8 RF 2= RA TR
e BER—IBERZH  FHE
% & LUSM R X B 4 FiE 52
iéé&%fiﬁ'ﬁﬂ@lZEEE%
%%E%Téiiéﬁg%%ﬁfﬁéﬂ
AT EgstaA - BlAR
ERIDZERIENBEEE
KREafde

Annual Report 2021 F g



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

mh 3

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEZ

3.

= —

e

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants related to subsidy income
from government for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme, state-managed retirement
benefit scheme and Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme"”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm o A R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HAMBHRRNERESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EXFEaEstKRE (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 BgEEER (B
Financial instruments ETHIT A
Financial assets and financial liabilities are EREESERKRATES
recognised when a group entity becomes a party HEXz— >
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. TRHEEREHREE M
All regular way purchases or sales of financial BEUFRARKEADBEE
assets are recognised and derecognised on a ZERMBEERRZ B
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales BEERIDKEUHES o E
are purchases or sales of financial assets that RETBARHEELRT
require delivery of assets within the time frame 35 i 78 3 & 78 20 18 41 Bl e
established by regulation or convention in the CZHEERERARNEE
market place. ZEMEEBANHEE -
Financial assets and financial liabilities are TREERTREBEEY
initially measured at fair value except for trade BRUAFEFFZE ERE
receivables arising from contracts with customers, EENFEENEZEI
including trade related amounts due from B (BEREBEEBMHR
related companies, which are initially measured HEEBFISHEVLTEHEZ
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs FEUREE AT B S B
that are directly attributable to the acquisition IB) a4 o BE B B BT SR
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities BERTHREE ATE
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities HABZZEHMEBEINS
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair FLEERIN BIEEG 2T
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, 5 AT I e SR B 5T A
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction FINESETHMEEN TR
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of aE (HBER) 2 AFE-
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are BERAFESABERZ
recognised immediately in profit or loss. THEENCTHEEERR
FE(h 2 X 5 A S BN BRF 72 48
7 P REST o
The effective interest method is a method of BRI R LA —TEsTEME
calculating the amortised cost of a financial assets RIFAME N & Rt E E T & Rl
or financial liabilities and of allocating interest BEZ BN ANREF B
income and interest expense over the relevant ARFNNBEBEBETSEEZH
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that FBRAELNEME
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts ENdtREETaIAFHER
and payments (including all fees paid or received (WNER) FrE B &
that form an integral part of the effective interest STRRIB IR Z A= (8
rate, transaction costs and other premiums EEAERA XA 5t
or discounts) through the expected life of the BB U E
financial assets or financial liabilities, or, where B XS AREMEZE
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying SiIT:E) ErERLIRE S
amount on initial recognition. RREREFENFIZE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business (i.e. Lending
Business as defined in note 6) are presented as
revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
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3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’'s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on financial assets (including
trade and other receivables and deposits, loans
to joint ventures, loans receivable, trade related
amounts due from related companies, short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) and
contract assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables, contract assets and trade
related amounts due from related companies
without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

3. LGREMBHRRINGRESE
&Igﬁ -l-ﬁ;ﬁ (n\ﬁ)

3.2 $t = D+E&Bﬁ (IIE)
E#TA (%)
THEE &

ARG E BT RS R
EOTE T AB RS
BEREMERZAE
NG

~EBE-BHME S EWRR
B -ENEEREERS
BRI EWREEATE
SIERRIERR 2 TER
SERE-

ERmMBEMIA &%
EstENEEEERE+Z
BREREEREMER:
PRIFE B REESSLURIE A
R ARNEE N Bl A E R
T*ﬁ‘%«ﬁlaﬂ?ﬁﬁmi
TEHEEBE -T2
BE %E%HH%EHH%%?JEE‘
BN B R R
RELQNA M EREE
BARELEAHME o

Annual Report 2021 F g



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M HwRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

""'A
TS5
HE_Z—
3.

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

] an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

] existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

] an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
of the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

it is becoming probably that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the relevant financial asset in
its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. The Group
usually writes off when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables and trade related amounts due
from related companies, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
contract assets are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACC
3.2

OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables and
deposits, contract assets, trade related amounts
due from related companies, loans receivable,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified
to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in
investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised any
deferred tax on changes in fair value of investment
properties in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on the fair value changes on
investment properties in Hong Kong on disposal. The
Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment property in the PRC in note 31 as
the Group is subject to any income taxes on the fair
value changes on investment property in the PRC on
disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's
investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. In determining the fair value,
the valuers have based their valuation on income
capitalisation approach or direct comparison, as
appropriate for respective investment properties,
which involves certain estimates, including appropriate
capitalisation rates, reversionary income potential
and market transactions of comparable properties, as
appropriate. In relying on the valuation, management of
the Group has exercised its judgement and is satisfied
that the methods of valuation adopted are appropriate
for the relevant property and reflective of current market
conditions. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate
fair value of investment properties is HK$259,294,789
(2020: HK$212,020,086). Details of the valuation
methodology are disclosed in note 15.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development for sale

The management uses their judgement and estimates in
determining the net realisable value of properties under
development for sale with reference to the comparable
market transactions in similar locations. Where there
are any changes to the market conditions in the PRC
causing the net realisable value of the properties under
development for sale below its cost, the properties
under development for sale is written down to its net
realisable value. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of properties under development for sale is
HK$198,365,480 (2020: HK$124,759,125).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of equity instruments at
FvTOCI

As at 31 December 2021, equity instruments at FVTOCI
amounting to HK$22,550,619 (2020: HK$17,854,928)
are measured at fair value with fair value being
determined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes
in assumptions relating to these factors could result
in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. See note 39 for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets, loans receivable and trade related amounts
due from related companies

Trade receivables with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets,
trade related amounts due from related companies,
loans receivable and credit-impaired financial assets
are assessed for ECL individually. The remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed collectively.
The expected loss rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets, loans receivable and trade related amounts
due from related companies (Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to eased financial uncertainty triggered by the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has decreased the
ECL rates in current year as there is lower risk that
a moderated pandemic could led to decrease in
credit default rates. The information about the ECL
and the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets,
loans receivable and trade related amounts due
from related companies are disclosed in note 39.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, contract
assets and loans receivable are HK$120,349,927
(2020: HK$110,247,609), HK$46,446,817 (2020:
HK$35,240,798) and HK$9,137,831 (2020:
HK$29,599,832), respectively. The carrying amount of
trade related amounts due from related companies is nil
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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5. REVENUE 5. W=

(i) Revenue from goods and services (i)

KEHEmA IR Z s

Revenue represents the amounts received and WamiEAEBFEFARAME R
receivable for goods sold and services provided by E R IR AR P U K e
the Group, less discounts and sales related taxes Wz I8 CRi3T0 K38 & 48
during the year. FAMRIR) o

FEBEFREEmMKR
Bz WmB D BONMT

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from goods
and services by segment for the year is as follows:

2021 ZOZO
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Types of goods or services: ERTRBHEE .
Manufacturing and Sales Business*  BU¥5 R §H € % 75
— Income from manufacturing and —RBEHR R EME S
sales of printing and other S RREHE Z WA
products 579,682,944 486,079,273
Music and Entertainment Business* & 4% % Y2 4 %2 Fc
— Artistes management fee income —BABIEEKRA 391,498 57,917
— Income from the licensing of the — S #ERFEFFIRA
musical works 2,391,187 3,029,834
— Promotion income —EERA 10,000 153,333
— Sales of albums —SHERA 1,594,664 829,978
4,387,349 4,071,062
Trading Business* BRER
- Sales of printing and — BRI R ELfth 2 R EH &
other products 33,108,915 30,887,078
617,179,208 521,037,413
* The segment names are defined in the section & PDIELIEZ FELEN 6

IR 4EE R —Af -

“Segment information” in note 6.

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R 205



206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm o A R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. W&E (&)
(i) Revenue from goods and services (i) XXBEmEREFZKZ=E
(Continued) (48)
2021 2020
—E—F “ETERF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Geographical markets: ulENp N
Hong Kong 58 227,620,994 216,185,408
The PRC FRE 256,221,762 200,225,548
Europe BN 35,472,242 27,607,233
United States S 73,495,815 50,065,286
Others Hih 24,368,395 26,953,938
617,179,208 521,037,413

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on the locations of the
shipments of goods or the services provided.

ERAEEXRBMNBERZ
WmzEMNERREERW
Bz MEMEZY) -

2021 2020
—E-—F C—B°%F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Timing of revenue recognition: W FEsB A -
Over time b8 B S 579,682,944 486,079,273
A point in time B BRF B 37,496,264 34,958,140
617,179,208 521,037,413
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Revenue from goods and services

(Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts

Wa (48)
() RE&m
(&)

TXHEINEFR G U@ A
DEENIRESRNY

R PR #5 2 U8 o

disclosed in the segment information. Bf o
2021 2020
—E—F “EISHF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales Business S RIHEXETR 579,682,944 486,079,273
Music and Entertainment Business EE P ES 4,387,349 4,071,062
Trading Business =RZE 33,108,915 30,887,078
Revenue from contracts BEREHW=E
with customers 617,179,208 521,037,413
Rental income GES LN 4,477,272 4,880,323
Interest income from KEREEHZ
lending business F B U A 1,920,242 6,756,759
Total revenue 4B 623,576,722 532,674,495
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

()

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales of
albums

Revenue from trading of printing products/sales
of albums is recognised when control of the
printing products, which are not manufactured
by the Group, and albums has been transferred
to the customers, being at the point the goods
are delivered to the customer’s specific location.
Transportation and other related activities that
occur before customers obtains control of
the related good are considered as fulfilment
activities. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. The normal credit term is 60 to 90 days
upon delivery, which is approximate the time of
issuing the invoices to the customers. The Group
requires certain customers to provide upfront
deposits ranging from 10% to 30% of total
contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before the printing products delivery, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the specific
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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REVENUE (Continued)

()

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
proaucts

The Group provides tailored-manufacturing
of printing products to the customers. Such
revenue from manufacturing and sales of printing
products are recognised as this performance
obligation is satisfied over time because the
Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

The progress towards completing satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured based
on input method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of the Group's efforts in terms of
inputs (i.e. materials costs, direct staff costs
and other direct overhead costs incurred) to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation, that best depicts
the Group’s performance in transferring control
of products. Contract assets arise when the
Group has right to consideration for satisfaction
of a performance obligation under the relevant
contracts, and the right is conditioned on factors
other than passage of time. Contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when such right
become unconditional other than the passage of
time. Invoices to the customers were issued upon
the delivery of manufactured printing products
to the customers. The normal credit term is 60
to 120 days upon the issuance of invoices to the
customers. The Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits ranging from 10%
to 50% of total contract sum, when the Group
receives a deposit before manufacturing of
printing products commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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REVENUE (Continued)

()

(ii)

Revenue from goods and services
(Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Income from licensing of the musical works

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when
licenses of the Group’s musical works were
granted to the customers, being at the point the
customer has the rights to use the musical works
at their own desires. A receivable is recognised
by the Group when the licenses of the Group's
musical works are granted to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment is
due.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

All the Group’s contracts with customers with
unsatisfied performance obligations have
original expected duration of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or satisfied) as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 is not disclosed.

5.

Wa (48)

0]

H(EZE)%:E%&HE?%ZLI&E

HBERSHZEBHEE
(&)

EZFan 5 aF A

WmErEETEERYT
HERTER BIERER#
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By ) BE FE SR o ZEE N &
EETEFREFERT
FEREHEDBEWRIE R
(Al 7% IE 22 R PR A U EN X
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁhﬁﬂ (a

D2 HE 52 19 B R 2R 5 B A

UM 3 o

P EFIERIBAIE FH
XEE®

AEBEFRMBRTHRBENE
ENEFPEGORRNERE
REARAS —F LU T
RIBEEBMBREEDS
155 PR HEE » TR BB
R —FR-ZTTETF
TZR=1T—BoEEHK
TEHAEE CRETRER
7 RZE

Leases (i) ME
2021 2020
- S 3 “ETEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
For operating leases: FISEREMS -
Lease payments that are fixed EEHENR 4,477,272 4,880,323
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

The Group's reportable and operating segments are therefore
as follows:

(a)

(b)

Money lending (“Lending Business”);

Manufacturing and sales of printing and other products
("Manufacturing and Sales Business”);

Artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums (“Music and Entertainment Business”);

Property development and investment (“Property
Business”), including properties development projects
and properties leasing and investments in the PRC,
mini storage business and office leasing and properties
leasing and investment in Hong Kong;

Securities trading (”Securities Trading Business”); and

Trading of printing and other products (“Trading
Business”).

SHEEH
ik E

MERDEC R D ERIRFT G
ERBRTESE BIETEEER
RE) REZER TEEARMN
BRI R RFBEEE o

HIE» ZEBZ AIHREREED
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(b)  ENR R Efth 2 5f RIS KM
& (RERHEER) ;
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d WEZRRKRE (PEZX
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue and results

by operating and reportable segment.

6. DHEER (@
DEWmRES (8)

FERRKEES RAIZRDEE D
ZWmREEDHUT o

Revenue Segment profit (loss)
& SEEEF (B518)
2021 2020 2021 2020
B —HF —EBE-E —EI—F —EBE-S
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Lending Business BEZER 1,920,242 6,756,759 47,017 (26,850,426)
Manufacturing and Sales BUE R I E TS (152)
Business (note) 579,682,944 486,079,273 (16,485,631) 10,187,944
Music and Entertainment EEYretE E S
Business 4,387,349 4,071,062 (4,501,611) (8,527,786)
Property Business MEZER 4,477,272 4,880,323 35,625,414 (14,416,509)
Securities Trading Business BHEEER - - (2,003,642) (32,845,363)
Trading Business B 33,108,915 30,887,078 (3,054,649) 1,670,886
Total st 623,576,722 532,674,495 9,626,898 (70,781,254)
Bank interest income RITHE WA 754,500 1,153,875
Unallocated corporate FoRbERE
expenses (22,129,908) (18,796,063)
Share of results of i == NI |
joint ventures (3,750) (4,000)
Certain finance costs ETREE A = (11,107)
Loss before taxation FRF2BTES 18 (11,752,260) (88,438,549)

Note: Included in the segment loss from Manufacturing and Sales
Business of HK$5,852,689 represented the segment loss
resulting from the mask production business, which has
suspended its operation during the year ended 31 December

2021.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit
earned/loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of bank interest income, unallocated corporate expenses,
share of results of joint ventures and certain finance costs on
lease liabilities. This is the measure reported to the Group's
management for the purpose of resources allocation and

performance assessment.

M RERHEEHZHEEA
5,852,6898 70 014 1 8 4 75
EEZHEBE ZEBERE
E-Z-—#+-A=+—Hi
FEEEEE-

EXFRRE Z A D ERm IR
EPIN-IES SR

MERAREDAZGETER
B 5 3FT 4 25 55 B 5t B A
Bl DiEF (B8 5% 0 1EHk
WNzwmh /EEZBE B9
EBORIRTHEWA N RDAEC D
FHRX - BEAEARXEEKRAE
EEBZETREME ULLAT
BERNEAREBEFERATERE
BEREZSER X
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by operating and reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2021

SHEER (@)
DPEEERER

TERE
CEERGEDNUT

MERAREDEE D

RW-E2-_—%+”"“H=+—H

Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination  Consolidated
RER BER H5EE
BEEH HEEH BEEH NEEH £ BREH HEEH i &8
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
A o #An o An o An BT #An
Segment assets NEEE 10,248,051 430,925,617 3,832,136 476,360,389 26,034,283 11,830,635 959,231,111 - 959,231,111
Other assets HitEE 197,072,511
Consolidated assets RREE 1,156,303,622
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,204,401 207,557,471 2,561,557 78,450,897 92,651 13,951,017 303,817,994 = 303,817,994
Inter-group liabilities EERAE 65,981,607 - - - 94,946,212 - 160,927,819 (160,927,819) -
Total @it 67,186,008 207,557,471 2,561,557 78,450,897 95,038,863 13,951,017 464,745,813 (160,927,819) 303,817,994
Other liabilities HftEE 20,427,352
Consolidated liabilities GAERE 324,245,346
As at 31 December 2020 AR TERF+ZA=+—H
Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Elimination Consolidated
RER L9 HHEE
CES] HEEH E2S S MEE S ECES] P Fafc} o)
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT AR 7 AR 7 AR Vo BT B
Segment assets NEEE 31,662,289 433,255,115 6,173,708 351,130,780 33,377,017 14,564,818 870,163,727 - 870,163,727
Other assets HitgZE 256,558,683
Consolidated assets GREE 1,126,722,410
Segment liabilities NEBE 2,079,629 224,056,802 2,184,487 38,801,917 187,554 11,984,440 279,294,829 - 279,294,829
Inter-group liabilities ST 76,770,136 - - - 97,751,111 - 174,521,247 (174,521,247) =
Total @it 78,849,765 224,056,802 2,184,487 38,801,917 97,938,665 11,984,440 453,816,076 (174,521,247) 279,294,829
Other liabilities HttEE 17,500,038
Consolidated liabilties RaBfR 296,794,867
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6.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

0 s = Al =

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER B

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) NEEERERE (B)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and FERNBRIEERINDER DA

allocating resources among segments: BRME :

o all assets are allocated to operating and reportable ° S EFERLRZE N
segments other than certain property and equipment, XEeEB LA ZHEET - FH
interest in a joint venture, certain equity instruments Hitz2mW AZ A FES
at FVTOCI, club membership, deferred tax assets, BEZETRATE -gHT
certain other receivables, prepayments and deposits, SR EERBEE-&T
tax recoverable, short-term bank deposits and cash and EMEKZIE BN HIE
cash equivalents. K 5T~ AR [EIFR 1B ~ A2 HA

RITERURRE RIS
ZEI MEEEG DR
R RSN

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable ° METFTHEHMENHIELE
segments other than certain other payables and SAHIENRIEAEKRIEIL
accruals, tax liabilities and deferred tax liabilities. MEaEI PFEaET

TEHEELERTRED

Other segment information HithoaER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_E-_—%+”-H=+—H

ILFE
Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment

Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated  Consolidated

HER B&R BHER
HEEH HELH fameis FIES S £ BRLE N KA ga
HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
AT AR AT AR AT AR AR AR AR

Amounts included in the HENBREEINE

measure of segment results BERHAZEE

or segment assets:

Interest income (exclusion of FIBHA (RBERE

interest income from MEEBZFEHA)

Lending Business) (11,263) (65,751) - - (613) (2,589) (80,216) (754,500) (834,716)
Interest expenses B 101,125 3,086,484 = 387,554 4,247 = 3,579,410 - 3,579,410
Depreciation of property, W& BERZENE

plant and equipment 1,007,661 36,542,682 192 260,186 71,100 240,689 38,122,510 125,093 38,247,603
Write-down of inventories WAEE - 1,361,558 - - - 376,834 1,738,392 - 1,738,392
(Reversal of impairment losses) B REWFIEZ HE

impairment losses on trade 48 (AEHEEE)

receivables, net F8 - (2,258,550) 37,518 (2,553) - (68,014) (2,291,599) - (2,291,599)
Reversal of net impairment losses  &#EEZ BEHBA

on contract assets, net BEFE = (714,591) - - - - (714,591) - (714,591)
Reversal of impairment losses FWERZAESE

on loan receivable, net AEFE (183,063) - = = = - (183,063) - (183,063)
Additions to property, RENE BER#RE

plant and equipment 57,566 22,990,422 - 1,545,275 - 135,117 24,728,380 = 24,728,380
Change in fair value of BRERRATETIRZ

financial assets at FVTPL SREEZATEED = - - - 2,722,561 - 2,722,561 - 2,722,561
Net loss on disposal of property,  tHE&EME BERREZ

plant and equipment BEFE - 2,183,026 - - - - 2,183,026 - 2,183,026
Impairment losses recognised on ~ 41% R R

property, plant and equipment  RECHEDAEFE - 1,934,349 - - - - 1,934,349 - 1,934,349
Change in fair value of RENENATEED

investment properties = = = (46,763,317) - - (46,763,317) - (46,763,317)
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A e SRR MY EE
g = B R P Vo
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+_A=1T—HLEE
- s =5 A ==
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEER (@)
. . . o g -
Other segment information (Continued) HhoEER (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_-_A=+—HIE
FE
Manufacturing Music and Securities
Lending and Sales  Entertainment Property Trading Trading Segment
Business Business Business Business Business Business total Unallocated Consolidated
BER BER RHEH
i CES HEER ot 4 MEER £5 EEES A FHE &8
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
o BT Vo AT B AR B AR B
Amounts included in the BEDEES ERE
measure of segment results BERIAZEE
or segment assets:
Interest income (exclusion of FSHA (FEERE
interest income from HEEBZHERA
Lending Business) (6,610) (71,988) S S (619) (2,678) (81,895) (1,155,321) (1,237,216)
Interest expenses FISEZ 39,542 4,174,700 S 633,160 6,331 13222 4,866,955 11,107 4,878,062
Depreciation of property, nE BRERMGENE
plant and equipment 458,988 35,513,959 37,958 686,130 73,559 260,351 37,030,945 116,246 37,147,191
Write-down of inventories Wars - 1,414,662 S S = 155,752 1,570,414 S 1,570,414
Impairment losses on trade BRRWFEZAE
receivables, net BHEEE S 678,392 243 2,553 S 4,824 710,090 - 710,090
Impairment losses on AHEEZABESE
contract assets. net et - 855,504 - - - - 855,504 - 855,504
Impairment losses on amounts  FEMIAEAFFIE
due from related companies ZRERR - - 1,236,756 - - - 1,236,756 = 1,236,756
Impairment losses on loans ERENZAERA
receivable 30,554,241 - - - - - 30,554,241 = 30,554,241
Additions to property, RENE BERZE
plant and equipment 2,063,390 44,771,830 - 996,938 142,199 334332 48,308,689 - 48,308,689
Change in fair value of FRBRRATERZ
financial assets at FVTPL SHBEZATEES = = S S 32,529,639 S 32,529,639 - 32,529,639
Net gain on disposal of property,  HENZ FER
plant and equipment REZWEFE - (322912 - - - - (322912 = (322,912)
Change in fair value of BREMENATERD
investment properties - - - 9,917,231 - - 9,917,231 - 9,917,231

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from
its major products and services:

KEETEEmBERSEZ W

UTHREEEREETEER KN
Bz HFBEEEB W@ o

2021 2020
—E-—f& —=-=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Sales of printing and other products ENRI R EAth = miE & 612,791,859 516,966,351
Artistes management fee income BABEEWRA 391,498 57,917
Income from the licensing of the EE LSRN
musical works 2,391,187 3,029,834
Loan interest income from REBREEHEZEM
Lending Business R E WA 1,920,242 6,756,759
Promotion income SEBA 10,000 153,333
Rental income HEWA 4,477,272 4,880,323
Sales of albums IBRIHE 1,594,664 829,978
623,576,722 532,674,495
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BE

6.

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) SHEER (8
Geographical information & &k

The Group’s operation of Manufacturing and Sales
Business and Property Business are located in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group's operation of Lending
Business, Trading Business, Music and Entertainment
Business and Securities Trading Business are located in
Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and

FEBZRERBEXEHRYE
EBEEBRPEAKLE K&
BxMEXG B FEH T
FRIREEEF LU g5 BB =750
EERKE

AEBREIINEER ZWERE

information about non-current assets by geographical BIERIBEBRNS R R
location of the customers and assets respectively are set MEEMRMTEMESHYNT :

out below:

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REHMBEL ZUE EREEE

2021 2020 2021 2020

"R "RIRHF B “BI5F

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT

Hong Kong 58 234,018,508 227,654,406 269,502,371 213,140,186
The PRC FRE 256,221,762 200,393,633 243,369,670 260,559,576
Europe B 35,472,242 27,607,233 = =
United States EH 73,495,815 50,065,286 - =
Others Hth 24,368,395 26,953,937 - =

623,576,722 532,674,495 512,872,041 473,699,762

Note. Non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax Kzt ERBEEFACESHNEERIE
assets. EMRIEE E o

Information about major customers FTEERFEM

There was no customer contributing over 10% of total RBE_E_—FR_EBE_FF

sales of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

+ZA=+—HLEEE #ER
FEMGLGTEEBRFERRER
10%°
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HthmKkEEiE

2021 2020
—E—F “EIEF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Net foreign exchange loss ShEERS IR P EE (4,697,543) (8,151,710)
Change in fair value of BEYEN AT EEH)
investment properties (note 15) (K13£15) 46,763,317 (9,917,231)
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEME -MELEEZ
plant and equipment (F518) W& 3% (2,183,026) 322,912
Impairment losses recognised on ME -HERRFEZ
property, plant and equipment BRERBEEE
(note 14) (Hizt14) (1,934,349) -
Change in fair value in FEBETRATEINRZ
financial assets at FVTPL STHEEZNFEEEH (2,722,561) (32,529,639)
35,225,838 (50,275,668)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RIEMZ
2021 2020
—EFT—F TEIEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Interest on: UTFEEZHE
Bank borrowings RITER 1,401,519 2,446,816
Amount due to a related company FE —REAE QB RUIE 54,671 62,349
Lease liabilities HE&E 2,123,220 2,368,897
3,579,410 4,878,062
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLFE

I 14 == R Al A3 =
9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EF-ITHEKMKEESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS £
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration EERERITBAEHEINES
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine UTABNISEMSTHLES (T
(2020: nine) directors are as follows: TEBF AL EEZNE
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
#iTER FanES BUFAnES ERER
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAI LAU
Ka Lun, Chai  Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
28 BEE Rfan S REH ZEZ RE Bt %8 o
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
(note §) (note i)
(i) (i)
2021 Z5-f
Fees e - - 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Hiti e
- Salaries and other benefits -HEREAMER 2,292,000 1,368,000 - - - - - - 46126 4,121,206
- Contributions to retirement —RAEREEIER
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - 18,000 62,500
Total emoluments il 2,310,000 1,386,000 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 479,226 4,945,218
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors director
#i7ER JHTES BUFHTES EEES
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAI LAU
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai Kwok CHU Sai Wo, Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Wan Gun Pui Ricky Cheong Total
BER BEE et By REH TEE FET R 2RE @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS
A o io o A A A A A AT
(note |) (note i)
(&) (Hytiv)
2020 ZEC%E
Fees we - - 161,492 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 761,492
Other emoluments Hiti e
- Salaries and other benefits -HEREME 2245534 1,345,131 - - - - - - 494523 4,085,188
- Contributions to retirement ~BHERH I
benefits schemes 18,000 18,000 8,500 - - - - - 18,000 62,500
Total emoluments kRt 2,263,534 1,363,131 169,992 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 512,523 4,909,180
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9.

— i —

e

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
(Continued)

Notes:

@

(iii)

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the
Company and his remuneration disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him as chief executive.

The emoluments of executive directors were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors were for
their services as the directors of the Company.

Incentive performance bonuses for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 were determined by the
remuneration committee and approved by the board of
directors having regard to the performance and duties of
directors.

Mr. Lau Kam Cheong resigned as the alternate director to Dr.
Ng Wai Kwan on 31 January 2022.

There was no arrangement under which a director

or th
remu

e chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
neration during the year.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company as an inducement to joint or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
in any of the year.

-
£

FETHBRTRESM

EERITHAHME (&)

ez -

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEERETAERT ZITEE
B2 HREXREZNECBRE
H B 31T AR HFr IR #tBR 75 = B
%o

HITESFZHMDOMREEESE
REREEENEEFIRHZR
BEB - FRTESRBILIER
TEFZHFMDOMREERER
BESEREZRBMEL

BE_ZT_—ER_FEFF
+TZR=+—HILEEMNERERX
RIEADHRERDHMNEETE
EoUKEREHE EREEE
EFRRBRBH-

B ERENR_E__F—AH
—t+—HHETAREHEL S
FESE-

RAEFE SEEFNITHEER
MEHABDEREEFAHMZ 2

B o

RERNBRFE  ZEBERED
ARBEEXNEAME > 1FS
A& B SN ER 18 =~ B2 B Bl B
BmE
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]

9.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2020: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid employees who were neither a director nor

EF - TERHESKRESH
& (48)
EEM =

ErEELRERMALHR W
B(CEIEFE MR BERAT
EF REMZHBFEHN L
XoHBp=% (CTEF . =4)
WIFRRBEFRHITEAHZ &

chief executive of the Company are as follows: SHEEZINESWT
2021 2020
—EZ—F “EIEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,524,984 3,192,110
Contributions to retirement BRIABEHN FHEERR
benefits schemes 49,250 54,000
3,574,234 3,246,110
The number of the highest paid employees who were not the WIEARBIEE 2 REiHEEN

directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

MEBRUTHEBEZABNT

2021 2020

—E—F ECEHF

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEA# BE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,00078 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 TE

2,000,0007& 7T 1 1

3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office in any of the years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

10. TAXATION CREDIT

10. RIBIKRE

2021 2020
—E—F “ETEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation credit comprises: MIBIR R B1E -
Hong Kong Profits Tax FENER
Charge for the year KEZH (773,864) (1,596,104)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEBREEE 15,359 401,092
(758,505) (1,195,012)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R B2 PTER
Charge for the year REZH (4,354,565) =
(Under) overprovision in prior years BEEE BEFD
HBREE A (4,053,184) 2,807,805
(8,407,749) 2,807,805
Deferred tax credit (charge) for REFELERIEE R (FE2)
the year (note 31) (H15£31) 9,783,917 (491,299)
617,663 1,121,494

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits of one of the subsidiaries
of the Company and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million. The profits of corporation not
qualified for the two-tier profit tax regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

REMRFNESRNEFNE &
ERERSEREMNE2,000,0008
TOE A i 388.25% R T8 @
2,000,000 89 E0 2 B3%16.5%
B - AR EMAFERMEH
ENERSE EafEiEgs
—3%16.5%1#3

BHE T KT _FF
+-_B=+—HLEEFEE FH
MERLDEBBARDEF—KKH
BramstERRENZE
2,000,00078751%8.25% =t & > M
#B382,000,00078 7T A9 (5 51 FE 28
MiEFAIR16. 5%t E - AFE
MAFERMEFENLENE
o BHEEE —1216.5%EF o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

10. TAXATION CREDIT (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The taxation (charge) credit for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before taxation per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

10.

MIAR R (&)

BE(PREERERZE) ((d
EFRRFIME))) R EPERE
BHERA) > HEIME QS5 W
FEZMEHGH25% -

FAMIE ) BRI REGIE
m R Hfth 2 WA R R FTRBRIR
AIEIRE BRI

2021 2020
—E—F —EIEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Loss before taxation BRiR Al & 18 (11,752,260) (88,438,549)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% PTSMIRNZE16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) (ZEZZF 1165%)
SEZINIE 1,939,123 14,592,361
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ ReJHNRFIZ =2
for tax purposes MBETE (413,790) (3,944,863)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRWAZ
tax purposes MEE e 7,756,898 3,367,836
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIEMEAMFEEIEZ
METE (6,606,268) (16,374,717)
Tax effect of recognition of tax B B LB R IESIR TS
losses previously not recognised BEZRBEEE 3,236,926 -
(Under) overprovision in prior years BEFE EHEFRB)
FEERR (4,037,825) 3,208,897
Utilisation of tax losses previously B ASRIRER 2
not recognised MIEE1E - 513,619
Effect of different tax rates of REMEEHELZ 2
subsidiaries operating in other WEABERERE
jurisdictions S (1,403,274) (405,979)
Tax effect of share of results of DEEERBEEZ
joint ventures MBEE (619) (660)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate MERIR R 2 I B 146,492 165,000
Taxation credit for the year FRRIERR 617,663 1,121,494
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. FEFEEE
2021 2020
s —%F S
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the year has been arrived at ~ sTEAFFERFEINMR G

after charging (crediting): A
Auditor's remuneration ZEEMBN = 2,100,000 2,100,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRARZZFERA

expense (including write-down of (BiEsHRMEES

inventories of HK$1,738,392 (2020: 1,738,392 (&

HK$1,570,414)) =T|E 1 1,570,414875T)) 284,536,781 226,205,655
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 10,141,861 8,758,023
Depreciation of other property, Hth -mERKBITE

plant and equipment 28,105,742 28,389,168
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERRBINE

equipment 38,247,603 37,147,191
Less: included in cost of sales and B St A E MRS A A

services (26,832,006) (21,449,420)
11,415,597 15,697,771
Staff costs including directors’ ETHA (BIEEEMN®)

emoluments

— Salaries, wages and other benefits —Fe s TEREMER 176,449,142 155,240,175

— Contributions to retirement benefits ~ —3RAKEF) 515 X

schemes 11,785,706 2,135,822
Less: included in cost of sales and LSt AHE MRS AL A
services (106,696,491) (92,564,118)
81,538,357 64,811,879
Legal and professional fees FEREEER 9,701,796 11,424,078
Gross rental income from investment  REKREYHE
properties & W AAEZE (4,477,272) (4,880,323)
Less: Direct operating expenses B AFEAHESWAZ
incurred for investment properties KREMEESEZE
that generated rental income BEERE%
during the year 340,479 291,480
(4,136,793) (4,588,843)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

11.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

TFR5E (B)

2021 2020
—EZ—HF TEIEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The following items are included in UTIEEstAERMEE
(reversal of impairment losses) hREHNEETERES
impairment losses under ECL model EIEEA T (RES
on financial assets and contract assets, 18%#[0]) R {EEEFEE !
net:
— (reversal of impairment losses) —B 5 EWEIE
impairment losses on trade OB B E5 1815 (0])
receivables, net BEEERFRE (2,291,599) 710,090
— (reversal of impairment losses) —aBNEE
impairment losses on contract CRE 518 % [])
assets, net BIEEEFER (714,591) 855,504
— (reversal of impairment losses) —EWER
impairment losses on loans OB B E5 1815 (0])
receivable, net BEEBRFRE (183,063) 30,554,241
— Impairment losses on amounts —EWREATMRIBZ
due from related companies B - 1,236,756
The following items are included in MTIEEBEST AEMAIE
other interest income: N
— Bank interest income —#RITHEUWA (754,500) (1,153,875)
— Interest income on rental deposits —fEEE2MEWA (80,216) (83,341)
The following items are included in UTIEEBETAEMUA :
other income:
— Dividend income — B U (1,214,590) (528,550)
— Government grants (Note) — BB (B52) (4,239,371) (10,552,678)
— Others —HA1th (2,451,500) (1,537,349)

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2021, government grants
represented one-off government grants in the PRC of HK$100,000
(2020: HK$3,036,252) related to grants under Covid-19 pandemic, the
government grants that are receivable as a compensation for expenses
incurred of HK$2,500,442 (2020: HK$2,997,641) and assets-related
government grant of HK$1,638,929 (2020: nil) during the year ended
31 December 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there
were also government grants received for the Employment Support
Scheme launched by the Hong Kong Government of HK$4,518,785.

Wt -

HE_E-_—F+_B=+—HILEE"
K /HEEhiE 820198 mEREIB TH
EBUF— X M #B1100,00088 7T (ZZ =
T 13,036,252 \FABE_ZE
T+ ZB=+—HLEFEMELH
7 fE BV FE IR BT # B2,500,442 8 7T (2
T T 12,997,641 70) REEMBK
FI#EBN1,638,929/8 7L (ZZZZF 1 ) o
BE_ZZF+_B=+—HILEEE"
TRERE BB B TR 51 8 URER
BT 814,518,785 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended BE_ZE_—FR_E_FHF
31 December 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend +-_A=+—HIEFEARTEIK
been proposed since the end of the reporting period. NHEZKEEMNKRE  BH®RE
,HHE!ELX%DT%LD&/)L’@‘XEHHQ
Be
13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREHE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RABEE ANEESRKRELREIE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: T5ERUTEESE
Loss figures are calculated as follows: BREAFHENT
2021 2020
—E—F THIEE
HK$ HK$
AT BT

Loss for the year attributable to owners R EtEHEREXREFEZ
of the Company for the purpose of KABIEB NGRS

calculating basic loss per share 518 (10,706,159) (87,187,111)
2021 2020
—EZ—F “EIEHF

Number of ordinary shares in issue for BRIEESREREEZ
the purpose of calculating basic loss ERTEEREE

per share 253,639,456 253,639,456
No separate diluted loss per share information has been R MEFESL EETEIZ
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares BETER RILREBIUZE
outstanding issue for both years. Hxﬁlﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁzﬁﬂ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_ T —&F+"HA=t+—HIEE
14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ME- -BEKR=H

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
Construction lands and Leasehold and office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HETHRK HiRER
ERIR BF HENEEE WAZRME HERRE HE Mzt
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT BT BT B
CosT BA
At 1 January 2020 RIEZTE-B—H 14,042,124 267,563,778 60,874,312 51,341,180 520,149,735 19,300,560 933,271,689
Exchange adjustments ERBE 2,830,368 5,757,507 1,872,958 702,309 10,555,581 303,390 22,022,113
Additions HE 1,109,279 5,039,321 7,798,246 5,190,449 28,016,014 1,155,380 48,308,639
Disposals HE S S > (72,768) (6,227,399) - (6,300,167)
Transfer o properties under BREHERRTNE
development for sale (note 20) (Hz220) (17,981,771) (59,210,968) - - = = (77,192,739)
Eliminated upon leases expired RRETIHREH - (1,736,014) = = = = (1,736,014)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZBE+°RA=1+—H - 217,413,624 70,545,516 57,161,170 552,493,931 20,759,330 918,373,571
Exchange adjustments ERHEE - 1,377,997 929,892 355,596 5,836,303 160,505 8,660,293
Additions RE S 13,708,058 944,014 1,813,292 2,123,751 5,539,265 24,728,380
Disposals and written-offs HE KK - (1,284,380) (2,800) (564,777) (5,717,569) (676,717) (8,246,43)
Eliminated upon leases expired PR E FI AR - (372,251) = = = = (372,251)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-£+-A=+-H S 230,843,048 72,416,622 58,765,281 555,336,416 25,782,383 943,143,750
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT  $7 & Reidif&
At 1 January 2020 RIEZTE-B—H S 69,343,193 51,482,748 47,684,086 447,285,641 15,196,184 630,991,852
Exchange adjustments ERAE S 3,598,653 1,481,161 373,115 3,023,320 187,759 8,664,008
Provided for the year RERE - 14,681,615 6,647,818 2,455,914 11,686,317 1,675,527 37,147,191
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - - - (4,007,967) - (4,007,967)
Transfer to properties under BRERERRTYE
development for sale (note 20) li20)) = (2,345,400 = = = = (2,345,400)
Eliminated upon leases expired PRSI R - (1,736,014) = = = = (1,736,014)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZBE+ZRA=1+—H B 83,542,047 59,611,727 50,513,115 457,987,311 17,059,470 668,713,670
Exchange adjustments ERBE - 815,119 544,106 215,303 2,510,211 103,003 4,187,742
Provided for the year RERE - 10,686,018 5,425,015 2,839,648 17,383,450 1913472 38,247,603
Impairment losses recognised in RERRDNABSE
profit or loss - - - 774,076 1,160,273 - 1,934,349
Eliminated on disposals and HE Rl 8
written-offs B (802,738) (2,800) (458,746) (2,548,587) (669,214) (4,482,085)
Eliminated upon leases expired RAETI R - (372,251) - - - - (372,251)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-&E+°B=1+-H - 93,868,195 65,578,048 53,883,396 476,492,658 18,406,731 708,229,028
CARRYING VALUES REME
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F+ZA=+-H - 136,974,853 6,838,574 4,881,885 78,843,758 7,375,652 234,914,722
At 31 December 2020 RIZZBE+ZR=1+—H = 133,871,577 10,933,789 6,648,055 94,506,620 3,699,860 249,659,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

14.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME- -BEKREE (@)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other P E - -BEEZEER T&
than construction in progress, after taking into account TN 2IHERKEEBRERE
the residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line BB > NDIEAUTEXRREG -
basis at the following rates per annum: =&
Leasehold lands Over the shorter HEITHRIEF RENHEI0E0E
and buildings of the lease terms MUBEEAE)
or 30 — 50 years
Leasehold improvements ~ 12.5% — 20% HEMERE  125%—20%
Furniture, fixtures 10% — 25% BIEER 10%—25%
and office equipment MAEZE
Machinery and equipment  10% - 25% R RRE 10%—25%
Motor vehicles Over the shorter b BRAER
of the lease terms 25%%E33'5%
or 25% — 33'3% UBREEAL)
2021 2020
—EC—F “BIEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The carrying values of leasehold B T REF 2R
land and buildings shown HEEE
above comprise:
Leasehold land and buildings in REBZHEL MK
Hong Kong BT 11,548,784 11,588,139
Leasehold land and buildings in PRC R FEZEE LM
B 125,426,069 122,283,438
136,974,853 133,871,577
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group as lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant

and equipment)

14. MFE - -KBEKRzE (&)

TEBESEBA

REBESE GIANE BE
K2 1E)

Leasehold land

and building vehicles Total
HE LM KRIEF st
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—%+"A=+—H
Carrying amount IRAEE 55,720,503 3,862,590 59,583,093
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+°-A=+—H
Carrying amount IREE 50,706,915 50,706,915
For the year ended gE_ZT-_—-#+”-A=+—H
31 December 2021 ILEFE
Depreciation charge TEER 9,973,922 167,939 10,141,861
Additions hE 13,708,058 4,030,529 17,738,587
For the year ended BE_T-_THF+”H=+—H
31 December 2020 ILEE
Depreciation charge WEER 8,758,023 8,758,023
Additions wE 5,039,321 5,039,321
2021 2020
s —ECE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ EAZSEATR S A RARIEE X 585,664 3,858,087
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEEME (8
low-value assets, excluding REEEENEHEE
short-term leases of low-value assets BRI 22,632 22,632
Total cash outflow for leases HEMIR®RH4EEE 10,340,841 15,731,617

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses and factory for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to fifty

years.

228

RmEEE ~EEAHHEENR
EETHMRE -BRERIMK -E
ESREEHNR—ER+F5]
7o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

14.

B —HF+"A=+—HLHFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
smaller office premises and office equipment. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases for
which the short-term lease expenses is disclosed above.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain not to exercise a termination option,
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances that is within
the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, there is no such triggering
event.

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$11,042,890 (2020: HK$9,908,532)
has been pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2021.
Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the pledge
of property, plant and equipment is released by the
banks.

Leasehold improvements with an aggregate cost of
HK$38,707,592 (2020: HK$41,434,280) were fully
depreciated are still in use as at 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
considered to suspend the mask production due to
poor performance of the operation. Accordingly,
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,934,349 (2020: nil) was recognised.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

14.

Y&~ BB Ress i ()

AEBRFEAEEA (B)

REEEE GIAYE K
KR (&)

A EE A BN LR AEY
¥ RIFAR B TEPEE o i
I, e s s
=+—8 - R Ea AR
4 0 K R S 699
HEEA

Eoh > 7R85 A 7R AKFR A RV 2RI 6
ERNEAEHRBEREREX
BER AIXEEEHTEES
PREBEFTEQILEZE-
RB&EZE_—FR-ZT-FTHF
+ZA=+—HLEE LEH
LEMEM-

BREESL11,042,890/% 7T (Z
T T 19,908,532 T) 2
X BEAREBECEBFTIRIT
EAXERNR _2E-—F+=A8
—t+—HERZ—RKBITEEZ
EH-RIREPER WE -BER
RENEREERITARRR

48 RN A 438,707,5928 1 (Z &
T 141,434,280 7T) BT
EYELEERBITE
2 —F+"B=+—B1AE
)Eﬁo

REE_S_—F+_-_A=+—
HEEE Z"EBROSEEN
RBEAEMEREFEZER K
IEERRBYE - BE KRR ERE
E5181,934,3498 T (ZE &
FHE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

14.

15.

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, majority of
the property, plant and equipment has been allocated
to cash-generating unit of Manufacturing and Sales
Business. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period,
and discount rate of 15.8%. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2.25%
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development. During the year ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020, management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment on the property,
plant and equipment.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are located in
Hong Kong and the PRC. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties. The Group leases out
various offices in the PRC and commercial and industrial
premises in Hong Kong under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years (2020: one to three
years) with no rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

14.

15.

Y&~ B Ress i (@)

AEBREAEEAN (B)

REEEE GIAYE K
KR (4B)
MEERASMS RSO WE-
BERREEDNRERSRIHE
EBNRTEEE U - JWREE
BEENHEREBEENEmE
- BEERAREEEREZ
hFHARMEBTERE MU 52 15.8% M9 A
REFUENEBETARAERA -AF
B ZHERERIER2.25%
WRERERXHER ZERETS
ERERTENERER BX
BREBRTENTHRALE R
KRB EREEMANEME
ERREHFER/AREAVE
SAERM HhEEHERERE
HME BEGEEDERBERE
REEBHTHERNAR -1
BE_T_—F+°"A=+—H
kRZZE-ZEF+"_H=+—HIL
FE XEHEEBEEWE -
Bg B K s N TERIME ©

REWFE

AEBREVEDUNREA KT
B o 7 & [ i Bk BN <2 S0 B AN 1R
EMERBEEEEERBZFIEY
EFRmIOUAFERNGE I
DERARINFREYE K&
ERFECEHEHEERENZ
BMAERTEEENIEYE
ﬁiﬁ!ﬁﬁﬁ HH—R5

EZHE(CBIEF I —EZ
E%EﬁﬁAﬁ%%ﬁ%L%x
IGHAR 2 18 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The lease contracts do not contain residual value
guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of the lease term.

15.

1:2 ﬁ fl:% ¥ (n‘E)

YT EHEFGREERRER
AR AR AREREESYE
ZEEERE o

HK$
BT
At 1 January 2020 N2 _FF—H—H 220,915,017
Fair value change recognised in RERER 2 AFEET)
profit or loss (9,917,231)
Exchange adjustments b 0 A EE 1,022,300
At 31 December 2020 RN_ZB_EF+_"_HA=+—H 212,020,086
Fair value change recognised in RERERZ AT EET)
profit or loss 46,763,317
Exchange adjustments b A EE 511,386
At 31 December 2021 w_E-—F+-F=+—8H 259,294,789
Unrealised gain (loss) on property FTAEMERN
revaluation included in FEREBHWE (BB
other gains and losses
— for the year ended —HE_ZE "%
31 December 2021 +ZB=+—HLEE 46,736,317
— for the year ended —-BE_Z"E
31 December 2020 +ZRA=+—HLEE (9,917,231)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

15.

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of all investment properties has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. They are independent qualified professional
valuers not related to the Group.

Investment properties with fair value of
HK$137,357,335 as at 31 December 2021 has been
based in the proposed disposal price of entire issued
share capital of Profit Link Investment Limited (“Profit
Link”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company which owns the investment properties, with
an independent third party. Such disposal has completed
subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2021
as disclosed in note 41. Such investment properties
with fair value of HK$97,700,000 as at 31 December
2020 was determined based on the direct comparison
approach assuming sale of each of these properties in
existing state and by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market
and adjusted for differences in the nature and location.
Accordingly, the fair value measurement is transfer to
level 2 as at 31 December 2021 from level 3 as at 31
December 2020.

Investment properties with fair value of
HK$121,937,454 (2020: HK$114,320,086) as at
31 December 2021 are determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield expected by investors for
this type of properties. The market rentals are assessed
based on estimates of future cash flows, supported
by the terms of existing lease and the market rentals
of the similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
capitalisation rate is determined by reference to the
yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar properties and adjusted to take into account the
market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment properties.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

15.

1:2 ﬁ fl:% ¥ (n‘E)

FrE REWE AT ESIRIEE
BIEHRADN B —FR
—EoEt A=+ HE
BB - AT 9B BA
B0 R BB O A AR A
B

N _E_—F+_-_F=+—H
ZANF{EA137,357,3358BTH
REVMENERBUE =%
BZREYMENALBBEZEEZE
MBABFAKEEIEERAT
(MpXy) 2ELEITRAESE
BHEE UMM FE41FTIRE »
EREHESEHEEREE S —

F+_A=+—HIEFEEBST
R —_B2_TF+_B=+—
HZ AY{E%A97,700,0008 T2
BERREYENREERLEBRLE
T ERRERZEYEZIER Y
E wWER2EHBAMB LIRS
OELERBFERFULMEE R

NEEEZEFLRAE -HMAFES
ERR_E_EF+"B=1+—
HRNBE3IREBEBER _S_—%F
+ZB=+—H%FE2%-

RZE-—F+Z"HA=+—HxZ
NFEA121,937,4548 7 (&
—E4 1 114,320,086 ) 218
EMENRBABERCEET
FrEwETHMBEENNTSEA
SRR EEHZBEEYENTE
M BN m R ET G RARIR -
MBEHESHRERKIRSRERE
BETHE WLORERE R
KM EN T ERSESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

15.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use and adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued
operating lease income to avoid double counting. At
the end of the reporting period, the financial controller
works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs into the model. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to management of the
Group.

Except for the transfer of fair value measurement
as mentioned above, there were no changes to the
valuation techniques for investment properties. The
carrying amount of the Group's remaining investment
properties is a Level 3 fair value measurement. There
were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for the
remaining investment properties during the year.
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15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REME (@)
Information about fair value measurements using EFHE KA o8 A BE
significant unobservable inputs ZAFEEEZER
The following table shows the valuation techniques TR REEEEYENTER
used in the determination of fair values for investment FEREEEMNTARGEEE PP E
properties and unobservable inputs used in the valuation B2 o= A Bk o
models.
Inter relationship between
significant unobservable
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation Significant Range of si?nificant inputs and fair value
Description 31 December hierarch ]iy techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs measurement
g K+ZB=+-ANATE NYEER  HERE EXRTBRER EXRARZBA EARTREEARBA
2021 2020 BARE YiEHE RTEHEZENEERE
ZEI-% -3 2021 2020
HKS HK$ 3 e
AT A
Industrial properties in 137,357,335 NA - Level 2 Proposed disposal price  Proposed disposal price N/A NA - NA
Fanhﬁ? Hong Kont . . ) ) . . )
KEEREI TENE I S wen Fan Tan T
N/A 97,700,000  Level 3 Direct comparison () Based on market N/A HK$2,667  The higher/lower the market
approach observable transactions to HK$4,022 price, the higher/lower the
of comparable per square fair value.
. . o properties . feet
TER 30 BRLEE (i) %E%‘Jttﬁ‘%z TER ESRLS
TRIEERS 266721 E
400287
(i) Level adjustments N/A 025%t00.50%  The increase/decrease in
level adjustment/location
adjustment, the higher or
) lower the fa|rva|ue .
i) BB TER  05%I050% GHEE/MESEDE
e ATER mﬁw&"
(iii) - Location adjustments N/A 3%105%  The increase/decrease in
level adjustment/location
adjustment, the higher or
. . lower the fair value.
(i) EFEE TER MEsh  RHBE/RAEAE/
B ATERSIAE.
Properties in the PRC 18,237,454 16,520,086 Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 2.75% 325%  The lower/higher the
approach taking into account the capitalisation rate, the
capitalisation of market higher/lower the fair value.
) o rental value
(IR RERE 3% WABRILHE () Ex(EE G ATEE ﬁzk (S
SEENERL) aE/ 2.

(i) Market rental value RMB143 RMB136  The higher/lower the market
to RMB165 to RMB160 rental value, the higher/
per square per square lower the fair value

meter meter N
(i) TEAEEE BILK SYHR ﬂ‘if%@ﬁ@%/@ﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁ
AEE13TE  AREI6E  As/Bf
AR #1657 ARE1607
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_ T —F+"HA=t+—HIEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REME (@)
Information about fair value measurements using FHERFTHZHEAME
significant unobservable inputs (Continued) ZAFEA=EZER (B
Inter relationship between
significant unobservable
Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation Significant Range of significant inputs and fair value
Description 31 December hierarch techniques unobservable inputs unobservable inputs measurement
i K+ZA=+-AMATHE ATEER  HERE AFIER EXTHBEREA EXTAURERANES
2021 2020 BAHE HEE ’Hfﬁdﬁfﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
E-F “ETEE 2021 2020
HKS HK$ “EC-% ZEEk
BT AT
Commercial properties 103,700,000 97,800,000  Level 3 Income capitalisation (i) Capitalisation rate 3.5% 45%  The lower/higher the
in Yuen Long, Hong approach taking into account the capitalisation rate, the
Kong capita‘\isaition of market higher/lower the fair value.
rental value
REETHZEENE £34 WAERIEE () BALEGATSRE ERfLER /8% ATE
SBENERL) REVE D
(i) Market rental value HK$38 HK$21  The higher/lower the market
to HK$63 toHK$65  rental value, the higher/
per square per square lower the fair value.
feet
(i) TRALEE STAR E&?E”E ﬁiiﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ/ﬂl A
BETE NERE WA/
637 65T
As at 31 December 2021, investment properties with R _E_—F+"A=+—8>

aggregate carrying value of HK$241,057,335 (2020:
HK$195,500,000) were pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings as stated in note 30 and general banking
facilities granted to the Group. Subsequent to the end
of reporting period, the pledge of investment properties

is released by the banks.

4BBRTH{B 4241,057,335%8 7T (Z
195,500,000 7T) =~

510 FIR1T 0 1EA M
FE30PTIIR TR E R AN EEER
BEZER PNERS
R BREYENIKFEEIRTT

7—735
REYEEE

Z—MRIRTT

R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLFE

16. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

16. BRHEMEEBAELTF
BEIRZRETAH Eid
BmBEAFEIRZ R
BE
BREMEEBARATE

FIfRZIATH
2021 2020
—E=—f§ “ECEF
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Unlisted equity securities established — FA& 7 ~ FRE K& 89N El 3L
in Hong Kong, the PRC and ZIEEHRAFES
overseas (note) (Ht52) 22,550,619 17,854,928

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Group has investments in three
(2020: three) unlisted equity securities established in the
PRC, three (2020: two) unlisted equity securities established
in overseas and one (2020: one) unlisted equity security
incorporated in Hong Kong which were held for an identified
long term strategic purpose.

MaF: WZEZ—F+"A=+—8>
AEEHEFERIN=RIEL
MRAES CEZ2TFE MK
RN =RIFEEMBRAE
H(CEIZ2E MR RREB
HEMALN—RIELEHRARZS
(ZEIZF . —R) ETRE>
ZERENFEEAENRERR
B AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BH=E

16.

B+ _"_B=+—HULtEFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

These investments in equity instruments are not held
for trading. Instead, they are held for medium to long-
term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company have elected to designate these investments
in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments'
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with
the Group's strategy of holding these investments for
long-term purposes and realising their performance
potential in the long run.

Details of the fair value measurement on equity
instruments at FVTOCI are disclosed in note 39.

Financial assets at FVTPL

16.

EREMEAERARALT
BEIRZRETAH Eid
HamBATFEIRZ ER
BE (8

FRHEMEEBARRTE
SIBRz IRAT A (&

ZERATITEREBTIFFEE
B AR BEDBFERRAR
AR AL "ATEEFEE
BERZEREATARERERSE
BHEHMEEBARAFETER
RABRERD BRXERE
B R BREYA T EE KRS
HAEBRAREENFAZSR
EREBERAREBERENRE
AEFe

BBE2EWALATFET R
AT EZATFEFEFBERHE
393 EE ©

FRBEDEATFEIRNE
MEE

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong A& BZ EHRAKRE

2021 2020
—m=—% —mome
HK$ HK$
#5T B
24,716,500 23,059,714

Details of the fair value measurement on financial assets
at FVTPL are disclosed in note 39.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

BERBEmBAFEIIRNEME
EZ AT EEF BRI
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

17.

—E- G+ -A=+—HILER

e

CONTRACT ASSETS 17. 8HEE
2021 2020
—E—F “EIEHF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

Contract assets from Manufacturing SIS R IHEEBN

and Sales Business EHEE 46,875,356 36,383,928
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEREEE (428,539) (1,143,130)
46,446,817 35,240,798

As at 1 January 2020, contract assets amounted to
HK$19,008,737.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's
right to consideration from the customers for the
manufacturing and sales of printing products. Contract
assets arise when the Group has right to consideration
for the work completed under relevant contracts
and their right is conditioned on factors other than
passage of time. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables upon the delivery and acceptance of
products by customers.

Typical payment terms is 60 to 120 days upon delivery.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
assets because the Group expects to realise them in its
normal operating cycle which is within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note
39.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

N_BE_EF—H—H> 588
719,008,737 T 0

BHNEETZRMAERMNE
RAHEEIR Ema & P W AE
ZHEM SNEENRTEEARE
S IRIBEA RGN TER
RE> BRERREFNBUFER
MUIINNEARRIFHRFEE -G
NEBEERE P R RIZWE @
BEEESRURIE

— R RRARR A 2 J #60%E 120
=k

FERRBZEGNEEDEAR
HEE REASEAEBRRHNIE
FEEBH ARSMARETZ
BARN) SZEEELR -

BB IB I I EE39IK B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_E_ S+ "_A=+—HIFEE
18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. RBELTIZHER
2021 2020
—EZ—HF —ECE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Costs of investments RIELHEBEREZ
in unlisted joint ventures KERA 16 16
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEHUN R IE A K&
other comprehensive income = TN 396,716 400,466
396,732 400,482

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
interests in the following joint ventures:

R —FR_BTF+
A=+—HB Tx&BRUTEE

NEER R
Proportion of
Form of Principal nominal value
business Country of place of (lass of of issued capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation share held held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
EEMS
RRAE RBERET AR TEEEHY PSRt &5 BETRFEEL PR ELA TEEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZBC-f CECEF ZEC-F CECEf
% % % %
Reliance Partner Incorporated Anguilla Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Investment holding
il el & EER RErR
Estate Summit Incorporated British Virgin Hong Kong Ordinary 50 50 50 50 Inactive
Islands ("BVI")
il ERESHS &% EER RS
(ZBRLEE)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are BERTAEARZESEAGE
not individually material =g S
2021 2020
—E-—& —ECE
HK$ HK$
B BT
The Group's share of loss RNEBEILEE 3,750 4,000
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fm o A R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

19. INVENTORIES 19. F§&
2021 2020
—EZ—HF “EIEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R 11,481,681 22,558,598
Finished goods Sk 9,051,932 12,978,891
20,533,613 35,537,489
Certain finished goods were damaged and as a result, EFapy mwmigE s JL B
write-down of inventories of HK$1,738,392 (2020: TIZEMUR1,738,3928 T (&
HK$1,570,414) has been recognised and included in ZTH 1,570,414 5T) 0 M st
cost of sales and services during the year ended 31 ABZEzE_E_—F+_B=4+—
December 2021. HIEFERNHEE RIRFEE AT o
20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 20. FEZEDPYE
SALE
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZEHF—H—H 42,598,351
Transferred from property, plant and equipment #E#BE¥) % =&K& E 74,847,339
Additions RE 4,629,121
Exchange adjustments BE 2 FH %L 2,684,314
At 31 December 2020 RWIEZIEF+"A=+—H 124,759,125
Additions R"E 68,490,278
Exchange adjustments PE R AR 5,116,077
At 31 December 2021 n_Z-—F+"“HA=+—H 198,365,480
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

20.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

GEXREYYE (B

Analysis of leasehold lands: HE Mo
HK$
BT
As at 31 December 2021 HWZE2-_—H+=ZHB=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 109,430,877
As at 31 December 2020 HRZIEZTHFE+ZHB=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 99,463,919

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The residual values are determined
as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold land
component. No depreciation charge is made on the
leaseholder lands taking into account the estimated
residual values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The properties under development for sale of the Group
are situated on the land located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group changed its intention of a certain plot of land
in the PRC from owner-occupation to development
for sale. Accordingly, the carrying amount of
HK$74,847,339 was transferred from property, plant
and equipment (including leasehold land and building
of HK$56,865,568 and construction in progress of
HK$17,981,771) to properties under development for
sale.

One of the properties under development for sale are
developed on the land in the PRC owned by ;&%& M/
BREMERZEBFR /AT ("Zhongging”), a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$42,201,076 (2020:
HK$42,598,351).

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

5+ eV BRmEE U A R R A
REtTEREABEREBRKFEZ
FeprEEREAEELI D
HNEFHEBE - TEIHEEZ
E_—FK_E_FF+_A
—+—HBEEReREE HE
THAHRITEER

FEBZFERRPYEMNT
Bzt ko

BHE-Z_TF+-A=1+—8°
EFE AEBSERPENE
THIR R EBEAHER AL
BENALEEFE AL F@E
B57474,847,3398BtE Y
BMERZE (BIEHE L &8
F56,865,568B T U M IEE L2
17,981,771870) BEREFE R
JEdesky/E

Hbh—BFEZRERTYERH
BERTHAEMERZEERAE
(TR BEME ARABZIESR
BENBAR) RPEEE 2T
L3R BREEL%A42,201,076
BT (CE T FE [ 42,598,3518
7T) °©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

20.

B HF+_"B=+—HIEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 18 June 2014, FYIHFERERKREERBRAT
("Zhongxing Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the immediate holding company of
Zhongging, initiated civil proceedings against Zhongging
in the FIIMEBELZEARZER ("People’s Court of
Baoan District”) for the repayment of the shareholder’s
loan owing to Zhongxing Guosheng of RMB23,479,330.
On 19 June 2014, pursuant to an application made
by Zhongxing Guosheng to freeze and preserve assets
of Zhongging in the total value of RMB23,400,000,
an order was granted by the People’s Court of Baoan
District to freeze and preserve the lands owned by
Zhongqing during the period from 24 June 2014 to 23
June 2016 ("Freeze Order”).

On 15 October 2014, the Group received the civil
mediation document (REFHESE) issued by the
People’s Court of Baoan District that (i) both Zhongging
and the Group confirmed the shareholder’s loan was in
sum of RMB23,479,330; (ii) Zhongging agreed to repay
to Zhongxing Guosheng the sum of RMB23,479,330
together with the interests accrued from 18 June 2014
until the date of repayment within 15 days after the
effective date of the civil mediation document (i.e. 15
October 2016); and (iii) if Zhongqging fails to repay the
amount stated in (ii) in full on time, the Group has the
right to request Zhongging to pay default interests
calculated at two times of the lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China over the same period.

On 27 May 2016, the Group received the assistance
execution notice (IFBI¥ITEHAIE) issued by the
People’s Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve
the land owned by Zhongqing during the period from
13 June 2016 to 12 June 2020.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

20.

GEEXRETYE (@)

RZE—WNEANB+NHZF
NHHERRKREERERAT
(THhEREE ARBEZ22EN
BAEKRDTEEMEZZEEIE
BRAE) MEEEXFERRK Y
REEDRARM23,479,3307T A
FUNTEZEARER (TBZ
BARER) HHERHER
HEEHRB- N _ZE—MENA
+hB> REFEBRBRRF RS
RERETEEHEBEGEAR
23,400,000 2 EE ELE
ARZERES RS —MOEN
AZ+HmHBE_Z—/NENA
“t+-HEERERREFBERE
WEER 2 T (NEES]) o

A E-NE+A+HREH AE
BWIHEZE AREFZESR
ZREFARE RBBOWFPEE
HMERAEBEIBEIDREER
A ANRUME23,479,3307T ; (i) &
EHEERERESHMBREL
MHERISK B & —XR&E+
B+HEH) AB+TE2REEREZEA
823,479,330 EEHE_ZE
—HEXRB+N\BHEEEREH
LR ZFE 5 Kifd 75 5Bt
EXREERZHEZFAEH N
B AEBEHERTEREM
EXMENFNE &R ZE—
HAEPEARBTEENEZR
ZETHE-o

A _E-RFEEB-Z+tEH 'K

ERRIBEZE AR AR
HOHBBRITEEE UN S
—RNERB+=HE_ZE_ZHF
AAT ZBHEEAERFEE RS
EMEERE T
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BE

20.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 15 May 2019, the Group received the notice of
seizure period (BEETHAR@ A E) issued by the People’s
Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the land
owned by Zhongging during the period from 13 May
2019 to 12 May 2022 (the "Updated Freeze Order”).

At the date of this report, the shareholder’s loan has
not yet been settled by Zhongging. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Updated Freeze Order
is for the purpose of securing the Group's rights and
to ensure that Zhongging has sufficient assets to repay
the shareholder’s loan to the Zhongxing Guosheng.
Therefore, the directors of the Company considered
there is no impairment on both the properties under
development for sale and the shareholder’s loan.
Zhongxing Guosheng can withdraw the court order
for the repayment of the shareholder’s loan and then
release the Updated Freeze Order from the People’s
Court of Baoan District at any time and Zhongxing
Guosheng remains in control over Zhongging as its
operation other than the construction on the land
owned by Zhongging is not affected by the Freeze Order
or the Updated Freeze Order.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

20.

GEXREYYE (B

R-_E—HhERB+HEB &
EREETE AREiRBH2E
HERBEINE URZE—HhE
FR+=BE_E_-__%F1HAH
+ _HIBRERRETEER
zxh (ERFERES]) ©

RARSBE > REBMERAK
BERREM - ZARTDEFR
H BMRESEERERER
ZHEMN BETEEMERS B
WEEDTERREERRE
MBI ZARBREFRRFTE
LRPYEKRKRRERBER
1B o 1 2 B 2% 7] LARE B B0 (B 0% B
MEERREMFLHBL AR
BmFERZE AR ERBAMIYE
HORAS < > R E R P EH 5
BREME  ARRITPEEME
FREE L RSN HEE
TRREIRNENRELHE
2o
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21.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

21.

B REMEUWRIE TR
NEREDOSHEA

2021 2020
—E—F TECEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B EWFIE 121,178,354 113,341,530
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEREES (828,427) (3,093,921)
120,349,927 110,247,609
Receivables with brokers’ houses KAp TR EIE 1,263,981 10,191,214
Deposits and other receivables s R EMEWFRIE 25,411,878 22,312,508
Other tax recoverable Hh AW o]z 18 5,370,516 4,296,372
Prepayments I ®RIE 11,356,989 11,860,199
163,753,291 158,907,902
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEABRDMA
Current assets BB E 159,596,715 155,011,721
Non-current assets EMENEE 4,156,576 3,896,181
163,753,291 158,907,902
As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts N _EBE_EF—H—H > RKREH

with customers amounted to HK$135,468,973.

The Group’s credit terms on Manufacturing and Sales
Business and Trading Business generally range from 60
to 90 days. Credit period of 120 days is granted to a
few customers of the Manufacturing and Sales Business
with whom the Group has a good business relationship
and who are in sound financial condition. The Group
allows an average credit period of 60 to 90 days to its
customers of Music and Entertainment Business. The
following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R 2 £ EZERFRAE

EREIMYZ

Z BB EWRIA

135,468,973 7T ©

AEBUERBEEXEFUKRES
XX EEHRR—BNF60E
90H o VBB AERE BIF
AEEMBER IR 2 8E &iE
EEXRETRUEAFAI20HZEE
Hlo REBH FERRIRBEETS
BRZEEHRFHEAE0E
He A TARREHRBIHTEE
HERZY ZEFE WA (B
BR{EERBEREE) REDTC
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

21.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

21.

BEZ R EMEURIE TR
R IELL R 5T &= (1)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETERE
HK$ HK$
T AT
Manufacturing and Sales Business and 8IS R IHE XK URE 5
Trading Business: ESC
0 — 30 days 0Z30H 80,719,503 58,405,247
31 - 60 days 31&E60H 22,572,999 33,881,466
61 - 90 days 61290H 8,666,407 11,183,977
Over 90 days #B4E90H 7,232,846 5,569,541
119,191,755 109,040,231
Music and Entertainment Business: FURE R IR TS
0 — 30 days 0E30H 517,851 778,509
31 - 60 days 31260H 8,116 129,147
61 — 90 days 61%E90H 151,276 89,722
Over 90 days HBBI0H 480,929 210,000
1,158,172 1,207,378
Total trade receivables B 5 EWGRIBAREE 120,349,927 110,247,609
Trade receivables of approximately HK$11,496,000 A _E_—F+_"_H=+—

(2020: HK$26,284,000), HK$1,898,000 (2020: nil)
and HK$3,548,000 (2020: nil) were denominated in
United States dollars (“USD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and
Euro ("EURQ"), respectively as at 31 December 2021,
the currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities.

H>A8%11,496,000% 7T (—
BT . 26,284,000 T)
1,898,000 70 (Z B 24 . #®)
523,548,0008 0 (CE _ZF :
) 2B S EWEIEBE D RIMUET
(ME=mx) AR (AR &
Bt (TBUT)) BB 2EEK
WIFREBERZINEEK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

21.

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$32,349,702 (2020: HK$9,040,941)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, HK$1,764,782 (2020:
HK$4,348,466) has been past due 90 days or more and
is not considered as in default. With reference to the
historical records, past experience and also available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information
to those customers, the directors of the Company do
not consider these receivables as credit-impaired as
these customers have a good business relationship
with the Group and recurring overdue records of these
customers with satisfactory settlement history.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note 39.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

21.

BB RHMEURIE A
1_.I-TT"XIE'L/(& n]-ﬁ (n\ﬁ)

A _E_—F+_"_HB=+—H"
REBZ B G RWFEIBLEGRT
B IEBRME48%E32,349,702%8 7T
“EZT”FHF 19,040, 941/%75)
ZEWRIE » % F W E B R
SHEEmB -ERRERT
1,764,782 T (ZE T F .
4,348,46678 7t) E#HFO0H 3¢ L
O BUWIERABO - KB2EZ
EEPHESLH BELEL
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE

2021 2020

—E—F “EIEHF

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Fixed-rate loans receivable EWEEER 9,138,283 61,502,653
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEREES (452) (31,902,821)
9,137,831 29,599,832

The loans receivable has contractual maturity within one
to two years (2020: within one to two years) as at 31
December 2021. The average interest rate for the fixed-
rate loans receivable was ranging from 13% to 37%
(2020: 5% to 37%) per annum.

There is no loans receivable which was pas due as at 31
December 2021. Other than the gross carrying amount
of HK$31,376,190 was past due over 90 days, there is
no other loans receivable which was past due as at 31
December 2020.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting
to HK$9,115,671 (2020: HK$27,429,434) as at 31
December 2021 is secured by properties located in Hong
Kong. The fair values of these properties are higher than
the carrying amounts of the respective loans receivable.
The Group is not permitted to sell or re-pledge the
properties in the absence of default by the borrower.
There has not been any significant changes in the
quality of the collateral held for the loans receivable. The
Group has not recognised a loss allowance for the loans
receivable as a result of these collaterals.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

A —F+_-HR=+—H">
ERETNEKNEHERAE—=
MERN(CE_EF . —EMTE
N) e EERWERZ FHFEFE
NF13%FE37% (ZE_ZF :
5%Z%E37%) ©

W_&2_—F+-_BA=+—H>
BEEE W E F i HA o BRAZER (B
31,376,190/ T 2 A EAE#EI0H
R ZEZEF+_RA=+—
B BiEmEmEuEEER -

W_E2E_—F+_B=+—0H">
4EERTH(E 29,115,671 (=
T4 27,429,43477T) IFE IR
BERTSHMUNREBHNY XK
ZEMEN LN T ERBRHEKRE
THNEREEAS EERAXRE
HNBRT AEBARBSHEDR
BIEHZEME MZERKE
A ENEFERERTET
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o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

22.

B HF+_"B=+—HIEE

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting
to HK$27,760,367 as at 31 December 2020, which is
secured by the entire issued share capital of immediate
holding company of the borrower and guaranteed
by the son of the ultimate beneficial owner of the
borrower. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the counterparty of this loans receivable defaulted
in repayment and no settlement was made for the
outstanding balances during the year. The management
of the Group considered that the credit risk on this loans
receivable has significantly increased during the year
and started to assess the ECL on this loans receivable
from 12-month ECL to lifetime ECL during the year
ended 31 December 2020. In view of the probability of
the default and the recoverable amount of the pledges,
an impairment loss of HK$26,549,287 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$22,612 (2020: HK$6,312,852) is unsecured as at 31
December 2021. During the year ended 31 December
2020, there are counterparties with gross carrying
amount of HK$3,958,939 defaulted in repayment
and no settlement was made for the outstanding
balances during the year. In view of the continuous non
repayment from the debtors, an impairment losses of
HK$3,828,939 on these credit-impaired debtors during
the year ended 31 December 2020. Also, the Group
has recognised net reversal of impairment allowance
of HK$183,063 (2020: net impairment allowance of
HK$176,015) on the remaining loans receivable during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Net reversal of impairment loss allowance of
HK$183,063 (2020: net impairment loss allowance of
HK$30,554,241) have been recognised in respect of the
loans receivable during the years ended 31 December
2021. Details of impairment assessment of loans
receivable for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are set out in note 39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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23.

B —HF+"A=+—HLHFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

BEREE
B EEEEREE

Gross carrying amounts
Less: allowance for credit losses

FEUL R A B IE
2021 2020
—E—F “EEF
HKS$ HK
AT BTt
- 1,236,756
- (1,236,756)

The amounts due from related companies represent
trade related balances from two related companies. One
of the related companies is controlled by Dr. SUEK Chai
Kit, Christopher (“Dr. SUEK"), the father of Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie and another one is held as to 52.47% by the
trustee of a discretionary trust of which the immediate
family member of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one of the
discretionary objects. The Group’s credit term of 30 days
has been granted to the related companies.

As at 1 January 2020, amounts due from related
companies amounted to HK$2,433,094.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has agreed with the related companies on the
repayment schedules of the outstanding receivables
but the related companies continued to default in
repayment upon partial settlement of the outstanding
balances. Thus, the management of the Group
considered that the credit risk on related companies had
significantly increased and credit-impaired in view of
the understanding of the business update of the related
companies, an impairment loss of HK$1,236,756, which
represented the remaining gross carrying amount, was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of impairment assessment of trade related
amounts due from related companies for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note
39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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24.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash held by the Group and bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. As
at 31 December 2021, bank balances and short-term
bank deposits of approximately HK$7,727,000 (2020:
HK$22,102,000), HK$3,885,000 (2020: HK$2,729,000),
and HK$111,000 (2020: HK$8,019,000) were
denominated in USD, HK$ and RMB respectively, the
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities.

Furthermore, included in the short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are amounts
denominated in RMB of approximately HK$54,822,000
(2020: HK$110,416,000), which are not freely
convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry
interest rates with a range from 0.1% to 1.6% (2020:
0.1% to 2.5%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in note
39.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

25.

B % R H M FE 4 RRIE A
i e
UTARREAFRESZAN
#5285 RIE N RE D
o

2021 2020

—E—F —EIEF

HK$ HK$

AT AT

0 — 30 days 0ZF30H 62,337,708 46,307,321

31 - 60 days 31&260H 12,212,615 17,421,917

61 - 90 days 61E90H 5,806,321 11,043,614

Over 90 days #BiE90H 2,334,873 9,680,938

82,691,517 84,453,790

Accrued expenses and other payables &5t Bz R EfthfE (T =R IB 31,364,139 39,054,836
Construction costs payables for HEZERPYEZ

properties under development for sale  FE{F B LA 39,437,765 =

153,493,421 123,508,626

The credit period ranges from 90 days to 120 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

Trade and other payables of approximately
HK$7,823,000 (2020: HK$4,361,000) were
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2021 and trade
and other payables of HK$141,000 were denominated
in USD as at 31 December 2020, the currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

FEEBRNFIOHEI120H &
EEfEMBREREERR XU
FE R P A FE A RROBIZ AR A o

W_&_—F+_RA=+—H"
A8 497,823,000 (CEZE
& 14,361,000 7m) 2B 5 REH
HENRBUARESE MK
—E_EF+_A=+—H'A
141,000 T2 B REME
IRIBEMUETE MEMEK
HUIEENEEER2IES

LS
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. THE&E
2021 2020
—E_—F “EIEHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Lease liabilities payable: FENHEEAE
Within one year R—EA 13,922,336 8,949,086
Within a period of more than one BE—F B NEEmE
year but not more than two years BYHE R R 6,219,361 9,166,052
Within a period of more than two BEmEErBERE
years but not more than five years BRI 9,098,380 2,564,782
Within a period of more than BEAFNRBER
five years 31,798,171 32,669,758
61,038,248 53,349,678
Less: Amount due for settlement with &, : FSREBIEEE TR
12 months shown under current 891218 B M EIHR
liabilities BEMIE (13,922,336) (8,949,086)
Amount due for settlement after RIEREEEE TR
12 months shown under non-current 121 B % R EA{E B =18
liabilities 47,115,912 44,400,592
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies MR EEEEIINEER Z 50
other than the functional currencies of the relevant WEKTENTEEGEEH N T
group entities are set out below: X .
2021 2020
—_E—HF —ETE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Denominated in HK$ against RMB MATRARKSE 35,578,716 36,050,889
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates THEAGHRMANMEFTSIZEEE
applied to lease liabilities range from 2.2% to 5.38% AHENF22%FE5.38% (ZF
(2020: from 4.38% to 5.38%). “EHF 1 438%FE5.38%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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27.

B —HF+"A=+—HLHFE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. 89817

2021 2020

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Contract liabilities from Trading Business 2R B B 5 (BN AN AE 227,883 474,481
Contract liabilities from Music and RE B RIRBEETEN

Entertainment Business H5HEE 344,435 552,917
Contract liabilities from Manufacturing 28 B &S R iHE £ M

and Sales Business ==L 8,004,651 9,437,305

8,576,969 10,464,703

As at 1 January 2020, the carrying amount of contract
liabilities was HK$4,635,602.

Contract liabilities are classified as current liabilities
because the Group expects to settle them within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the printing
products delivery, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the specific contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The Group receives a 10% to 30% deposit on
acceptance of orders for trading of printing products
from certain customers.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
completion of concert and show, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit. The Group receives a 10%
to 30% deposit on from certain customers when the
contract for concert and show signed.

/\\:v—gﬁi H E’I:ln\l];%\
BERERE B 44,635,602 7T °

m,\}]%'ffﬁ+ﬁ%/méﬂg\'f N
AEAREEERRREHERE T
BEAREBNENERE.

2/ 4r

HEHIEHNEESEE
B—RRZ IR T -
EAREE P ENRZE S 32T AU E
S AIEBRESNHERES
D/\/]/%\T Ej:‘?f?gﬁmmﬁﬁﬁ S
Mk BRI E - ~ERARN
BETELAWIERERE Z:]
BEIWEI10%E30%ME]% o

EXREENEBE M RIETHA
WeEIET = > BULE R A & KR 45 B
EEENBaB EEMEEEN
RN BB e r5E
ERERENRBENSNER
RFEETERWE0%E30%H8
FlE =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 27.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
manufacturing of printing product commences, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the relevant contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group receives
a 10% to 50% deposit on acceptance of manufacturing
orders from certain customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

BHNERE (@)

HAREEPREER EREBE
WEzTE BIERE Y S 4B G BT
EEGHat BEEMETEYN
BARNNEBE] TS AE
BEREETERWIIREETER
U EY10% E50%RI5] & ©

TRIRN A FEHERH R =
B REEENEE.

HK$
BIT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZT”_—F+Z-H=+—H
WHEE
Revenue recognised that was included in ARV SN aEEGRY
the contract liabilities balance at [
the beginning of the year 10,464,703
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B8E_E_EF+"A=+—H
WHEFE
Revenue recognised that was included in FAFYENBEGR
the contract liabilities balance at (i
the beginning of the year 4,635,602

28. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 28.
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

B —KMELR—RIF
PERR R SRR 1A
RENEARRA  RERER

RS
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29. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 29. Bt —REAEABMRIEA
2021 2020
—EZ—HF “ETEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount that is repayable: FEEIEAREE -
— within one year ——FR 61,800 48,402
— over one year but less than —BR—FEL R RE
two years 53,118 44,427
— over two years but less than —BEmEELRAF
five years 125,827 116,627
— over five years — BB A F - 62,307
240,745 271,763
Less: Amount due for settlement B —EREIEREERE
within one year (shown under FrEhadET
current liabilities) 5T) (61,800) (48,402)
Amount due for settlement after —F BRI HREERIE
one year 178,945 223,361
The amount is unsecured and fixed-interest bearing at ZERTELABEEE CZEEEFN
a range from 18% to 20% per annum (2020: 18% to BENAFI18%E20% (CE_ZHF:
20% per annum). The related company is controlled by FEFEI18%ZFE20%) 5t 8 o % Fl
the family members of Mr. Ernie Suek, who is a director BANTHANATESERB YL
of the Company. FNER A=z
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30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. RITEHE
2021 2020
—E—F -
HKS$ HK$
#EIT AT
Secured bank borrowings BIRFIRITTEE 62,609,035 79,786,671
The carrying amount of BEREREERRZ
bank borrowings (shown under fEEERIRTEEZ
current liabilities) contains a REE RREa
repayment on demand clause BIETSIMR) *:
are repayable*:
— Within one year ——FRN 62,609,035 58,092,799
— Within a period of more than —BE—FERBEW
one year, but not exceeding FERHRRE R
two years - 21,693,872
62,609,035 79,786,671
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * FEARIER ERBE & EE
out in the loan agreements. BHAEE -
Details of the pledged assets for the secured bank BIRIFRETEENIERESEEE
borrowings are disclosed in notes 14 and 15. AT sE145 1590 8B o IRIR S HAR
Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the pledge B ME - BEESBEULKEE
of property, plant and equipment and investment YEBIKIR S EIRIT G
properties is released by the banks.
The secured bank borrowings carry interest at HIBOR BIRIFRETEEIREBRTHERE
plus 1.25% to 2.5% (2020: 1.25% to 2.5%) per FEMI.25%F2.5% (ZE &
annum. F1.25%F2.5%) ZFFF:t
Be
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31. DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, certain deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities have been offset. The following is

31. IEIEFRIE

MERESHMBRERMS &1
LM IAE B RIEIER A S JE

BHRHE - UTHHBEREND

the analysis for reporting propose: A
2021 2020
—E—F —_ETEF
HK$ HK$
BT HIT
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 10,764,811 333,359
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEE R (9,866,407) (9,044,502)
898,404 (8,711,143)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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31.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. IFIEFRIE (4B)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) MWTFRARKRKEERBEEERESSD
assets recognised and movements thereon during the ZETEIFIERIE (BB EEUN
current year and prior years: HEH) .
Change in ECL on
fair value of financial
Accelerated financial assets and
tax Tax assets contract
depreciation losses at FVTPL assets Others Total
BRER
BATE EHEE
Jltkz  REWNER
SHEEN pa L
MERBINE WEGE ATEEH =858 Htth st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B B B B B B
(Note)
)
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZE-F—H (5,596,670) 4,578,908 (4,417,812 - (2,655,631) (8,091,205)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (NE) BARFRH
for the year (105,487) (4,417,812) 4,417,812 918,434 (1,304,246) (491,299)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - - - - (128,639) (128,639)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZE
+ZA=+-H (5,702,157) 161,096 - 918434 (4,088516)  (8,711,143)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss BAUIB) AFE&E
for the year 506,839 10,498,904 - (675,128) (546,698) 9,783,917
Exchange adjustments ERHE (169,868) - - - (4,502) (174,370)
At 31 December 2021 e gy
=1+—H (5,365,186) 10,660,000 - 243,306 (4,639,716) 898,404

Note:  As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the deferred tax liabilities
“others” are arising from the revaluation of investment
properties upon change of use of certain premises from
owner-occupation to leasing out for rental income and the
temporary difference arising from the revenue recognised over
time from manufacturing and sales of printing products for
PRC subsidiaries under HKFRS 15.

Wt -

KRB ER-F-BE+
B=+—8 - EERESE H
TRETFMENRREEREA
HUTE L B R 2 U A B SR 25 1)
83 17 B 5B A A TR BE 2 5
RIREE BB EEAE15%
B B R R R & R E B A )
NV 2 2 B3 T 5 5 O Mk B
Ho
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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31.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$433,905,000
(2020: HK$349,855,000) available to offset against
future profits. As at 31 December 2021, a deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses
of approximately HK$64,606,000 (2020: HK$976,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$431,151,000
(2020: HK$348,879,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses
of HK$8,598,000 (2020: HK$7,902,000) that can be
carried forward for five years from the year in which
the losses arose. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$65,364,000 (2020: HK$77,996,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. g7
Number of shares HK$
Shares of HK$0.01 each #iR0.01 B THIRRS Rin&8 BT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2020, N _E_EFE—HF—
31 December 2020 and 2021 H-ZEZEFRT
T
+—-H=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
At 1 January 2020, N2 ZEF—H—
31 December 2020 and 2021 H-\ZZ2-ZFK
+—-—H=+—H 253,639,456 2,536,395

33.

There was no movement in the Company's share capital
for both years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme") was approved by shareholders
of the Company and adopted by the Company. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share
Option Scheme is adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options
to outside third parties for settlement in respect of
goods or services provided to the Company. Details of
the share option scheme are disclosed in the directors’
report of this annual report.

No share options have been granted since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme.
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A TE-NE_RB+=RH"F&R
AR R E—TBRERESE (5
BRHESTE)) o WA B R o
B AR 5T 8K R RE At 5t B B R
MERESTERNBER -

Bt B S ERA LB RS
SRSEERHBRE FRHH
= B (1 5 R 1O BB S 2
B R/ SEAEERTER KRG
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R e

RBEBRESE ARBESH
MEEREERHBERE 81
ARBREMBRABNES U
RBARBNKRMD U TR
5] Bl N L AS B B 24N A Bl iR HAY
B AR EINBE = TR LR
Rt - BRI ESTEIVEFIBER
REBNEFTHRETIRE -

BRMERESEE
L s i

H eI 1 4%

Annual Report 2021 F g



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBHRRM

77 g =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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35.

B+ _"_B=+—HULtEFE

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 34, REHEZRH
The Group as lessor TEBREAEBEA
All of the Group's properties held for rental purposes KAEBFFRAFELRRRBR Y
have committed tenants for the next one to three years. NEBR—FETE=FHEHEEFEH-
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has NEREH K NEFHEM ST
contracted with tenants for the future minimum lease 4> gAY ZE 2 ARl B & =
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in MER T 7 HAR 2 AU B 2 R 2R
respect of rented premises which fall due as follows: BEMRAESHIBUOT
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as MABT 2R EIREWEERE
follows: (I
2021 2020
—E—% “EIEF
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Within one year —FR 3,148,800 3,661,724
In the second year BLF 1,836,800 3,552,000
In the third year B - 2,072,000
4,985,600 9,285,724
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAKIE
2021 2020
s —ECE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Capital expenditure contracted for but FLIU FEZBEEINERE
not provided in the consolidated REMBRRPIERE
financial statements in respect of: BzEARBES .
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEME -BEX
equipment Baic] 5,907,652 2,491,735
— construction cost for properties —SEHRERYES
under development for sale BEMA 263,157,753 =
269,065,405 2,491,735
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]

36.

B HF+_"B=+—HIEE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the ORSO Scheme)
and the MPF Scheme established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were
offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at a rate of 5% of
the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the local municipal government of
Shenzhen. The subsidiary is required to contribute 5%
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
significant forfeited contributions which arose upon
employees leaving the schemes before they are fully
vested in the contributions and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group in the
future.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of
HK$11,785,706 (2020: HK$2,135,822) represent
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at

rates specified in the rules of the plans.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the notes 23 and
29 of the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has entered into significant transactions

37. RAEALTRS

(a) BREEMBHREME23R
29H1Jmiﬂl7§}5ﬂ)§ 2B
ZL‘%IEE—UIK N B E A

between related parties and subsidiaries of the TRHBABEIT TIE
Company as follows: KRR 5 -
2021 2020
s —5 “ETEHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Rental income (Note) WA (11:2) - 1,110,000
Expenses relating to B HRE BB RNAX
short-term leases (Note) (=3 = 3,858,087
Finance costs (Note) ME A BaE) 54,671 62,349
Note: The transactions were carried out with related Kzt ZERZTHEAHEE T

companies which are controlled by Dr. SUEK.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

HZBEARETT

(b) EEEASZRM

The remuneration of directors and other members MTRESREMFEE
of key management during the year was as BABRERNZEFHM :
follows:
2021 2020
—EFZ—HF “E°F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Short-term benefits ZHRER) 7,184,984 5,984,775
Post-employment benefits B BER 85,250 90,000
7,270,234 6,074,775
The remuneration of directors and key executives EERFTETHABZH
is determined by the remuneration committee BT NS B & @R
having regard to the performance of individuals AELZRBETIZEEE
and market trends. E ©
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38.

39.

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEEEIRE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REEBSEEEAUBREAER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern ETEEEREEELE  BES
while maximising the return to owners through the ﬁé’ﬁ—; B 4 BY (8 T8 K 1 7 - >
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. EEREEBE AR
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, REBZZEAREREIE (&
which includes amount due to a related company and j% M35 29 %307 /E'JIJ WE2NZ
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 _—F®RIEZEF+_H
disclosed in notes 29 and 30, respectively, net of cash _—{— HZENM—KEEASIR
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners BERETEE  NGESs~EIRS
of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves. HEH) REATEBEANEGEED
(BIERR AR R ) 4B Ak o

The management of the Group reviews the capital REEZEEBFENTE R
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the B EHNTEEEANANLEASE
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital. KRB Z R - REER FEBEE
The Group will balance its overall capital structure TR  BRIKRMD RETHED
through new share issues, repurchase of shares and the EBOIREEBEHHEEE AL
issue of new debt or the redemption of the existing o
debt.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from REE ERERIKE FFEHIT
prior year. o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. EFTH
Categories of financial instruments SRITAZEER

2021 2020

HKS$ HK$

AT B
Financial assets EREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FERHMEEm AR

REEIERZRATE 22,550,619 17,854,928
Financial assets at FVTPL FEREnEATETRZ
TREE 24,716,500 23,059,714

Financial assets at amortised cost BEBIHN AT E SR E E 295,873,183 392,436,272
Financial liabilities EMEE
Amortised cost HEE R A 230,229,290 215,742,246
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans receivable,
trade related amounts due from related companies,
short-term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables and accruals, amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, amount
due to a related company, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain
trade receivables, bank balances, short-term bank
deposits, trade payables and lease liabilities of the
Group are denominated in RMB, USD, HK$ and
EURO, the currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities as
disclosed in notes 21, 24, 25 and 26 respectively.
Approximately 22% (2020: 25%) of the Group's
total revenue are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entity
making the sale, whilst almost 12% (2020: 13%)
of costs are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entity’s
functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, directors of the
Company monitor foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

39.

EmMTIA @)
fH LR 1R B AR R BUR

FEEZTEEMIAGRESEE
Hitz2EWARLFEIRZ
KRETA -BBRE@mLAFET
ReEMEE BHKRAEMEU
MIEM T BUE R B UL
BE N E) & 7 AR TRIAE 2 HAR
TER-HeEkREFE -BH
Fe LA FE A RRIE DA B B RRIE
BN —XMBRABE—%IFER
IRRMRIE B —HKBEATR
ERIRTEE - LSEMIAEZ
HERAERNERE -AtEE
MITERAARZARSEHZAR
(FxERE G ERREME
BER) EERRMASEER
o BB R ERE 2 BREN T
X RABEFEERERZE
LR - BE R R IR BB E B
il

45 Bl
()  EEERE
AEMETESRME

/N
LS ETEER 5 A
ML AEBEAZINER
ot KEBEETE
SEWEIE IR1THER 2
HIRTTEMR B S BN
BEREAEEBEUARKE
Ex A KkEiT B9EE
EBESERZINEE )
HE > DRI M EE21 ~ 24~
25522690 55 o AEEEAI22%
T TEF 25%) 24
WHUETHEZEEE
BBZIMEEMIUIINZ G
SHE > MEBE12% (ZEZ
TE13%) 2 AUER
ERINEEIINZ B
ERER

7 £ B B B 6 5 B HE M I
PR R SATE
EERINERKR EAE
ERFEERBHPERI)
w R o

Annual Report 2021 F#§

265



266

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm o A R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. £ T H ()
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEAMEIEEERBE (8
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) HiEE fE (48)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EEEE &)
The Group’s intra-group balances do not form NEBEBRBESGFITER
part of the net investment in foreign operations. EANEFR BB — I
The carrying amounts of the foreign currency Do BREFIERESH R
denominated intra-group balances which have DU TR AR AINSEM
been eliminated in the consolidated financial SN ETFHB AT NG
statements of certain subsidiaries of which the S ERE E LN
functional currency is HK$ and RMB at the end of M ENEBRBSGRNIR
the reporting period are as follows: mEWT
2021 2020
—E-—F e S
HK$ HK$
T BIT
Net amounts due from (to) (FE(T) FEWA T
companies denominated in BARBREBITFE
RMB against HK$ By E IR 4,222,178 (1,064,826)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REBRDINEHEZEE
currency denominated monetary assets and BEEKREEBENKRSH
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting RZBAREESHIIAOT
period are approximately as follows:
Lease liabilities Monetary assets Monetary liabilities
HEAE BREE aRafR
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—BC-F C"T°%F B “T°TH BT C“T°ETF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
#HTT HIT T BT BT BIT
USD against HK$  ETRAET = - 19,223,000 48,386,000 - 141,000
HKS$ against RMB B2 AR®  35579,000 36,050,889 3,885,000 2,729,000 - -
RMB against HK$  ARBRET - - 2,009,000  8019,000 7,823,000 4,038,000
EURO against HK§ Bt R AT - - 3,623,000 69,000 = -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with
USD, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 10% (2020: 10%) increase and decrease
in functional currency of respective group entity
against relevant foreign currencies (other than
USD) and all other variables were held constant.
10% (2020: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2020:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax
loss for the year where functional currency of
respective group entity strengthen 10% (2020:
10%) against foreign currencies. For a 10%
(2020: 10%) weakening of functional currency of
respective group entity against foreign currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the result for the year.

39.

EmMTIA @)
F 5 L B IR B IR R U

(&)

5 /maE ()

()

Impact of
HK$

BRTZRE

HK$
BT

'ff:/-\ﬁjzn C

BRUE DM

R 1 3% 7T BE R B % T 4
> AEBBRET B
Y EERG HREAE
AEH o

TEREEFIE— ) H fh ] &
RAEFAEMNBRT  KE
BHRENEEESER I
EERBERINE (R
Ew) A EREEI0% (T
BETEE10%) 28
EoFrABRIELEXA10%
ZETEF 1 10%) 0 b
SIEE T EEXD] A

ﬁzéﬁ“@o@@gﬁ
WMREFEUNEASEZER
Wﬁgﬁﬁa’iﬁtf
HIB10% (ZE -2 F .

10%) SFAEFENIRK
THRZHBESEE TX
E@&Wﬁ@%%l*“
ZIHBEE M R INEF B
10% (ZE-Z4F 1 10%)
ZERT RERREE
BAEFTIZ I o 8 1@ B & &
ERZZNEEBRTING
BEI10% (ZEBE_TF
10%) @ B KEXEER
EIHIEERERZFZE-

a%

F

jman| o

Impact of
RMB
ARBZRE
HK$

BIT

Impact of
EURO
EATCZ‘?\/ =
HK$

B

—E-—%F
FERE (L) B

2021
(Decrease) increase in loss
for the year

(2,646,000)

303,000 (485,000)

—ETEF
FEBE (/.

2020
(Decrease) increase in loss
for the year

L) 10

(2,782,000)

5,800 332,000
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relates to variable-rate short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to the fixed-rate loans
receivable, amount due to a related company,
interest-free amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of the subsidiary and lease liabilities
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The Group
has not used any derivative instruments in
order to mitigate its exposure associated with
fluctuations relating to interest cash flows.
However, the directors of the Company monitor
interest rate exposure and will consider other
necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates ("IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group's risk management strategy arising from
the interest rate benchmark reform and the
progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under
“interest rate benchmark reform” in this note.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(1) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as

39. &FT A (48)
MRS SIEEERBE (&

i 45 Bl BE (45)

() FEAR (8
REE-S-_—FR_-%
—EF+-A=+—AL
AR e e

follows: EZEREEZHN B WG
U AGBEEIN T -
2021 2020
—E-—HF —ETFF
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Interest revenue F B U
Financial assets at REEN A E
amortised cost SRIEE 1,920,242 6,756,759
Other income HAk A
Financial assets at BEBIH AT E Y
amortised cost TREE 834,716 1,237,216
Total interest income ) B UL A 48 %8 2,754,958 7,993,975

Interest expense on financial liabilities not
measured at FVTPL during 31 December 2021
and 2020 is as follows:

REEE-—FR-=
—_EF+_"_HB=+—HI
FEOCWIIFFBEBRER
TEFAEZEREENR

Xz :
2021 2020
—E—F —EZF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial liabilities at amortised & $H AT E 2
cost THEaE 1,456,190 2,509,165
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The management of the Group considers that
the Group’s exposure to future cash flow risk
on variable-rate bank balances as a result of the
change of market interest rate is insignificant and
thus variable-rate bank balances are not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in
part to its sensitivity to interest rate which has
been determined based on the exposure to the
variable-rate short-term bank deposits and bank
borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of asset outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease is
used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonable possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax loss for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$248,000 (2020: HK$227,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate short-term
bank deposits and bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of listed equity investments in Hong Kong and
unlisted equity investments in Hong Kong and
PRC as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on listed equity
investments in Hong Kong and unlisted equity
investments in Hong Kong and PRC during
the year have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of
the reporting period. For sensitivity analysis
purpose, the sensitivity rate considers at 10% in
the current year. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 10% higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$3,947,000 (2020:
HK$3,416,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans receivable,
amounts due from related companies, loans to joint
ventures, short-term bank deposits and bank balances as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amounts
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets, except that the credit risks associated
with loans receivable is mitigated because they are
secured over properties located in Hong Kong.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables, contract assets arising from contracts
with customers and trade related amounts due from
related companies

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit rating system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Except for (i) debtors who are credit-
impaired; (i) customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant
contract assets; and (iii) trade related amounts due from
related companies, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract
assets are grouped into four internal credit rating
buckets (namely: low risk, medium risk, high risk and
doubtful) based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to repayment histories for recurring customers
and current past due exposure for the new customers.
The contract assets have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type
of contracts. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

Net reversal of impairment loss allowance of
HK$2,291,599 (2020: net impairment loss allowance of
HK$710,090) and HK$714,591 (2020: net impairment
loss allowance of HK$855,504) have been recognised
in respect of trade receivables and contract assets,
respectively, during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Impairment loss allowance of HK$1,236,756 have been
recognised in respect of trade related amounts due from
related company during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 80% (2020: 52%) of
the total loans receivable was due from three (2020:
two) independent third parties of total of approximately
HK$7,320,000 (2020: HK$31,719,306). Loans receivable
are assessed individually.

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated
loss rates of loans receivable based on historical credit
loss experience of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the
loans receivable. For those loans receivable secured by
properties located in Hong Kong with aggregate amount
of HK$9,115,671 (2020: HK$27,429,434), the directors
of the Company considered the loss given default is low
in view of the fair value of the collaterals are higher than
the carrying amounts of the respective loans receivable.
The Group has not recognised a loss allowance for the
loans receivable as a result of these collaterals.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable (Continued)

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting
to HK$27,760,367 as at 31 December 2020, which is
secured by the entire issued share capital of immediate
holding company of the borrower and guaranteed
by the son of the ultimate beneficial owner of the
borrower. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the counterparty of this loans receivable defaulted
in repayment and no settlement was made for the
outstanding balances during the year. The management
of the Group considered that the credit risk on the loan
to this loans receivable was significantly increase during
the year. In view of this, the management started to
assess the ECL on this loans receivable changing from
12-month ECL to lifetime ECL during the year ended
31 December 2020. In view of the probability of the
default and the recoverable amount of the pledges,
which is expected to be insignificant, an impairment
losses of HK$26,549,287 was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2020. During the year ended
31 December 2021, loans receivable amounting to
HK$27,760,367 have been written off.

Gross carrying amount of loans receivable amounting to
HK$22,612 (2020: HK$6,312,852) is unsecured as at 31
December 2021. During the year ended 31 December
2020, there are counterparties with gross carrying
amount of HK$3,958,939 defaulted in repayment and
no settlement was made for the outstanding balances
during the year. In view of the probability of the default,
an impairment losses of HK$3,828,939 on these credit-
impaired debtors during the year ended 31 December
2020. During the year ended 31 December 2021, loans
receivable amounting to HK$3,958,939 have been
written off. Also, the Group has recognised net reversal
of impairment allowance of HK$183,063 (2020: net
impairment allowance of HK$176,015) on the remaining
loans receivable during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Loans receivable (Continued)

Net reversal of impairment loss allowance of
HK$183,063 (2020: net impairment loss allowance of
HK$30,554,241) has been recognised in respect of these
loans receivable during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of
the Company make individual assessment on other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group's outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. The Group assessed the ECL
for other receivables and deposits were immaterial. Thus
no loss allowance was recognised.

Short-term bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents

The Group only transacts with reputable banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies and therefore the directors of the Company
consider the risk of default is low. The Group uses
12-month ECL to perform the assessment under ECL on
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
individually based on the average loss rate by reference
to credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Group assessed the ECL for short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were
immaterial. Thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

39.

T A (&)

HHRBREEBERRER (&)

=EmEA

rEBREE

T84

Trade receivables/

contract assets/trade

related amounts

R EFIE (45)
EERTEEEU

due from Other financial
Internal credit rating Description related companies assets
BakkmE/
BHEE/
EWREAL
AEEETR pan B 7 HmME HthEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
3950 HFANENRRRE BEXEEFBRUE SHRAEERE- +_EARES
REREERE EEBE
Medium risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue less than Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
90 days as at year end not credit-impaired
R BHARERES B/ 0B MBS SHRAEERE- T+ _EREH
AHREERE EEHE
High risk Debtor has past-due balance overdue more than Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
90 days as at year end not credit-impaired
SRR ﬁ?AKEX%Eﬁ%EL%EWﬁ% * SHEBEERE- TERRY
FHREERE EER#E
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL
since not credit-impaired - not credit-
initial recognition through information developed impaired
internally or external resources
2 EERRBMREDLRBEEEN LHRBEERE- 2BREPREEREA-
BEABIIIMERREZER) REREERE RUREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired — credit-impaired
B AEBTEREEBLRESHE LRBEERE- 2BRRESEE-
BHRESRE BHRESRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off  Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
6] BEBELNEBABARENTHREE MEEBTE MEERTE

FEEARABRAIREERETER
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BEZ

39.

e

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets (trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, loan to a joint venture, loans
receivable, trade related amounts due from related
companies, short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents) and contract assets, which are subject to

ERMIA (@
BAF5 LR B IR B AR R BUR ()

15 B /a5 B B B 5T 1S (48)

TREFMIIETEERTREE
(8 7 W mkIa ~ E g W wkia
ReJE-BERF—RBERE
BWER BRFEELTEZHE
BB EHIRTER REK
Re$E RENBEENEER

ECL assessment: Rl ZETREEBETTE
HHT:. S E5185T M ¢
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
ratin rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amounts
P’B FET4 W”BT‘ B} +-ERSZBRMIEEER !
2021 2020
& ZEI%f
Notes HK$ HK$
i BT BT
Financial assets at REERSHENEREE
amortised cost
Trade receivables B ElHE 21 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 73,659,068 88,830,776
TER (i) 2HBHEERE i)
/nofe‘ 1) Lifetime EQL (jn(jividual as§essment) 47,519,286 24.510,754
(Hizt1) 2HBHEEFE (@R
Other receivables and deposits ~ EtEMFIAR:TE: 21 NA (note 2) 12-month ECL 17,400,859 23728722
TER (Hi2) +ZBAEHREEFE
Loan to a joint venture BRT-REEAT 7\ Loss Credit-impaired - 3,222,914
TBF TEH | EEAE
Loans receivable SR 2 NA lowrisk  12-monthECL 9,115,671 27420434
TEBA RER +ZEAEHREEFSE
ngh risk 12-month ECL ) 22,612 2,353,913
BER +ZERBHEERFSE
Loss Credit-impaired - 31,719,306
B8 EEHE
Amounts due from related 23 N/A Loss Credit-impaired - 1,236,756
compames ) ) L
EUEE AR TER B EaHE
Short-term bank deposits 24 BBB N/A 12-month ECL 3,304,774 25,394,158
RERTER TER +ZERBHEEFSR
Cash and cash equivalents 24 BBB N/A 12-month ECL 40,126,398 48,705,688
ReRkReEE TER +ZERBHEEFSR
A or above /A 12-month ECL 105,553,394 154,760,263
AFIME TER +ZBAEHEESFS
Other items HitER
Contract assets HRUBE 17 NA (note 1) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 32,794,544 34,689,173
TER (1) 2HBHEERE &)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (individual assessment) 14,080,812 1,694,755

REkR EHRBEEER (BRF0)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Apart of debtors with credit-
impaired and customers with outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract assets, the
Group determines the ECL on these items collectively with
reference to past default experience for recurring customers
and current past due exposure for new customers.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers in relation to
its Group's operation. Customers with outstanding significant
balances exceeding HK$2,500,000 and relevant contract
assets with gross carrying amounts of HK$47,519,286 (2020:
HK$24,510,754) and HK$14,080,812 (2020: HK$1,694,755)
respectively as at 31 December 2021 were assessed
individually. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and contract
assets which are assessed collectively as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

ERMIA (@
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1= B /m 52 B B B AT 1S (48)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. %Eﬂlﬂ (,%)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BMEAGESIEEEREE (B
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R FEFEE (48)
Notes: (Continued) Kzt © (&)
1. (Continued) 1. (#&)
2021 —g-—%
Gross carrying amount IRE4E%E
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating ABEETR g B2 EWRIE BHEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk Bk 0.1 31,483,386 8,752,802
Medium risk eyl 1.0 36,017,902 14,512,006
High risk = AR 2.0 6,157,780 9,529,736
73,659,068 32,794,544
2020 R
Gross carrying amount IRMEARZE
Average Trade Contract
loss rate receivables assets
Internal credit rating REEETR FHEEE B EWHIE BNEE
% HK$ HK$
BT BT
Low risk LN 0.1 19,183,942 14,279,728
Medium risk R R f 2.81 56,919,816 11,528,584
High risk = & b 9.09 12,727,018 8,880,861
88,830,776 34,689,173
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

The estimated loss rates on trade receivables are estimated
based on historical credit loss experience of the debtors and
study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including Moody's and
Standard and Poor’s, and are adjusted for forward-looking
information (for example, the forecasted default rate expected
by the international credit-rating agencies) that is available
without undue cost or effort. The contract assets have the
same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same type of contracts would apply the same internal credit
rating and loss rate. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors and contract assets is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided net reversal of impairment allowance of
HK$2,202,159 (2020: net impairment allowance of
HK$422,968) and net reversal of impairment allowance
of HK$797,248 (2020: net impairment allowance of
HK$854,089) for trade receivables and contract assets
respectively, based on the collective assessment during the
year ended 31 December 2021. Net reversal of impairment
allowance of HK$89,440 (2020: net impairment allowance
of HK$287,122) and net impairment allowance of
HK$82,657 (2020 HK$1,415) was provided respectively for
trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed
individually with outstanding significant balances exceeding
HK$2,500,000.

ERMIA (@
B EREERRRBE (&

1= B /m 52 B B B AT 1S (48)
wz @
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ETHMREMMGE > LB HBIE
BB % A A S IE 71 BT A B9 A B
MEER (PIMERE ST RS
BITEStVTRRIEAR) FLREE -
BNEEHERBESHNNES
FEWRIE R B A BARR M A
o W EBAREREE TR K
BRX - EEBEERERZER
DURE (7 58 3 A R ELBE FE IR AR R
BNBEENEBEER -

HE_Z-_—F+Z8A=+—
HBEFE AEERBEHZE T
_—E+_RA=+—HLEESE
BTEMESRRRIERENE
EDR R ERERRDFE
2,202,1598 T (ZEZZF | H
B3 75 58422,96878 7T) KIRE
B RO F8B797,2488 T (ZF
T OB{ERME$58854,08978
70) c B BB L E R ERE
KEEERB82,500,00058 TTH E 5
FEWRIB R & A& EstiRRE#E
#5540 7$5889,4408 T (CE =&
F BB EFEE287,12287T)
RR E RS P EE82,657 8T (T
T4 1,415875T) ©
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. T H (%E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies HEEAMEIEEERBE (8

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 5 REFFE ()

Notes: (Continued) Kzt © (&)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the 2. MAEERREEMS &%
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk EEA@MPAENTHEERRE
has increased significantly since initial recognition. BRERUREEEELM -
2021 ZEZ—F

Not past due/

no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
KRR,
B EEEEEBERR #Et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT
Financial assets at KB A st 2
amortised cost EMEE
Other receivables and deposits ~ EAEWTIE KR ] & - 17,400,859 17,400,859
2020 T TELF

Not past due/

no fixed

repayment
Past due terms Total

FEfs
mfl  EEEEEBEGRR 4t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

Financial assets at amortised %M AstE
cost EREE

Other receivables and deposits ~ EfEWFIBE K] & - 23,728,722 23,728,722
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. $RITH (8
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERGEREEHERBE (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERREFFE (B)
The following table shows the movement in allowance TRITSHESERTIE 54
for ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables, BE - BERF—HEEcELATMIE
contract assets, loan to a joint venture and loans WENELHNTEEREERIERE
receivable. EhEf o
Loan to
Trade ajoint Loans Loans
receivables Contract venture receivable receivable
under assets under under under under
Amounts due lifetime lifetime lifetime 12-month lifetime
from related ECL ECL ECL ECL ECL
companies (not credit- (not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
(credit-Impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
e bk
re:ihek re:ihek 503 o )] b
E85#E EE85#E JIRM  BEBEESR HIERE
FEWRE SiRME R BIERE HRF-% BIERE BIERE
AGER] FEWRIE BNEE BEAT ElER ElER
(BHR (RiEH (RitH (BHR (RiEH (KRR
&R E) FEHE) &R E) EERE) EERE) EEHE) @it
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
B B B B BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2020 RZEZZE-FB—H - 2,295,719 287,626 3222914 1,348,580 - 7,154,839
Changes due to financial Ak —B—AE:
instruments recognised as SHMTALRNES .
at 1 January:
- Transfer to credit-impaired ~ —EBEEEEREE - - - - (1,341,080) 1,341,080 =
~ Impairment loss recognised  —EHEAESE 1,236,756 = = = = 30,378,226 31,614,982
- Impairment loss reversed -BELRESE - (2,303,774) (287,626) = (7,500) S (2,598,900)
New financial assets originated ~ ¥ RESHEE - 3,013,864 1,143,130 - 183,515 - 4,340,509
Exchange adjustments ERHE = 88,112 = = = = 88,112
As at 31 December 2020 RIBZEE
+-B=+-H 1,236,756 3,093,921 1,143,130 3222914 183,515 31,719,306 40,599,542
Changes due to financial Ri—A—BEDN
instruments recognised as SHMIALRNES .
at 1 January:
- Written off B 6] (1,236,756) - - (3,222,914) - (31,719,306) (36,178,976)
- Impairment loss reversed -CHERESR - (3,093,921) (1,143,130) = (183,515) = (4,420,566)
New financial assets originated ~ 3712 RE SRIEE - 802,322 428,539 - 452 - 1,231,313
Exchange adjustments ERBEE - 26,105 - - - - 26,105
As at 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F
+ZBA=+-H - 828,427 428,539 - 45 - 1,257,418

Changes in the loss allowance for amounts due from
related companies during the year ended 31 December
2020 are mainly due to the credit risk on related
companies had significantly increased and credit-
impaired in view of the understanding of the business
update of the related companies, an impairment loss of
HK$1,236,756 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

BE_T_FHF+"_A=+—H

I FEERWRAEABRIAZEIR
BHEESHHIEHNBEATN

FEERME T HRINEEATME
BRIENMAR LA KRBEHIR
SERE HERNBEE_ZE_-Z
F+_B=+—HILEEFEEER
1,236,756 87T 2 M EE 18 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
are mainly due to:

39.

ERTA (&)

HHERBEEERRERK (&

15 B /a5 B B B 5T 1S (48)

BE-T-—

e

B -EF

—_— = — =

TTA=+—HLEEENEZE
WREBEREESH T EHRN

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

SHTAHAE EESIE (AL 1B

2021 2020
—E—F —EZF
Not credit- Not credit-
impaired impaired
RHIIR FHIIR
EERE EERE
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Trade receivable with a gross carrying B 5 EWFIBREE
Settlement in trade receivables BEYEREEERE
with gross carrying amounts fE45113,341,530
HK$113,341,530 AT (CEEF:
(2020: HK$137,764,692) 137,764,692 7T) 2
since beginning of the year B 5 EWEIE (3,093,921) (2,303,774)
Impairment allowance recognised for ~ FERIZREE FE
new originated trade receivables WFRIE (HREREE A
with gross carrying amounts 121,178,354 70
HK$121,178,354 TR
(2020: HK$113,341,530) 113,341,530 7T))
during the year MR RERE 802,322 3,013,864
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

39.

B —HF+"A=+—HLHFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for contract assets during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
mainly due to:

%EEIE (&)

1= B /m 52 B B B AT 1S (48)

RBE_Z_—Fk_FT_FTF
+= ﬁ + EJJ:EE m,\’Jﬁ

(Decrease) increase in lifetime ECL

RHATREAS E 518 (A 151

Not credit-impaired

FHREERE
2021 2020
—E—F TETEF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Settlement in contract assets with gross B #) B4 & 44 EEEEEJ
carrying amounts HK$36,383,928 36,383,928 (ZZEZ
(2020: HK$19,296,363) since the =4 119,296,363 7T)
beginning of the year ZENEE (1,143,130) (287,626)
Impairment allowance recognised FANERESNEE
for new originated contract (HREEEBE A
assets with gross carrying 46,875,356 7T (=
amounts HK$46,875,356 (2020: — & 136,383,928
HK$36,383,928) during the year 7)) SR 2 R E 428,539 1,143,130
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE
39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for loans receivable
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020

are mainly due to:

39. T A (8

MERAREEBRIZEREER (8)
/5,5/7 R EFE C#E)

‘f’ ﬁ ‘f— EJJ:fﬁE Euyf

Increase in lifetime ECL Credit-

Increase in 12-month ECL Not

impaired credit-impaired
EHATEAE BRSIEIEM +ZERATERREEESIEEM
BHREERE KR EERE
2021 2020 2021 2020
B “ECEF e ZEBIETRF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BTT AT BT
Loans receivable with BE_Z-_ZE+_
gross carrying amounts A=1+—HLEFE
of HK$31,719,306 BENOKERER
defaulted and transferred  HIBEEREZE
to credit-impaired during  IWE R BEREES
the year ended 31 31,719,30678 7T)
December 2020 - 1,341,080 - (1,341,080)
Settlement in loans BEMEEEERRRE
receivable with a B%2,022,145%
gross carrying amount T (CEZEE
HK$2,022,145 (2020: 150,000) 2 FEL
HK$150,000) since =EN
beginning of the year - - (183,515) (7,500)
Impairment allowance MUTRIERRZ
recognised for HEEE
— loans receivable with gross — 8 Z _ T - FE+
carrying amounts of A=+—HILEFE
HK$31,719,306 during B E#RREE LK
the year ended 31 E{EA31,719,30678
December 2020 since T2 FEWER
beginning of the year - 30,378,226 - -
— new financial assets —FRITIGRE LT
originated with gross {E7525,00058 7TH
carrying amounts THEE (CEZE
HK$25,000 (2020: 2,253,913 7T)
HK$2,253,913) during
the year - - 452 183,515
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

39.

B+ _"_B=+—HULtEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The estimated loss rates on loans receivable are
estimated based on historical credit loss experience of
the debtors and study of other corporates’ default and
recovery data from international credit-rating agencies
including Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, and are
adjusted for forward-looking information (for example,
the forecasted default rate expected by the international
credit-rating agencies) that is available without undue
cost or effort.

As disclosed in note 22, the loans receivable with gross
carrying amounts of HK$31,719,306, was defaulted
in repayment and the management of the Group
considered that the credit risk on these loans receivable
was significantly increase and also started to assess the
ECL on these loans receivable from 12-month ECL to
lifetime ECL during the year ended 31 December 2020.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has recognised impairment loss of HK$30,378,226 on
these loans receivable.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

39.

EmMTIA @)
B EREERRRBE (&

15 B/ R EF S ()

BWEMZESHBERRBERE
BARNBREEEBRERKER
EEFRIEE (BERBERIRE
W) HHEMEEELN RO
BREVHT SRRl 5t > WWRL B A
8% a4 555 77 RN p] BAS BI AT
EMER (PIMNERE ST Ri%
BIEHTRRZALER) FLH

o

LN 22PN R ARBREE A
31,719,306 8 T2 FEIRE R E
REF MAEEEEEBRAZ
ZREWERNEERBE AIEL
AERBE_ZE_ZTF+_A4
=t+—HIEFENREEZER
WERz BIEERIEH12EA
EHEEEETEASHERE
EBEE-BE_E_ZTF+_A
=t+—HLEFEE AEBEMZ
HEREWEFMESR30,378,2268 7T
FOPCREY SE=E
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

39.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
financial institutions choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other financial liabilities and lease
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market
rate at the end of the reporting period.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

39.

ERMTIA @)
MBEREERERBE (&

WL /=

FEREERBET AR ZTTE
PHEEBRERERFIEHAZIR
TRIVEFEKT  UBMGEE
EXBCEMBEESTRABRERE
MERZTE - EEERZER
TEEZERBR BEEREER
TR o

TRFBRAERRBEANRZ
RRAEEZEMERERER
BREFETEOEMBR - BiEM
= MwREBREERRZIRT
BEHFARFEERFHEE
A o AR R R T R E AR
ZARgEt -HithEme R RER
BRZIPEREHEEREH
BIE e

TROEANERESRS TR
A B A BT BRI 5t - B
SRAETR R R SR 2 HATD
ETIESIE=E
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLFE

- — — —
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. £/ T H (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies A SEAEREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEIE TR ()
Liquidity tables MBEEZ
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate  On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears cash flows 2021
Iz
B +ZA
mETs ReRg =+-HZ
(S BEX Z@AR Z@ERE-%£ —EEME WEERE BRLE a5 REE
% HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
AT A7 BT AT AT A7 BT AT
2021 ZET-E
Trade payables EREIHE N/A - 82691517 - - - - 82691517 82691517
TER
Other payables and accruals REARERESHE N/A - 66328140 - - - - 66328140 66,328,140
FER
Amount due to a non-controlling Ef-FHBAT
shareholder of a subsidiary —ERRRE NA 18359853 - - - - - 18359853 18359853
FER
Amount due to a related company EA—REEATTE Note 1 24,130 13,514 60,813 81,084 148,654 - 328,195 240,745
Mzt
Secured bank borrowings BERRAEE Note2 62,609,035 - - - - - 62609035 62,609,035
i)
Leases liabllities HEAE Note 3 - 3997781 12,418,266 8,189,463 13583942 45328000 83517452 61,038,248
M3
80,993,018 153,030,952 12,479,079 8,270,547 13,732,596 45,328,000 313,834,192 291,267,538
Weighted Carrying
average 3 months 1 year 2 years Total amount at
effective Within to to to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interestrate  On demand 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 2020
Z3CEF
RER 128
METH ReRg =+-HZ
BIRA= BEX AR ZERE-£ —EEME WEERE BELE g KEE
% HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
AT AT A A AT AT B A
2020 k- <:3
Trade payables ERETE NA - 84453790 - - - - 84453790 84453790
TER
Other payables and accruals At EfIEREN B NA - 34419532 - - - - 34419530 34419532
Sl
Amount due to a non-controlling Ef-ZHBAR-LFERR
shareholder of a subsidiary R NA 16,810,490 - - - - - 16810490 16,810,490
Sl
Amount due to a related company Ef-REEARNE Note 1 9,757 16,514 60,813 81,084 162,168 67,570 397,906 271,763
Mz
Secured bank borrowings BEARIEE Note2 79,786,671 - - - - - 79786671 79,786,671
9]
Leases liabllties HEEE Note 3 - 2824328 8312843 10,907,768 6,934,389 47584000 76563328 53349678
i3
96,606,918 121,714,164 8,373,656 10,988,852 7,09%,557 47,651,570 292,431,717 269,091,924
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

39.

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity tables (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The amount due to a related company carried at interest rate
ranging from 18% to 20% (2020: 18% to 20%) per annum.

(2) The secured bank borrowings carry at HIBOR plus 1.25% to
2.5% (2020: HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5%) per annum.

(3) The incremental borrowing rates for lease liabilities ranging
from 2.2% to 5.38% (2020: 4.38% to 5.38%).

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are included in
the “on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings
amounted to HK$62,609,035 (2020: HK$79,786,671) as
at 31 December 2021. Taking into account the Group's
financial position and assets pledged for the bank
borrowings, the directors of the Company do not believe
that it is probable that the financial institutions would
exercise the discretionary rights to demand immediate
payment. As at 31 December 2021, the directors of
the Company believed that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. The aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows amounted to
HK$62,875,196 (2020: HK$80,914,086) as at 31
December 2021. The repayment schedule based on the
scheduled repayment dates is set out below:

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

ERMTIA @)
BAF5 LR B IR B AR R BUR ()

TEE A (1B)
MBEZ R (B)

(1) B —REEQABDRBERENTF
18%FE20% (CE_ZF 1 18%E
20%) 2 EF)EF B o

() ERFPIRTEEREBRTHEE
FEMI25%F25% (T =&
F I EBRTAEREM25%E
2.5%) ZEREFE o

3 HEEENEEEENRNF
2.2%%E5.38% (ZE_ZTF !
4.38%%5.38%) °

R _—ER_F_FTF+_
B=1+—HWHEZEREEERR
ZIRTTEEE LLMEEBE S HH
STATRENR ) ZRHFEESEE AN R
B —HF+"“A=+—H" 4R
TEERREELN 462,609,035
BT (T2 ZZE4F 79,786,671
Bir) c ERBAER B BEAR
REIBITEREERZEE &K
NEEFEE MHEEEB A
TERNBEEERBIEAR R
T F+"_A=+—H &R
BEEMHE ZFRTEERRE
BERmEFEEEENRHEHEE
B-oR _E_—F+-_A=+—
H'&x&hHEBRESREEES
62,875,196 T (ZE _FF :
80,914,086870)  IRIEFATIER
HEf EMEERUT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

39.

B+ _"_B=+—HULtEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

39. T A (8

HHERBREEBRREEK (8

FEEZmEE (B)

2021 2020
B % TEIEF
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Within one year —FR 62,875,196 61,786,187
Over one year but less than two years  BiB—FEB/DRME - 19,127,899
62,875,196 80,914,086
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMTEREZAFEEEE
This note provides information about how the Group MR EAEBR N AEITIZE
determines fair values of various financial assets. SRBEATFTEZER -

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The financial controller of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engaged independent qualified professional
valuers to perform the valuation. The financial controller
works closely with independent qualified professional
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and key inputs to the model. Financial controller reports
to executive directors semi-annually to explain the cause
of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Information about the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets are disclosed below.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAT

QT EFERIGERERF

KRB BREEEEETBEEN
HMETERATFEFETERA
iz o

REstEEHBRINATER
AEBEEHIESHNBER TER
MHEABERBR REESFE —
mREABER AEEEBE=
BB GERERGLEMETRE
B-MEREABUSERESE
HEMERESFRLIBEENGE
AEREBANEIEZBABIE M
BRESFFORITEFERU
EREREEATERSHRE-

ERBEESTNREEATEFAN
HMEDEREIEZHABBENER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and key inputs

39. &FIT A (48)
SRMTHEZATEHE (@)

FEFEIATE L BEL
FHHEZEMEEZAT

/]

FEBEDEHEENRSHR
BATEFE TRILERE
EZETMBEEATEREZE
B (LHEBFAGERTREE

WA o

used).
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
tREE R+ZA=+—HZAFE ATEES “ERTRIEBAZE BEE
2021 2020
—E_-F CE°EE
HK$ HK$
BT B
Investments in listed equity in Hong Kong 24,716,500 23,059,714 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
as financial assets at FVTPL market
NERBEBBERATEIRZ B4R ERMS L ZBARE TEA
SHMEEZNEELHIRARE
Investments in equity securities 17,854,928 17,854,928 Level 3 Asset-based approach with key
established in Hong Kong, the PRC inputs of
and overseas measured at FVTOCI
BRE2ERARRTEIIERSEZNH B3R BEL TERAYES

BRIz REBFRE

292

(i) Fair value of the underlying
assets of the investees; and

() RREANEREE
RTE; R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+"_A=1+—HILEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Continued)

Fair value as at

Fair value

39. £RIT A (@)
EMTARAZAFEEE (B8)

FEFEZEAETE ERERL
FEAEZEHBEEZLF

1& (%)

Valuation technique(s) and

Financial assets 31 December hierarchy  key input(s) Sensitivity
SRBEE R+ZB=+—HZATE ATEES GHERNRIZHARE HRE
2021 2020
—E_-F CF°EE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(i) Marketability discount of A significant increase/

19% decrease in the discount
rate used would result
in a significant decrease/
increase in fair value.

(ii) 19%H9 3B 14738 ik EN A% VAN 3
ERNTFEARTS/
R RZT R
Investments in equity securities 4,695,691 - Level 2 Recent transaction prices N/A
established in the PRC and overseas
measured at FVTOCI
BR2ARARRATEIRIEZNF EVE RITAR B ~EA
BB BAESFRE
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 RERN TR~ F2R R FE3RE

during the years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of
its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their fair
values.

IR

FEF IR ETAE 1 B
BRTFEFEZEHMEER
EHEERZLFE

AABDESHARRREARED
bt BN AFTECEME
EhzREBEZATE

KRB EFRR RBIHMAT

ANGEEMBRRRZEMEEK
THAERZREERAATEMR
=,

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R

293



294

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-S-—G+-A=+BIEE
40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 40. RIEEHFMESSGENS
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bk
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERHIANEENE TEPTE
arising from financing activities, including both cash SEENEHF 5 aFEResK
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing JEIRE & B TEFTELE DN
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future EEAaESREgRKEESTE
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated N ARERESEHEESRERP
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing WofAAMB ETFIES NENE
activities. Fo
Amount
due to
a related Lease Bank
company liabilities  borrowings Total
FEff—x
MEARAME HEaRE RITEE k]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B
At 1 January 2020 N ZEZEF—F—H 435,017 54,631,614 92,168,478 147,235,109
Financing cash flows (note) MERERE W) (225,603)  (11,850,898)  (14,828,623)  (26,905,124)
Finance costs RLE A 62,349 2,368,897 2,446,816 4,878,062
Additions wE - 5,039,321 - 5,039,321
Exchange adjustments BE 2 FHEE - 3,160,744 - 3,160,744
At 31 December 2020 N B EF
+ZBA=+—H 71,763 53,349,678 79,786,671 133,408,112
Financing cash flows (note) MEBERERE (W) (85,689) (9,732,545) (18,579,155  (28,397,389)
Finance costs =YD %N 54,671 2,123,220 1,401,519 3,579,410
Additions NE - 17,738,587 - 17,738,587
Disposals NE - (497,469) - (497,469)
Exchange adjustments PE R - (1,943,223) - (1,943,223)
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE_——%
+-A=+—H 240,745 61,038,248 62,609,035 123,888,028
Note: The cash flows in relation to repayments to a related company, Kz BEa—xREEATEH - HES

repayments for lease liabilities and bank borrowings and

finance costs.

BRBITEREREBNE SR
BB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

41.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 October 2021 and the relevant circular of
the Company dated 17 December 2021, Chung Tai
Printing Holdings Limited (“Chung Tai Printing”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a provisional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party pursuant to which Chung Tai
Printing conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Profit Link, the subsidiary of Chung Tai
Printing, which owns the properties located in Fanling,
at an initial purchase price of HK$231 million (the
“Disposal”). The Disposal is subject to shareholder’s
approval of the Company and the satisfaction of
conditions under the sale and purchase agreement by
both parties as at 31 December 2021. On 7 January
2022, the Disposal was approved by the shareholders in
the special general meeting. On 28 January 2022, the
Disposal has been completed upon both parties have
satisfied all conditions under the provisional sale and
purchase agreement. The investment properties and the
property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
HK$137,357,335 and HK$11,966,984, respectively as at
31 December 2021 have been disposed through disposal
of Profit Link upon the completion of the Disposal.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 27 October 2021 and the relevant circular of the
Company dated 17 December 2021, I AEIRI (Bix)
BRAB (“Zhongda Qingyuan”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
construction agreement with EREZIBEEREBFREAR
B)("Guangdong Weiheng"”) pursuant to which Zhongda
Qingyuan agreed to engage Guangdong Weiheng
for the provision of the Phase 2 Construction Work
on the land located in Qingyuan for a total contract
price of approximately RMB191.9 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$232.2 million). The construction
agreement is subject to shareholder’s approval of the
Company as at 31 December 2021. On 7 January 2022,
the construction agreement have been approved by the
shareholders in the special general meeting.
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41.

HEHRER

HUMAATDHBEA S _—F+
BZ4+—HBZRAERA&ATH
AT _—F+_H+tH
ZHERBERFAINE AR E2E
B ARRAKEIREBREBRAT
(T XENR) A—%B\ILFE=
HEIUREBE& S HIL P
AEIRBEHRERRLE R K
RIFB AR R AKNEIE T
A ZABBEBEURNENY
= P HEEEA231,000,000
B (THEEE) - HEXEEA
BEAANBREHERTH AN
- —F+-_A=+—HmE
EERENGEHF - RZZTE =

—BtH HESFERRESH
A EEREME- RS-
F—BZ+/N\H HEFEER
SR AERERREEREN
FTEREGEER R _—%
+-_B=+—HB 'EEESHNA
137,357,3358 70 /% 11,966,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

im e M BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

]

41.

B —F+"_B=+—HULtEFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

On January 28, 2022, the pledge of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties given in favour of a bank
to secure banking facilities of the Group as disclosed in notes
14 and 15 are released by the bank. In addition, the Group
has renewed the banking facilities with pledge of investment
properties with carrying amount of HK$103,700,000 as at 31
December 2021 as disclosed in note 15 and additional pledge
of bank deposits of HK$60,000,000.

On 11 March 2022, the Company announced the intention
to apply to the FINIHEZE AR ZELT ("People’s Court”)
for the commencement of the compulsory enforcement
proceedings against Zhongqing to put the freeze land (the
“Land”) as disclosed in note 20 for sale in the judicial auction
(the "Compulsory Enforcement”) through the Online Auction
Platform as decided by the People’s Court for the sale of the
land use rights of the Land (the “Auction”) in order to settle
the Shareholder’s Loan. The Auction will be open to the
public.

In view of the potential development value of the Land, in the
event that there are other bidders in any round of the Auction,
the Group intends to participate in the Auction through the
Group's potential bidder (subject to factors such as the market
condition and the prevailing regulatory regime). The maximum
amount which the Group’s Potential Bidder is prepared to
bid at the Auction is RMB30,700,000 (equivalent to HK
$38,068,000) (the “Ceiling”). If the Auction lapses for absence
of bidder, pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
Zhongxing Guosheng as the applicant of the Compulsory
Enforcement will have the right to take over the Land to set
off against the Shareholder’s Loan with the amount equivalent
to the initial bid price prevailing at the second auction as
stipulated under the relevant PRC laws and regulations. It will
constitute a possible acquisition transaction of the Group.

41.

HEHREE (@)

RZIEZZF—BZ+N\H">
AARNEBRTHEEERT
U—RTARR ANYE-
BmEREEBEURKEY) XD F
(R 14K%15E) EEZ
IRITHRBR o LS KEBBEUR
B2 —F#+”"B=+—HE
H{E74103,700,0008 T E
MENER (P15 E) &
60,000,000 T IR1T R AY&E
SNEIREHRZIRTTRRE ©

R_E__F=ZA+—H &R
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Bro) (TERRY) o WRERERDHREA
MERPE LY RIEDEERS
ERVEIR D E B R E AR
ITHREABEEZEEZ T MIUE
ZERFER (REEENTEAE
FAEEARRENE_RNIHEN
AR IZER) - EB B EAER
BIRERI BB RS 57 ©

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 &£ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iRa MBI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

41.

B HF+"B=+—HILEE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

In the event that a bidder other than the Group’s potential
bidder offers a price higher than the Ceiling or that the market
condition and/or the relevant regulatory regime has changed
such that it will not be commercially beneficial for the Group’s
potential bidder to acquire the Land, the Group’s potential
bidder will not participate in the Auction or bid further in the
Auction. In such circumstances, Zhongging, which is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, will then be obliged
to sell the Land to the bidder who offers the highest price in
the Auction and the sale will constitute a disposal transaction
of the Group.

The proposed Compulsory Enforcement is subject to
shareholder’s approval of the Company as at the date
of approval for issuance of these consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Compulsory Enforcement are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11
March 2022.

41.

HEHREE (B

fin 2 52 B 7 7 3 3 A DUSMBY R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
B F+"A=+—HLEE

]

42,

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31

December 2021 and 2020.

42. XEMBATIZFBE

KRBEMBRAENR _BE_—Fk
_BCERFT+__RB=+—HZ5#

==
1
B o

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
TREMBERT
BaBRT/ B/ GEMEE
WEARHE BT AT b BT BERESL TEBEH
2021 2020
¥ “F°EF
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
FADREBERAF EBEYHE 10,0008 L@ % REER
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
RRERIBRAR BA HK$500,000 RELER
deferred non-voting
1,000 0 & BR
500,00077¢
BRERELK
R ERARHERAS The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Testing of printing
(note 1) (W&t 1) R registered capital products
AR 1,000,0007 ER it )
HfEL
WEDR (GRIN) BRRAT The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and paper
(note 1) (&£ 1) fE registered capital products printing
30,000,000/ 7T BRERARREIR
SRER
Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited 5E HK$10,000 RERR
FARENR (RE) BRRAF deferred non-voting
1,000 0 & B
10,0007 7T
BRERELK
Chung Tai Smart Labelling Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of label and
Company Limited 5E TBTEER printing products
RRREREBRAT BERB KR @
Chung Tai Printing (International) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
Company Limited BE 1ETLER products

RAER (EF) BRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

42.

B+ _"_B=+—HULtEFE
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Effective percentage

42. FEWBABZHIE (B)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
TARMBERT
BaBgEs/ &/ HMEE
WEARHE AR/ SR BT ERESH IBEH
2021 2020
—E_-FE “E°FH
% %
REFRKER (FI) BRAF The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label, packaging and
(note 1) (&t 1) / registered capital paper products
98,000,0007 7T printing
AMER BE 0K
R mENR
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
SMBERAT EE 200,0008 T E &R products
BEEORER
Green Links Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100  Trading
G-IRIRBRAE &% TETEER EZ
New Box Mini Storage Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Provision of mini
PARKMEBRAR EB  HK$2 deferred non-voting storage services
1008 LB EK RERIFBEERS
28T
BRERELK
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists

ER% (BT) BRAF

Hong Kon
e

1ETEER

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

42,

— i —

e

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

—F+ZA=+—HLFE

Effective percentage

42. FEWBABZHE (B)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
TARMBERT
BaBgEs/ &/ HMEE
WEAERE AR/ SR BT ERESH IBEH
2021 2020
ZEI-F ZEZZ
% %
Neway Group Assets Management Hong Kon HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Property management
Company Limited %’V‘g TETLER and project
FEEREEERERAT investment
NEERRIBERE
Neway Smart Technology Hong Kon HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 RFID printing products
(International) Company Limited E&Pg 10,0008 & @K and RFID label
FEBERE BB BRAT BIGSVEORIERK
BRSERE
Neway Star Limited Hong Kon HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
HREREIRERAR 55% 10,0008 75 & & g licensing services,
sales of music
albums and
investment holding
RS RIS TR
HESHIEBRRE
gk
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kon HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Limited 55% 10,0008 T B BK management
TRREEERERAR services
B ANEERE
Showtimes (Asia) Limited HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Organisation of

RERA @) BRAT

Hong Kon
e

1BTEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

42,

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

B+ _"_B=+—HULtEFE
(Continued)

42. FEMBABZHE

Effective percentage

( Nl )

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
TARMBERT
BaBgEs/ &/ HMEE
WEAERE AR/ SR BT ERESH IBEH
2021 2020
—E_-FE “E°FH
% %
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kor\g HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securmes trading
BREERRAT & TATEER BEH
Grand Prospects Finance Hong Ko% HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
International Limited & 100,000t WE
ERMBERERAR Liak
Supreme Cycle Inc. BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100  Property investment
HERUHS 1ETERk NERE
LETEEERMERERRAR The PRC U$$20,000,000 100 100 Financial leasing
(note 1) (ffi21) s registered capital MEHEE
20,000,000% 7T
AMER
Zhongxing Guosheng H 2 B2 The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 2) (H&22) e registered capital REER
AR H2,000,0007
HfEE
Zhongging 5 The PRC RMB2,000,000 60 60 Pro erty development
(note 2) (Hiz#2) HE registered capital NE R
AE%2,000,0007T
FHEX
Zhongda Qingyuan (note 1) The PRC HK$230,000,000 100 100 Pro erty development
HRRRRE (f7it1) # registered capital MEEE
230,000,000/ 7
EMER
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kor;g HK$10,Q00_ordi\nary 100 100 Trading
ERERAR & 10,0008 L @M% Bs
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

42,

B —HF+"A=+—HLFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the
PRC.

2) These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises

established in the PRC.

The operations of all subsidiaries are carried out
principally in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Exception for Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited, which
is directly owned by the Company, all other subsidiaries
are indirectly owned by the Company.

The above table only includes those subsidiaries
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results of the Group for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length. The deferred non-voting
shares, which are not held by the Group, practically carry
no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the relevant
companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the years.

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE

42.

FTEMBATZ:*1E (@)

ez

(1 ZEWBRBHEAZINEEE
s

) ZEMBRAB TR RBEIMILZA
B

FREMBARNEBEENES
R B # T

Beh K ENRISE BB RA R BA A
RIE RS FTE H i E A
SEEUNSISES 22k

tRECEARTESTIAREE
TEREBRAFERENBNE
£H ?iﬁéigﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬂ’\]w%@
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RERERBRITER B 1m$&
TEIER CFRTEEFA) BE L
IR A R IR B R EWA
AR ZKRRERRGRESHHELE
AIREAGHNE LRE > SR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e MR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B F+"A=+—HLEE

BE

42,

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have non-controlling

interests:

Place of
establishment

Proportion of
ownership interests

TRETAEREEAIFERED

42. XEMBATIZ*1E (@)

ZIEEMBATFIE

and principal and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ATRIEY JEEER G PR
Lol YNGR TRERME BREEEGRREEZILS SREFEREGZZER Rt IR
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z5T-F 3% “E-& CZE°% —E-fF CZBZZ%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Zhongging The PRC 40% 40% (428,438) (129,944)  (3,205,059)  (2,823,578)
A HE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries - - (450,718) (450,718)
with non-controlling interests
ERIFEREGRZ
BAREAKE RS
(428,438) (129,944)  (3,655,777)  (3,274,296)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E_—F+"A=1+—HILEE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

43. BRATMBARRR

COMPANY
2021 2020
—_E_—HF —ET=
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Assets B5E
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHRB AT ZKRE 42,671,966 42,671,966
Amounts due from subsidiaries N =N ES S 788,226,877 781,859,603
830,898,843 824,531,569
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HhEWHIE 5]
prepayments KT FRIB 402,463 253,607
Cash and cash equivalents ReERIREEE 33,399,101 48,585,649
33,801,564 48,839,256
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REAaE
Other payables and accrued HMMEARIER
charges === 988,690 656,283
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI EEYNEIE e 104,267,227 109,256,304
105,255,917 109,912,587
Net current liabilities MBBEPRE (71,454,353) (61,073,331)
Total assets less total liabilities BWEEREEGE 759,444,490 763,458,238
Capital and reserves BRR#E
Share capital [N 2,536,395 2,536,395
Reserves B 756,908,095 760,921,843
Total equity e R 759,444,490 763,458,238

Neway Group Holdings Limited R E£EZERFRAE
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= A —
R e TR R M sE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIEE
43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. FATHBRAR (B)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Bt
Reserves 3]
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Reorganisation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
RiVEE BErBEGEE BARER EAfRE REER gt
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS$
T STy AT AT AT AT
At 1 January 2020 RIZZ25-F-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 270,569,784 762,934,771
Loss and total comprehensive rERRRE AR AR
expense for the year - - - - (2,012,928) (2,012,928)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEE+ZA=+-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 268,556,856 760,921,843
Loss and total comprehensive rERBREERZAR
expense for the year - - - - (4,013,748) (4,013,748)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F+ZHA=+-H 368,949,127 62,400 103,571,033 19,782,427 264,543,108 756,908,095
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Principal Properties

E LY/ S

At 31 December 2021
AZ®——#F+-A=+—8

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. KREME
Group's effective Approximate
interest in gross Category of
Location the properties floor area Usage lease
EEBRYESD B4 4EiEm
Hh2h ZERER mE HRR AR
(sg. m)
(FFHK)
Lot. No. 5378 IN D.D.51, 100% 4,859 Industrial Medium-term
G/F-2/F, 4/F, T lease
Chung Tai Printing Group Building FRERFEAY
No. 11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,
New Territories, Hong Kong
SARAMAMELTR T ENEGEHIR
AR EBEARELE49515%
HEE53785% ~ I T 218 Ko 41E
Yuen Long Town Lot No. 292, 100% 1,063.82 Commercial Medium-term
Units 21, 22, 23, 41 and 77 of EES lease
1/F and the whole of 3/F, FREAFR AT
Hop Yick Commercial Centre (Phase 1),
No. 33 Hop Choi Street, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BEMATTEAE M E335%
SmEERL (—H) — 822122
B NRTITREA R =IEDE
TCEA Tt EE2925%
No. 1801, 15/F, 100% 175.66  Commercial Medium-term
Block 4, Yard 89, [(EES lease
89 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District, FRERFEAY

Beijing, the PRC
B 16 R EA RS & 22 B B& 895
8955 P48 15/Z 1801 F
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Principal Properties

E LY/ S

At 31 December 2021
AZ®-—#F+-A=+—8

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR B. HEZRPMYE
SALE
Group'’s effective

interest in  Approximate Category of

Location the properties site area  Usage lease
TERRYES
gk ZERED BOMBER AR AR
(sg. m)
(FEFHK)

Two parcels of land designated 60% 5,853.40  Mixed Medium-term
located at Lot No. B19001-1*1 and Residential lease
No. B19001-2*1 of Villagers ReEE FRERFEAY
Committee of Lian Tang Village,
Dong Cheng Sub-district Office,
Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City,
the PRC
Mg LS AP Bl E = 5 I & BRI AT
MERERENRZEGZIEE LM
(M ER AR SR 55B19001-1* 158 &
55B19001-2*19%)
A parcels of land with certain buildings 100% 207,999.95  Industrial Use Medium-term
under construction designated located TR lease
at Lot No. N32000004 of northern side FRARFR AT

of Lianhu Industrial Park, Qingcheng
District, Qingyuan City, the PRC

— BN FEBR D AN EENEX
BEILRI 215 Tt —LEE R EY
(3 E& 47 5% 55N3200000455)

Neway Group Holdings Limited A2 £ MIERAFIRAT ¢ Annual Report 2021 £ 3R 307



308

Five Years Financial Summary

hEMBHE

RESULTS ¥i4E
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-B=1+—HLEE
2017 2018* 2019* 2020 2021
Tt T\ T —AE TRCTE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FET FET
Revenue W s 515,534 592,626 560,585 532,674 623,577
Profit (loss) before taxation  B&#3 AT (§518) ‘& F! 52,092 (35,220) (24,994) (88,438) (11,752)
Taxation I8 (4,142) (3,004) (5,979) 1,121 618
Profit (loss) for the year RE (F518) % F) 47,950 (38,224) (30,973) (87,317) (11,134)
Attributable to: DU AL FEL
Owners of the Company EAUN=IEZ =N 48,146 (37,922) (30,782) (87,187) (10,706)
Non-controlling interests FFPERR (196) (302) (191) (130) (428)
47,950 (38,224) (30,973) (87,317) (11,134)
= ==
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERA&E
As at 31 December
w+=ZB=+—H
2017 2018* 2019* 2020 2021
—E—tE T\ T —E TBCFE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FET FET FET
Total assets BEMSE 1,206,500 1,157,108 1,172,501 1,126,722 1,156,303
Total liabilities BEE%E (196,987) (229,826) (286,283) (296,794) (324,245)
Total equity EmiBER 1,009,513 927,282 886,218 829,928 832,058
Equity attributable to EN/NEIEZZS DN
owners of the Company FEbRE 1,011,224 930,032 889,442 833,202 835,714
Non-controlling interests FEERR S (1,711) (2,750) (3,224) (3,274) (3,656)
1,009,513 927,282 886,218 829,928 832,058

The amounts for the year ended 31 December 2018 were presented

upon the application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, which the
comparative financial information was not restated. The amounts
for the year ended 31 December 2019 were presented upon the
application of HKFRS 16, which the comparative financial information

was not restated.

REEZE—)N\F+_A=+—HIF
EBZ I EEE B BREERFIT
REBYBEHREERF155EES) AL
BRYFEH L FELES  JBE —F—N
FA+ZHA=+—HIEFEZEEEEH
BBUBEHREERF 167 EES ALK
M BEM I FAAES] -
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